REPEATABILITY OF MEASURES OF ARTERIAL FUNCTION

DETERMINING THE REPEATABILITY OF LOW FLOW MEDIATED CONSTRICTION AND TOTAL VESSEL REACTIVITY IN THE BRACHIAL ARTERY OF HUMANS

By: VANESSA RIZZUTO, B.Sc.

A Thesis Submitted to the School of Graduate Studies in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree Master of Science

McMaster University © Copyright by Vanessa Rizzuto, July 2019

McMaster University, MASTER OF SCIENCE (2019) Hamilton, Ontario (Kinesiology)

TITLE: Determining the Repeatability of Low Flow Mediated Constriction and Total Vessel Reactivity in the Brachial Artery of Humans

AUTHOR: Vanessa Ivana Rizzuto, B.Sc. (McMaster University)

SUPERVISOR: Dr. Maureen MacDonald, Ph.D.

NUMBER OF PAGES: 200

LAY ABSTRACT

Endothelial function is the ability of arteries to expand and contract. Endothelial dysfunction has been linked to an increased risk for cardiovascular disease (CVD). The most widely used test to assess endothelial function is the flow mediated dilation test (FMD). Two novel measures of endothelial function, low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and total vessel reactivity (TVR) have been introduced as supplements to FMD, however little is known about the repeatability of these measurements. Additionally, it is unknown whether L-FMC and TVR are influenced by age, sex, CVD or CVD risk factors. We investigated the day-to-day repeatability of FMD, L-FMC and TVR, and their relationships with age and the influence of sex and CVD and elevated CVD risk. We found that FMD and TVR, but not L-FMC, were repeatable and associated with age. We also found that sex or CVD did not alter the relationship between age and our measures.

ABSTRACT

Endothelial function is the ability of an artery to vasodilate and can be assessed using a flow mediated dilation (FMD) test. While FMD is a useful tool for assessing endothelial function, it has been argued that it does not capture overall vascular function. Two novel measures, low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and total vessel reactivity (TVR) have been introduced to compensate for the potential limitations of FMD. Unfortunately, little is known about the repeatability of brachial artery L-FMC and TVR. Additionally, it is unclear how L-FMC and TVR might be influenced by age, sex and the presence of cardiovascular disease (CVD) or CVD risk. Therefore, the main purpose of this investigation was to assess the day-to-day repeatability of FMD, L-FMC and TVR in the brachial artery. The secondary purpose was to assess if FMD, L-FMC and TVR were associated with age and if this relationship was influenced by sex or the presence of CVD or CVD risk factors. 375 participants (age:37±22) were included in the study, 98 participants (age:34±19) underwent two FMD tests and were included in the repeatability analysis. For all participants brachial artery endothelial function was assessed using a FMD test. The day-to-day repeatability of FMD was substantial (ICC=0.68), L-FMC was slight (ICC=0.01) and TVR was moderate (ICC=0.50). Age was associated with FMD and TVR (ρ =-0.24, ρ =-0.19, p<0.005), however there was no relationship between age and L-FMC. The relationships between age and FMD and TVR persisted in individuals with CVD and CVD risk factors, and sex did not moderate the relationship between age and any of our vascular outcomes. These results indicate that brachial artery FMD and

TVR are relatively repeatable, however L-FMC is not repeatable. As well, it appears that age is associated with a decrease in FMD and TVR, but not related to L-FMC.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

First, I would like to thank my supervisor Dr. Maureen MacDonald. It was a privilege to be a member of your lab and to learn from you. Thank you for helping me grow both academically and personally. I appreciate all of your guidance, insight and work on this project.

To my committee members, Dr. Ada Tang and Dr. Vladimir Ljubicic, thank you for your insight and guidance throughout the progression of my project.

To Stacey Priest, my undergraduate thesis supervisor, thank you for helping me discover my passion for research. Your continued guidance and support throughout my Master's degree has be invaluable.

To the members of the Vascular Dynamics Lab, Jenny, Jem, Joey, Sydney and Emily, thank you for all of the support and encouragement you've given me since my first day in the lab. Thank you to Chris, for all of your work on this project. Thank you to Kajeetha, for always being there to help out with testing sessions.

To all of the staff who have helped me along the way. Dam, thank you for always being there to help out with computer problems, in particular for helping me save data I thought I had lost to the abyss. To Todd, thank you for helping me feel comfortable in the very foreign wet lab environment. To Greg, thank you for always lending a hand whenever equipment issues arose.

To my loving parents, without whom I would not be here. Your unwavering support is what keeps me going, even when times get tough. Thank you for listening to me excitedly talk about arteries for the past two years, even though you are both in business and just the title of my thesis baffles you a bit. Also, thank you for finally learning what endothelial function means.

And finally, to my brother Michael, as much as I hate to admit it, you were right. Thank you for introducing me to all of the things Mac Kin had to offer. Thank you for encouraging me to explore research and for supporting me throughout my degree.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LAY ABSTRACT	III
ABSTRACT	IV
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	VI
LIST OF TABLES	IX
LIST OF FIGURES	X
LIST OF ACRONYMS	XI
LIST OF EQUATIONS	XIII
DECLARATION OF ACADEMIC ACHEIVEMENT	XIV
CHAPTER 1: LITERATURE REVIEW	Ι
INTRODUCTION 1.1 1.1.1 ARTERIAL ANATOMY 1.1.2 ENDOTHELIAL FUNCTION 1.1.2.1 ENDOTHELIAL DEPENDENT VASODILATION 1.1.2.2 ENDOTHELIAL DEPENDENT VASOCONSTRICTION 1.1.2.3 MEASURES OF ENDOTHELIAL FUNCTION 1.1.3 ENDOTHELIAL INDEPENDENT VASODILATION 1.2.4 REPEATABILITY OF MEASURES OF ENDOTHELIAL FUNCTION 1.2.1 OVERVIEW 1.2.2 FLOW MEDIATED DILATION 1.2.3 LOW FLOW MEDIATED CONSTRICTION 1.2.4 TOTAL VESSEL REACTIVITY 1.3 FACTORS INFLUENCING VASCULAR FUNCTION 1.3.1 BIOLOGICAL SEX 1.3.2 AGING 1.3.3 CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE 1.3.4 ELEVATED CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE RISK – SPINAL CORD INJURY AND CEREBRAL PALSY 1.4 STUDY OBJECTIVES AND HYPOTHESES 1.5 REFERENCES	2 2 3 3 4 6 10 11 11 12 15 16 16 16 16 19 21 22 24 25
CHAPTER 2: MANUSCRIPT	40
2.1 ABSTRACT 2.2 INTRODUCTION 2.3 METHODS 2.3.1 PARTICIPANTS 2.3.2 STUDY DESIGN	41 42 45 45 48

2.3.3 OUTCOME MEASURES	49
2.3.3.2 VENOUS BLOOD DRAW	49
2.3.3.3 FLOW MEDIATED DILATION (FMD)	50
2.3.3.4 NITROGLYCERIN CHALLENGE TEST (NTG)	51
2.3.3.5 MEAN BLOOD VELOCITY & SHEAR RATE	52
2.3.4 STATISTICAL ANALYSIS	53
2.4 RESULTS	54
2.5 DISCUSSION	64
2.5.1 REPEATABILITY ANALYSIS	64
2.5.2 OBSERVATIONAL ANALYSIS	67
2.5.3 LIMITATIONS AND FUTURE DIRECTIONS	69
2.6 CONCLUSION	70
APPENDICES	79
APPENDIX 1: RAW DATA	80
APPENDIX 2: STATISTICS	164

LIST OF TABLES

Chapter 2

- Table 1. List of Studies
- Table 2: Participant Characteristics
- Table 3: Hemodynamics, Repeatability Cohort
- Table 4: Hemodynamics, Observational Cohort
- Table 5: Vascular Variables, Repeatability Cohort
- Table 6: Nitroglycerin Challenge Test, Repeatability Cohort
- Table 7: Vascular Variables, Observational Cohort

LIST OF FIGURES

Chapter 1

Figure 1: The mechanism of endothelial dependent vasodilation.

Figure 2: The mechanism of endothelial dependent vasoconstriction.

Chapter 2

Figure 1: Associations between age and [A] flow mediated dilation (FMD), [B] low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and [C] total vessel reactivity (TVR).

Figure 2: Associations between age and [A] flow mediated dilation (FMD), [B] low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and [C] total vessel reactivity (TVR) in individuals with cardiovascular disease or elevated cardiovascular disease risk.

Figure 3: Individual participant responses across the two visits for [A] flow mediated dilation (FMD), [B] low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and [C] total vessel reactivity (TVR).

Figure 4: Correlation between low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and flow mediated dilation (FMD).

LIST OF ACRONYMS

BH_4	tetrahydrobiopterin
CAD	coronary artery disease
СР	cerebral palsy
CV	coefficient of variation
CVD	cardiovascular disease
EDHF	endothelial derived hyperpolarizing factor
EE	ethinyl estradiol
eNOS	endothelial nitric oxide synthase
ER_{α}	estrogen receptor alpha
ER_{β}	estrogen receptor beta
ET-1	endothelin-1
ET _A	endothelin receptor A
ET _B	endothelin receptor B
FMD	flow mediated dilation
GMP	guanosine monophosphate
ICC	intraclass correlation coefficient
L-FMC	low flow mediated constriction
MBV	mean blood velocity
NO	nitric oxide
NTG	nitroglycerin challenge test
OCP	oral contraceptive pill

SCI spinal cord injury

- SFA superficial femoral artery
- TVR total vessel reactivity

LIST OF EQUATIONS

Chapter 1:

(1) $TVR \% = \frac{maximal\ diameter - occlusion\ diameter}{occlusion\ diameter} X\ 100$

(2) TVR % = |FMD% + L - FMC%|

Chapter 2:

(1) FMD (mm) = maximum diameter – baseline diameter
(2) FMD (%) =
$$\frac{maximum diameter - baseline diameter}{baseline diameter} X 100$$

(3) L – FMC (mm) = occlusion diameter – baseline diameter
(4) L – FMC % = $\frac{occlusion diameter - baseline diameter}{baseline diameter} X 100$
(5) TVR % = $\frac{maximum diameter - occlusion diameter}{occlusion diameter} X 100$
(6) Absolute NTG (mm) = peak NTG – baseline NTG
(7) Relative NTG (%) = $\frac{peak NTG - baseline NTG}{baseline NTG} X 100$
(8) Blood flow $\left(\frac{mL}{min}\right) = (\pi r^2 x MBV) x 60$ where $r = arterial diameter/2$

(9) Shear rate
$$(s^{-1}) = \frac{MBV \times 8}{arterial diameter}$$

DECLARATION OF ACADEMIC ACHEIVEMENT

VIR and MJM conceived the study. VIR led the study development, completed the data collection and data analysis of the prospective cohort, as well as analyzed some of the occlusion images from the retrospective data. VIR was responsible for data interpretation. MJM provided the retrospective dataset from studies previously conducted under her supervision, assisted with study development, data interpretation and provided funding for the project. Christopher Gupta assisted with study development and data collection. Kajeetha Sarvananthan and Jennifer Williams assisted with data collection.

CHAPTER 1: LITERATURE REVIEW

INTRODUCTION 1.1

Cardiovascular disease (CVD) is the second leading cause of death in Canada, claiming over 53 000 lives in 2017 (101). Evidence of early signs of atherosclerosis are present in children and progress with age (82). Results from the Framingham study, a longitudinal study assessing CVD, indicate that there are a variety of risk factors that predispose an individual to develop cardiovascular disease (45). These risk factors include inactivity, obesity, hypertension, cigarette smoking, diabetes and hypercholesterolemia (41, 44, 45). While these risk factors play a large role in the development of CVD, they are unable to predict 100% of CVD risk (18, 32). As a result, researchers have begun to focus on novel risk factors for CVD, such as endothelial function, which is a measure of the function of the arterial wall (32). Endothelial dysfunction refers to altered arterial wall function and is thought to be the first step in the development of atherosclerosis (21, 71).

1.1.1 Arterial Anatomy

Arteries consist of three main tissue layers; the tunica externa, the tunica media and the tunica intima (67, 94). The tunica externa is a layer of connective tissue, mainly comprised of collagen that surrounds the artery and helps maintain the relative position of the artery (67). The tunica media is the thickest arterial layer and consists primarily of smooth muscle that encircles the artery in a circular pattern (67, 94). The tunica media regulates arterial diameter through vasoconstriction and vasodilation (67). The tunica intima is comprised of specialized cells called endothelial cells that directly contact blood flowing through the lumen of the artery (67). It was once thought that endothelial cells were a passive barrier between blood and the other arterial tissue layers, however research has now determined that these cells play an important physiological role in modulating arterial diameter (67).

1.1.2 Endothelial Function

The endothelium is a monolayer of cells which regulate vasomotion through the production of various vasoactive substances, as well as vessel wall inflammation, smooth muscle cell proliferation and cellular adhesion (21). The ability of the endothelial cells to influence arterial diameter is fundamental to ensuring tissue oxygen and metabolic demands are met (21).

1.1.2.1 Endothelial Dependent Vasodilation

Endothelial dependent vasodilation refers to the ability of endothelial cells to promote vasodilation (86). This function can be activated through a variety of pathways, one of which is triggered when blood flowing through the artery imposes a shear stress on the endothelial cells (17, 84, 86). The shear stress promotes the opening of calciumactivated potassium channels, which hyperpolarizes the endothelial cell, leading to calcium influx (17). Calcium influx activates endothelial nitric oxide synthase (eNOS) which converts L-arginine to nitric oxide (NO) (17, 84). From here, nitric oxide diffuses to the vascular smooth muscle where it stimulates soluble guanylate cyclase, an enzyme that converts guanosine triphosphate to cyclic guanosine monophosphate (GMP) (60). The increase in cyclic GMP causes relaxation of the smooth muscle cell layer, which ultimately results in vasodilation (60). Lower levels of endothelial function (also known as endothelial dysfunction) have been shown to be predictive of future cardiovascular events in both symptomatic and asymptomatic individuals (32, 86). Endothelial function has been suggested to be a marker of both traditional and novel CVD risk factors and endothelial dysfunction is thought to be the first step in the progression of atherosclerosis (21, 32).



Figure 1. The mechanism of endothelial dependent vasodilation. Potassium (K), endothelial nitric oxide synthase (eNOS), nitric oxide (NO), soluble guanylate cyclase (sGC), guanosine triphosphate (GTP), guanosine monophosphate (GMP).

1.1.2.2 Endothelial Dependent Vasoconstriction

Endothelial cells also have the ability to induce vasoconstriction (21). The main vasoconstrictor substance that is produced by the endothelial cells is endothelin-1 (ET-1) (93). ET-1 was first described in 1988, and since then two other isoforms, endothelin-2 and endothelin-3 have been discovered, however only ET-1 is produced by the endothelium in humans (72, 93, 99). The release of ET-1 is mediated by a variety of factors, including shear stress (46). Specifically, low levels of shear stress have been

shown to increase the release of ET-1, intermediate levels of shear stress have been shown to result in initial increases then decreases in ET-1 release, and high levels of shear suppress the release of ET-1 (49). When ET-1 is produced it binds to endothelin receptors ET_A and ET_B (4). ET_A and ET_B receptors are located on the vascular smooth muscle and ET_B receptors are located on the endothelium (10). Binding of ET-1 to the endothelin receptors on the vascular smooth muscle produces vasoconstriction, however binding of ET-1 to the endothelium has been shown to increase NO and prostacyclin production (10). ET-1 imposes its vasoconstrictor effects on vascular smooth muscle through a complicated signaling process that involves many pathways (46). In the classical signaling pathway, ET-1 binds to ET_A on the vascular smooth muscle, which activates phospholipase C (46, 93). Phospholipase C produces inositol triphosphate and diacylglycerol from phosphatidylinositol (46). Inositol triphosphate then binds to receptors on the endoplasmic reticulum, causing in an increase in intracellular calcium, which results in vasoconstriction (46). It has been suggested that elevated plasma levels of ET-1 are involved in certain pathological states, such as hypertension (93).



Figure 2. The mechanism of endothelial dependent vasoconstriction. Endothelin-1 (ET-1), endothelin receptor A (ET_A), phospholipase C (PLC), inositol triphosphate (IP₃), phosphatidylinositol (PPI), endoplasmic reticulum (ER), calcium (Ca^{2+}).

1.1.2.3 Measures of Endothelial Function

As endothelial function has been implicated as a marker of cardiovascular health, there have been a variety of techniques introduced to assess both the vasodilatory and vasoconstrictor capacity of endothelial cells.

Infusion Methods

The most direct method of assessing endothelial function is through angiography accompanied by the infusion of vasoactive substances, and this technique has been primarily applied to investigations of coronary arteries (92). Specifically, a guide wire along with a catheter is placed into the coronary artery of interest (53). Acetylcholine is then infused through the catheter in increasing concentrations; acetylcholine has been shown to promote vasodilation in arteries with healthy endothelial cells and

vasoconstriction in arteries with endothelial dysfunction and atherosclerosis, due to direct interaction between acetylcholine and the tunica media (53, 64, 100). Images are collected at baseline and each increment and a dose response curve is then created (53, 92). Arteries with a dose dependent increase in vasodilation are deemed healthy (92). While this method is considered the gold standard for evaluating coronary endothelial function, it is invasive, expensive and the procedure comes with potential risks for the patient (92). As a result, researchers began using a similar infusion method in the brachial artery, which is associated with fewer risks. Instead of a dose response curve however, the forearm blood flow during the acetylcholine infusion is compared to rest to determine the level of endothelial dependent dilation that occurs (73, 92). While this infusion method is reliable and repeatable, it is still invasive and poses potential risks to participants (92).

Flow Mediated Dilation (FMD)

Flow mediated dilation (FMD), first introduced by Celermajer and colleagues in 1992, is a non-invasive measure that is used to assess the ability of endothelial cells to promote vasodilation in response to an increase in shear stress (11). FMD is performed using Duplex ultrasound to capture both the arterial diameter and blood flow of the target artery, often the brachial artery, however other arterial segments such as the radial artery, superficial femoral artery and popliteal artery can be imaged (87). Images of the artery are acquired at rest, and then a pneumatic is cuff placed around the participant's limb that is inflated to a suprasystolic level (11). The cuff can be placed either distal to the

ultrasound probe or proximal to the ultrasound probe (86). The cuff remains inflated for 5 minutes and then is released, which results in a dramatic increase in blood flow, referred to as reactive hyperemia (11, 86). An additional image of the target artery is obtained to allow determination of the maximal diameter resulting from the reactive hyperemia stimulus (11). Percent dilation is calculated relative to baseline, to assess the relative change in diameter (11). Importantly, it has been shown that endothelial function in the brachial artery measured by FMD is correlated to endothelial function of the coronary arteries as measured by acetylcholine infusion (7). Additional studies determined that FMD was largely mediated by the release of NO (86). FMD is currently the most commonly used technique to assess endothelial function and it has been suggested that a 1% increase FMD results in a 13% decrease risk of future cardiovascular events (32, 36). *Low Flow Mediated Constriction (L-FMC)*

While infusion techniques and FMD have provided valuable information about endothelial function, some have argued these measures do not capture overall vascular function (29). Gori and colleagues argued that FMD only measures the "recruitability" of endothelial cells, but fails to capture basal arterial tone (29). As a result, a relatively newer measure, low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) has been introduced to account for the limitations of FMD (28). L-FMC is a measure of the change in arterial diameter that occurs during a period of low blood flow and can be determined from data obtained during the occlusion phase of a traditional FMD test (28, 31). Unlike FMD, L-FMC is not thought to be mediated by NO, and instead is mediated through an increase of ET-1 and an inhibition of vasodilators, specifically endothelial derived hyperpolarizing factor (EDHF) and prostaglandins (28, 80). While there has been an increased interest in L-FMC in the last decade, it was first described by Levenson and colleagues in 1987, who observed a marked decrease in mean blood flow and mean blood velocity as well as an increase in vascular resistance after 60 seconds of wrist cuff occlusion (42, 51). In 1989, Anderson and colleagues extended these findings when they performed 10 minutes of forearm occlusion while using Doppler ultrasound to image the brachial artery (6, 42). The group observed a marked decrease in blood flow during 10 minutes of forearm occlusion that was associated with a decrease in brachial artery diameter (6). In 2008, Gori and colleagues revisited the technique and since then there has been a substantial increase in L-FMC research (28). Gori et al. observed the presence vasoconstriction during low flow in the radial artery in a number of studies (28, 29, 31) and additional studies have also reported similar findings (20, 96). However, responses during low flow in the brachial artery appear to be variable with multiple studies reporting individual responses that range from vasodilation to vasoconstriction or no change in diameter during the low flow period (5, 34, 38, 48).

Total Vessel Reactivity (TVR)

Some studies assessing both FMD and L-FMC have reported a relationship between the two variables. Harbin *et al.*, Harrison *et al.*, and Aizawa *et al.* found a significant positive correlation between brachial artery L-FMC and FMD, while Kranen *et al.* found no such relationship (5, 34, 38, 48). Spiro and colleagues found that there was a relationship between brachial artery L-FMC and FMD in healthy individuals, but not individuals with atherosclerosis (81). Aizawa *et al.* found that the low flow response independently predicted FMD (5). Similarly, studies assessing radial artery L-FMC and FMD have reported conflicting findings with some reporting the two measures are related (30, 96) and others not (28, 29). Total vessel reactivity (TVR, also referred to as modified FMD, vasoactive range etc.) is a composite score of FMD and L-FMC and is thought to provide a more comprehensive assessment of overall vascular function as it takes into consideration both the vasodilatory and vasoconstrictor functions of the endothelium (38, 42). However, there has been limited investigation into this novel measure, and there is no general consensus on how best to evaluate overall vascular range, as a variety of equations have been used previously (5, 9, 20, 38, 48, 69, 70). Two commonly used equations to calculate TVR are:

(1)
$$TVR \% = \frac{maximal \ diameter - occlusion \ diameter}{occlusion \ diameter} X \ 100$$

(2) $TVR \% = |FMD\% + L - FMC\%|$

1.1.3 Endothelial Independent Vasodilation

While the previously mentioned techniques focus on assessing endothelial dependent dilation and constriction, there are also tests used to evaluate vascular smooth muscle function, independent from the endothelium. A nitroglycerin challenge test (NTG) is often used to assess endothelial independent dilation (17). This challenge test can be performed along with either the infusion technique or FMD technique for assessing endothelial dependent dilation (11, 92). For the less invasive FMD test, sublingual nitroglycerin is administered to the participant (11). Nitroglycerin is a nitric oxide donor, and has been shown to promote vasodilation by directly operating on the vascular smooth

muscle (11, 17). The percent change in diameter resulting from the administration of nitroglycerine is then calculated to determine endothelial independent vasodilation (11).

1.2 REPEATABILITY OF MEASURES OF ENDOTHELIAL FUNCTION

1.2.1 Overview

In recent years there has been a general scientific focus on ensuring study results are reproducible or repeatable. In preclinical research it is estimated that 75-90% of study findings are not reproducible (8). Groups in both physiology and psychology have attempted to address these reproducibility issues. In 2014, the National Institute of Health put forward a plan to improve reproducibility that included improved training for researchers, ensuring a more systematic approached is used for assessing grant applications and introducing a data bank where researchers could access unpublished data (15). Similarly, peer reviewed scientific journals such as *Nature* have removed restrictions on the length of methods sections to improve reporting of procedural details (15). In psychology, the Open Science Collaboration created the Reproducibility Project, which sought to understand the level of reproducibility in psychological science (66).

While improving reproducibility across studies is important, researchers can also work to ensure the methods they use are repeatable. In this case, the aim is to determine how precise or variable the measurement is from a research test (26). This type of repeatability is referred to as test-retest reliability, and is determined by performing a test multiple times on the same individual, under the same conditions (26). There are a variety of statistical methods used to assess test-retest reliability, two of which are intraclass correlation coefficients (ICC) and Cohen's Kappa. ICCs provide a measure of both the correlation and agreement between two or more measurements (47). In general, ICCs are a ratio of the variance over the sum of the variance plus error (47, 77). ICC calculations produce a coefficient between 0-1, with 1 meaning perfect repeatability and 0 meaning poor repeatability (47). There are various forms of ICCs however, it is recommended that a two-way mixed effects model with absolute agreement be used for test-retest studies (47). Cohen's Kappa (κ) is similar to ICC in that it measures the degree of agreement or consistency between two different measurements (54). Cohen's κ can be performed on data that consists of at least two mutually exclusive categories (54). The calculation of Cohen's κ quantifies the agreement or consistency present in the measurement that is beyond the level of agreement that is expected by pure chance (54). Values of κ range from -1 to 1, a κ = -1 indicates a level of a agreement poorer than what is expected by chance, κ = 0 signifies that the level of agreement is no greater than what is expected by chance and a κ = 1 signifies perfect agreement (54).

1.2.2 Flow Mediated Dilation

There has been extensive research assessing the repeatability of FMD since its inception. In 1995, Sorensen *et al.* assessed the repeatability of brachial artery FMD in 40 adults (20 males, 20 females) aged 22-51 (79). The group measured FMD at 4 time points to assess between-day, between-week and between-month repeatability (79). The overall coefficient of variation (CV), a measure of variability, was 1.8%, indicating FMD was repeatable (79). Importantly, it appeared variation was not higher for the between-week and between-month analysis when compared to between-day variation, and variation between the sexes was similar (79). In contrast, Hardie and colleagues found that FMD

was poorly repeatable in a sample of 19 (6M, 13F) healthy adults (35). The group assessed FMD at two time points, separated by an average of 90 days, and found the mean between day difference in FMD was 0.57% with a standard deviation of 6.83% (35). Additionally, there appeared to be more variability in women when compared to men (35). However, neither of these studies controlled for the time of day the test was performed or the caffeine and food intake of the participants prior to testing (35, 79). Liang et al. assessed FMD in 30 (10M, 20F) healthy adults at two time points separated by an average of 2.5 weeks (52). Participants in this study were instructed to refrain from ingesting caffeine 8 hours prior to testing and ask to maintain their typical lifestyle for diet, physical activity and alcohol ingestion (52). The group reported a CV of 10.8% and concluded that FMD had satisfactory repeatability (52). Malik et al. assessed FMD in a group of 20 healthy men twice within a 10 day period (55). Their results indicated poor repeatability of FMD with a CV of 41% and an ICC=0.10 (55). Onkelinx and colleagues assessed the within-day and between-day repeatability of FMD in a cohort of 18 men with coronary artery disease (CAD) (65). They reported that FMD had excellent within-day (ICC=0.94) and between-day (ICC=0.99) repeatability (65). Charakida et al. assessed short (48 hours apart), medium (3 months apart) and long term (9 months apart) FMD repeatability in a group of 67 patients with coronary heart disease participating in a multisite trial (14). They found that short and medium term repeatability of FMD was similar (ICC=0.80, ICC=0.74), but long term repeatability was poorer (ICC=0.58) (14).

As there appears to be lack of consensus on the repeatability of FMD within and between studies, three guideline papers have been released in 2002, 2011 and 2019

outlining recommendations for researchers to improve FMD repeatability and standardized protocols (17, 86, 87). One major recommendation centered around the pneumatic cuff placement during FMD, as some groups place the cuff distal to the ultrasound probe and others place the cuff proximal (86). It was determined that FMD assessed with the cuff placement distal to the probe was largely mediated by NO, whereas FMD with the cuff placed proximal is mediated by NO and other factors (86, 87). Therefore, it was recommended that the cuff be placed distal to the probe to ensure the FMD measured is largely endothelial NO dependent (86, 87). Some recommendations have centered on participant preparation, as more is understood about factors that influence FMD. It is recommended that participants are fasted, avoid exercise, caffeine, medication and supplements prior to testing, as these are all known to influence FMD (17, 86, 87). As well, testing should be performed in a quiet temperature controlled room at approximately the same time of day if measures are repeated (17, 86). For premenopausal women it has also been recommended that testing occur at the same time point during the menstrual cycle, optimally between day 1-7 of the menstrual cycle when estrogen levels are low (86). Guidelines for image acquisition and analysis, protocols and sonographer training have also been introduced (17, 86, 87). Importantly, Greyling and colleagues performed a systematic review of studies assessing FMD repeatability and found that greater adherence to the 2011 guidelines was associated with less variation and improved repeatability of FMD (33).

1.2.3 Low Flow Mediated Constriction

Relatively few studies have investigated the repeatability of L-FMC, and there appear to be important differences between arteries in this measure. Gori and colleagues assessed the repeatability of L-FMC in the radial artery of 25 young healthy participants (28). They found that radial artery L-FMC had substantial repeatability, reporting an ICC of 0.80 (28). Similarly, Weissgerber and colleagues investigated the repeatability of radial artery L-FMC in a cohort of 23 pregnant and 27 non-pregnant women (96). They found that L-FMC had moderate and substantial repeatability within the two groups (ICC=0.56 non pregnant women, ICC=0.86 pregnant women) (96). In contrast, studies assessing the repeatability of brachial artery L-FMC have reported conflicting findings, with some reporting low levels of repeatability and others reporting high levels of repeatability. Harbin and colleagues assessed the repeatability of brachial artery L-FMC in a cohort of 26 young adults and reported that L-FMC diameters had weak intra- and interday repeatability (34). Similarly, Kranen et al. assessed the day-to-day repeatability of brachial artery L-FMC in 27 adolescents using both ICCs and Cohen's κ (48). The group found there was poor agreement for L-FMC between days ($\kappa = 0.04$) as well as poor repeatability between days (ICC=0.17) (48). In contrast, Bell and colleagues assessed the day-to-day repeatability of brachial artery L-FMC in a sample of 5 healthy young men and found almost perfect repeatability (ICC=0.87). Spiro et al. found that in a cohort of 10 healthy young adults, L-FMC was repeatable across a two hour time period (81). Unfortunately, there are currently no guidelines for L-FMC measurement and differences

in methods used exist between groups. Therefore, more work needs to be done to comprehensively understand the repeatability of L-FMC.

1.2.4 Total Vessel Reactivity

Only two studies have assessed the repeatability of TVR. Inaba and colleagues assessed TVR (calculated as the absolute value of FMD+L-FMC) in a cohort of 25 healthy men and found the measure had excellent repeatability (ICC = 0.93) (43). In contrast, Kranen *et al.* found that TVR (calculated as the difference between peak diameter and occlusion diameter relative to baseline diameter) had only moderate repeatability (ICC=0.52) in a group of 27 adolescents (48). Due to the relative lack of information regarding the repeatability of TVR, more research is required.

1.3 FACTORS INFLUENCING VASCULAR FUNCTION

1.3.1 Biological Sex

It is well known that differences in the cardiovascular system exist between males and females, and in the past few decades some research has focused on identifying and understanding these biological differences. Differences in baseline diameter between boys and girls have been documented in children as young as 6 years old, where as differences in FMD between the sexes have been shown to appear around age 17 (40). One main difference between the sexes is that unlike males, natural cycling females experience fluctuations in sex hormones (mainly estrogen and progesterone) across their menstrual cycle (1, 16). The menstrual cycle is comprised of three phases: the menstrual phase, the follicular phase and the luteal phase (25, 94). During the menstrual phase of the cycle both estrogen and progesterone levels are low (25). In the follicular phase estrogen

increases, with peak levels occurring just prior to ovulation (1, 25). Finally, during the luteal phase estrogen levels fall and progesterone levels increase (1, 94). Importantly, estrogen has been shown to influence endothelial function through two main pathways; the genomic and non genomic pathways (13). Endothelial cells express estrogen receptors, mainly estrogen receptor alpha (ER α) and estrogen receptor beta (ER β). In the genomic pathway, estrogen diffuses through the endothelial cell plasma membrane and binds to either ER α or ER β , which causes the receptors to dimerize into homo- or heterodimers (13). These dimers then enter the nucleus and initiate gene transcription, which leads to an increase of eNOS expression (13). In the non-genomic pathway, estrogen binds to cell surface ERa which results in the phosphorylation of eNOS, increasing the capacity of eNOS to produce NO (13). There is also limited evidence that fluctuations in estrogen may lead to fluctuations in ET-1 expression (68). Polderman and colleagues found that ET-1 was highest during the menstrual phase of the cycle and lowest during the follicular phase, when estrogen is elevated (68). Therefore, it has been suggested that fluctuations in estrogen that occur throughout the menstrual cycle may lead to fluctuations in vascular function.

In 1995, Hashimoto and colleagues were the first to investigate if fluctuations in endothelial function occurred across the menstrual cycle in healthy young naturally cycling females (39). The group assessed FMD in 17 males and 17 females, testing females in the menstrual phase, follicular phase and luteal phase (39). Their results indicated that females had similar levels of FMD when compared to males during the menstrual phase, but that in females FMD increased during both the follicular and luteal phases of the cycle (39). Since this landmark paper, many groups have assessed endothelial function across the menstrual cycle and have reported conflicting findings. Some group have found similar results (3, 37) whereas others have found no change in FMD across the menstrual cycle (19, 76, 98). However, there has been limited investigation of how L-FMC or TVR may fluctuate across the hormonal cycle. Rakobowchuk *et al.* found that neither L-FMC nor TVR fluctuated across the menstrual cycle (70). Additionally, there has been limited research evaluating potential sex differences in L-FMC or TVR. A study performed in in adults with varying levels of coronary artery disease found that radial artery L-FMC was lower in males when compared to females (31). In contrast, Norioka *et al.* found that male sex was an independent predictor of the presence of brachial artery L-FMC in a group of smokers (63). Therefore more research is warranted to understand if sex differences exist in L-FMC and TVR.

In addition to fluctuations of endogenous sex hormones, millions of females take oral contraceptive pills (OCP) that create a different pattern of hormonal fluctuation (78). There are two main OCP dosing patterns: monophasic dosing and tricyclic dosing; in monophasic dosing active pills with a stable concentration of ethinyl estradiol (EE) and progestin (synthetic form of progesterone) are taken for 21 days, with a 7 day placebo phase (78). In contrast, tricyclic dosing has a constant EE dose with an incremental increase in progestin every 7 days across the 21-day active pill phase, followed by a 7-day placebo phase (78). Researchers have assessed whether fluctuations of sex hormones that occur across an OCP cycle also influence vascular function. Similar to the lack of consensus in findings in natural cycling females, some groups have found increases in FMD in the active phase compared to the placebo phase (59, 89), while others have found no differences (76, 89, 90) or decreases in FMD (90). To our knowledge, no study to date has assessed L-FMC or TVR in females using OCPs.

1.3.2 Aging

It is well known that the risk for CVD increases with age (74). While endothelial dysfunction is often seen in association with CVD, evidence suggests that endothelial dysfunction occurs as a result of aging in the absence of CVD or CVD risk factors (74). It is thought that this dysfunction is mainly due to decreases in bioavailability of NO and increases in oxidative stress and inflammation (75). NO bioavailability is impacted by the availability of tetrahydrobiopterin (BH₄), an important cofactor necessary for the production of NO (75, 95) and BH₄ availability is lower in older adults (74, 95). As we age, there is also an increase in superoxide production without an concomitant increase in antioxidant production, leading to more oxidative stress overall (74). Donato and colleagues assessed brachial artery FMD and the level of oxidation present in the endothelial cells of both younger and older men (23). They found that brachial artery FMD was 50% lower in older men when compared younger men, and that decreases in FMD were associated with higher levels oxidative stress (23). Additionally, inflammatory markers such as interleukin-6 and C-reactive protein appear to be higher in older adults (22). Donato et al. assessed markers of inflammation and endothelial dependent vasodilation in older and younger adults and found higher levels of some inflammatory factors (interleukin-6, tumor necrosis factor- α and monocyte chemoattractant protein-1) and a transcription factor that increases inflammation (nuclear factor κ B) in older adults compared to younger adults (22). They also found lower levels of endothelial dependent dilation in the older adults when compared to the younger adults (22). It has also been suggested that an increase production of ET-1 might be responsible for lower levels of endothelial dependent vasodilation in older adults. Donato *et al.* found that the expression of ET-1 in vascular endothelial cells was greater in older men when compared to young men, and that ET-1 expression was inversely related to FMD (24). Wenner *et al.* found that ET_B receptor blockade increased vasodilation in response to local heating in postmenopausal women, whereas ET_B receptor blockade decreased vasodilation in young women (97). The group concluded these result indicate that ET_B receptor function is altered in women with aging (97).

Importantly, the impacts of aging on endothelial function appear to differ between men and women. Celermajer *et al.* was the first to report the presence of sex based differences in the age associated decline of endothelial function in 1994 (12). The group assessed FMD in 238 healthy individuals aged 15-72 and found that FMD begins to decline in men at approximately age 40, whereas women experience a decline in FMD around age 50 (12). Additionally, the rate of decline in FMD was greater in women when compared to men (12). The group concluded that the loss of estrogen that occurs during menopause was likely the reason for the different pattern of decline seen in women (12). In 2012, Moreau *et al.* evaluated FMD across the phases of the menopause transition in 132 healthy women (61). They observed a stepwise decrease in FMD from premenopause to postmenopause and found that lower FMD was associated with lower levels of estrogen (61). Gavin and colleagues assessed if changes in estrogen status from pre- to postmenopause altered endothelial ER α expression, and whether not this influenced FMD (27). They noted that ER α was lower in postmenopausal women when compared to premenopausal women in the late follicular phase, but the same as premenopausal women in the menstrual phase (27). Additionally, FMD was approximately 30% lower in postmenopausal women and was positively related to ER α expression in the overall group and in postmenopausal women (27). In contrast, it is unclear if aging influences L-FMC and TVR. One study found that brachial artery occlusion diameters were different between children and adults when compared to older adults (85).

1.3.3 Cardiovascular Disease

Both CVD and the presence of CVD risk factors have been shown to influence vascular function. Kuvin *et al.* found that individuals with coronary artery disease (CAD) had a significantly lower FMD when compared to those without CAD (50). Additionally, the group found that individuals with more CVD risk factors had a lower FMD than those with fewer risk factors (50). Celemajer *et* al. found children with familial hypercholesterolemia had lower levels of FMD compared to healthy children (11). Adachi *et al.* assessed FMD in 75 individuals with and without stroke and found that individuals with stroke caused by either large artery atherosclerosis or cardioembolism, but not small vessel occlusion had a significantly lower FMD when compared to those without stroke (2). The impact of CVD and CVD risk factors on L-FMC and TVR is less clear. L-FMC and TVR in the radial artery appears to be lower in individuals with CAD compared to those without CAD (28, 29). Importantly, Gori *et al.* found that L-FMC
progressively declines with worsening CAD severity (31). Dawson *et al.* found that radial artery L-FMC and TVR were reduced in individuals after radial artery catheterization (20). Gori *et al.* found that the addition of FMD and L-FMC to a model including CAD risk factors improved the model's ability to predict the presence of CAD (31). In the brachial artery, Spiro and colleagues found that L-FMC was greater in patients with unstable CAD compared to those with stable CAD (81). Aizawa and colleagues found that the presence of CVD risk factors did not influence L-FMC (5). Harrison *et al.* investigated FMD, L-FMC and TVR in a cohort of 46 adults with varying CVD risk factors and found that while there were no differences in FMD and L-FMC in the group with multiple risk factors when compared to healthy individuals, TVR was significantly lower in those with multiple risk factors (38).

1.3.4 Elevated Cardiovascular Disease Risk – Spinal Cord Injury and Cerebral Palsy

There are various populations that are thought to be at elevated risk for cardiovascular disease, two of which are individuals with spinal cord injury (SCI) and cerebral palsy (CP). Individuals with SCI appear to have a greater prevalence of CVD, as well as higher mortality from CVD when compared to ambulatory individuals (62). CVD risk factors, such as metabolic syndrome, dyslipidemia, obesity and physical inactivity, are also more common in individuals with SCI (62). These risk factors, along with autonomic dysfunction that often accompanies SCI, contribute to the development of CVD in this population (62). Our lab, along with others have assessed FMD in this population to determine how endothelial function may be altered by SCI (83, 88, 91).

Thijssen *et al.* assessed FMD in the superficial femoral artery (SFA) of 14 men, including 6 men with SCI (88). The group found greater SFA FMD in SCI individuals when compared to controls, however this difference was no longer apparent after correction for shear rate area under the curve (88). Our group assessed both brachial artery and SFA FMD in 8 individuals with SCI and 8 ambulatory individuals (91). We found that there were no differences in FMD in either of the arterial segments, however when FMD was scaled to baseline diameter, SCI individuals appeared to have lower SFA FMD than ambulatory individuals (91). It is unclear if L-FMC or TVR might be altered in SCI individuals.

Cerebral palsy (CP) is a disorder that results in motor impairments that impact an individual's physical activity levels (58). It has been show that physical activity levels of individuals with CP decline with age and worsening disease status (57, 58). Low levels of physical activity in this population have been associated with increased risk for cardiovascular disease (57). Researchers from our lab have worked to understand if endothelial function of adolescents and adults with CP is altered (56, 58). Martin *et al.* assessed brachial artery FMD in adolescents with and without CP and found children with CP participated in less vigorous physical activity, however there were no differences in FMD between adolescents with CP and non-ambulatory individuals with CP and found that there were no differences in FMD, even though individuals who were non-ambulatory participated in fewer minutes of moderate-vigorous physical activity (58). To our knowledge, no study has evaluated L-FMC or TVR in this population.

1.4 STUDY OBJECTIVES AND HYPOTHESES

The main purpose of this study was to assess FMD, L-FMC and TVR in a diverse population of individuals to determine:

(1) The repeatability of brachial artery FMD, L-FMC and TVR. We hypothesized that the repeatability of FMD, L-FMC and TVR would be moderate.

(2) How brachial artery FMD, L-FMC and TVR are influenced by age and how this relationship is moderated by sex, elevated cardiovascular disease risk and the presence of overt CVD. We predicted that FMD, L-FMC and TVR would decrease with aging, and that differences between the sexes would be evident. We hypothesized that the presence of CVD and elevated CVD risk would lead to a reduction in FMD, L-FMC and TVR.

1.5 REFERENCES

1. Abraham GE, Odell WD, Swerdloff RS, Hopper K. Simultaneous

Radioimmunoassay of Plasma FSH, LH, Progesterone, 17-Hydroxyprogesterone, and Estradiol-17/3 During the Menstrual Cycle. *J Clin Endocrinol Metab* 34: 312–318, 1971.

- Adachi U, Tsutsumi Y, Iijima M, Mizuno S, Uchiyama S, Kitagawa K.
 Differences in Endothelial Function between Ischemic Stroke Subtypes. *J Stroke Cerebrovasc Dis* 24: 2781–2786, 2015.
- Adkisson EJ, Casey DP, Beck DT, Gurovich AN, Martin JS, Braith RW.
 Central, peripheral and resistance arterial reactivity: fluctates during the phases of the menstrual cycle. *Exp Biol Med* 235: 111–118, 2010.
- Aikawa M, Arnout J, Boshoff C, Busse R, Carmeliet P, Dzau V, Erusalimsky J., Flammer A., Flemming I, Garcia-Cardena G, Gimbrone Jr M., Hoylaerts M., Jain M., Kurz D., Ley K, Libby P, Lijnen H., Luscher T., Melo L., Min W, Nikitenko L, Pachori A., Pober J., Reutershan J, Schneider M, Spieker LE. The Vascular Endothelium II. In: *Handbook of Experimental Pharmacology*. 2006.
- Aizawa K, Elyas S, Adingupu DD, Casanova F, Gooding KM, Strain WD, Shore AC, Gates PE. Reactivity to low-flow as a potential determinant for brachial artery flow-mediated vasodilatation. *Physiol Rep* 4: 1–12, 2016.
- 6. Anderson EA, Mark AL. Flow-mediated and reflex changes in large peripheral artery tone in humans. *Circulation* 79: 93–100, 1989.
- 7. Anderson TJ, Uehata A, Gerhard MD, Meredith IT, Knab S, Delagrange D,

Lieberman EH, Ganz P, Creager MA, Yeung AC, Selwyn AP. Close Relation of Endothelial Function in the Human Coronary and Peripheral Circulations. *J Am Coll Cardiol* 26: 1235–1241, 1995.

- Begley CG, Ioannidis JPA. Reproducibility in science: Improving the standard for basic and preclinical research. *Circ Res* 116: 116–126, 2015.
- Bell PL, Kelley ET, McCoy SM, Credeur DP. Influence of aerobic fitness on vasoreactivity in young men. *Eur J Appl Physiol* 117: 2075–2083, 2017.
- Bourque SL, Davidge ST, Adams MA. The interaction between endothelin-1 and nitric oxide in the vasculature : new perspectives. *Am J Physiol Regul Integr Comp Physiol* 300: R1288–R1295, 2011.
- Celermajer DS, Sorensen KE, Gooch VM, Spiegelhalter DJ, Miller OI, Sullivan ID, Llyod JK, Deanfield JE. Non-invasive detection of endothelial dysfunction in children and adults at risk of atherosclerosis. *Lancet* 340: 1111– 1115, 1992.
- Celermajer DS, Sorensen KE, Spiegelhalter DJ, Georgakopoulos D, Robinson J, Deanfield JE. Aging is Associated With Endothelial Dysfunction in Healthy Men Years Before the Age-Related Decline in Women. *J Am Coll Cardiol* 24: 471–476, 1994.
- Chakrabarti S, Morton JS, Davidge ST. Mechanisms of Estrogen Effects on the Endothelium : An Overview. *Can J Cardiol* 30: 705–712, 2014.
- 14. Charakida M, Groot E De, Loukogeorgakis SP, Khan T, Lusher T, Kastelein JJ, Gasser T, Deanfield JE. Variability and reproducibility of flow-mediated

dilatation in a multicentre clinical trial. Eur Heart J 34: 3501–3507, 2013.

- Collins FS, Tabak LA. NIH plans to enhance reproducibility. *Nature* 505: 612–613, 2014.
- Corker CS, Naftolin F, Exley D. Interrelationship between Plasma Luteinizing Hormone and Oestradiol in the Human Menstrual Cycle. *Nature* 222: 1069, 1969.
- 17. Corretti MC, Anderson TJ, Benjamin EJ, Celermajer D, Charbonneau F, Creager MA, Deanfield J, Drexler H, Gerhard-Herman M, Herrington D, Vallance P, Vita J, Vogel R. Guidelines for the ultrasound assessment of endothelial-dependent flow- mediated vasodilation of the brachial artery: a report of the International Brachial Artery Reactivity Task Force. *J Am Coll Cardiol* 39: 257–265, 2002.
- D'Agostino RB, Vasan RS, Pencina MJ, Wolf PA, Cobain M, Massaro JM, Kannel WB. General cardiovascular risk profile for use in primary care: The Framingham heart study. *Circulation* 117: 743–753, 2008.
- D'Urzo KA, King TJ, Williams JS, Silvester MD, Pyke KE. The impact of menstrual phase on brachial artery flow-mediated dilatation during handgrip exercise in healthy premenopausal women. *Exp Physiol* 103: 291–302, 2018.
- 20. Dawson EA, Alkarmi A, Thijssen DHJ, Rathore S, Marsman DE, Cable NT, Wright DJ, Green DJ. Low-flow mediated constriction is endotheliumdependent: Effects of exercise training after radial artery catheterization. *Circ Cardiovasc Interv* 5: 713–719, 2012.
- 21. Deanfield JE, Halcox JP, Rabelink TJ. Endothelial function and dysfunction:

Testing and clinical relevance. Circulation 115: 1285–1295, 2007.

- 22. Donato AJ, Black AD, Jablonski KL, Gano LB, Seals DR. Aging is associated with greater nuclear NF κ B, reduced I κ B α , and increased expression of proinflammatory cytokines in vascular endothelial cells of healthy humans. *Aging Cell* 7: 805–812, 2008.
- 23. Donato AJ, Eskurza I, Silver AE, Levy AS, Pierce GL, Gates PE, Seals DR. Direct Evidence of Endothelial Oxidative Stress With Aging in Humans Relation to Impaired Endothelium-Dependent Dilation and Upregulation of Nuclear FactorkB. *Circ Res* 100: 1659–1666, 2007.
- 24. Donato AJ, Gano LB, Eskurza I, Silver AE, Gates PE, Jablonski K, Seals DR. Vascular endothelial dysfunction with aging : endothelin-1 and endothelial nitric oxide synthase. *Am J Physiol - Hear Circ Physiol* 297: H425–H432, 2009.
- 25. Draper CF, Duisters K, Weger B, Chakrabarti A, Harms AC, Brennan L, Hankemeier T, Goulet L, Konz T, Martin FP, Moco S, van der Greef J. Menstrual cycle rhythmicity : metabolic patterns in healthy women. *Sci Rep* 8: 1– 15, 2018.
- Feder M. Test-Retest Reliability. *Encycl. Surv. Res. Methods* SAGE Publications, Inc.: 889–890, 2008.
- 27. Gavin KM, Seals DR, Silver AE, Moreau KL. Vascular Endothelial Estrogen Receptor α Is Modulated by Estrogen Status and Releated to Endothelial Function and Endothelial Nitric Oxide Synthase in Healthy Women. *J Clin Endocrinol Metab* 94: 3513–3520, 2009.

- 28. Gori T, Dragoni S, Lisi M, Stolfo G Di, Sonnati S, Fineschi M, Parker JD. Conduit Artery Constriction Mediated by Low Flow A Novel Noninvasive Method for the Assessment of Vascular Function. J Am Coll Cardiol 51: 1953–1958, 2008.
- 29. Gori T, Grotti S, Dragoni S, Lisi M, Stolfo G Di, Sonnati S, Fineschi M,
 Parker JD. Assessment of vascular function : flow-mediated constriction
 complements the information of flow- mediated dilatation. *Heart* 96: 141–147, 2010.
- 30. Gori T, Henning U Von, Muxel S, Schaefer S, Fasola F, Vossler M, Schnorbus B, Binder H, Parker JD, Munzel T. Both flow-mediated dilation and constriction are associated with changes in blood flow and shear stress : Two complementary perspectives on endothelial function. *Clin Hemorheol Microcirc* 64: 255–266, 2016.
- Gori T, Muxel S, Damaske A, Radmacher MC, Fasola F, Schaefer S, Schulz A, Jabs A, Parker JD, Munzel T. Endothelial function assessment: Flow-mediated dilation and constriction provide different and complementary information on the presence of coronary artery disease. *Eur Heart J* 33: 363–371, 2012.
- Green DJ, Jones H, Thijssen D, Cable NT, Atkinson G. Flow-mediated dilation and cardiovascular event prediction: Does nitric oxide matter? *Hypertension* 57: 363–369, 2011.
- Greyling A, van Mil ACCM, Zock PL, Green DJ, Ghiadoni L, Thijssen DH.
 Adherence to guidelines strongly improves reproducibility of brachial artery flow-

mediated dilation. Atherosclerosis 248: 196-202, 2016.

- 34. Harbin MM, Ostrem JD, Evanoff NG, Kelly AS, Dengel DR. Intra- and interday reproducibility of low-flow mediated constriction response in young adults. *Clin Physiol Funct Imaging* 38: 502–507, 2017.
- 35. Hardie KL, Kinlay S, Hardy D., Wlodarczyk J, Silbergerg J, Fletcher P. Reproducibility of brachial ultrasonography and flow-mediated dilatation (FMD) for assessing endothelial function. *Aust NZ J Med* 27: 649–652, 1997.
- Harris RA, Nishiyama SK, Wray DW, Richardson RS. Ultrasound assessment of flow-mediated dilation. *Hypertension* 55: 1075–1085, 2010.
- Harris RA, Tedjasaputra V, Zhao J, Richardson RS. Premenopausal Women Exhibit an Inherent Protection of Endothelial Function Following a High-Fat Meal. *Reprod Sci* 19: 221–228, 2012.
- Harrison M, Parkhurst K, Tarumi T, Lin H, Tanaka H. Low flow-mediated constriction : prevalence, impact and physiological determinant. *Clin Physiol Funct Imaging* 31: 394–398, 2011.
- 39. Hashimoto M, Akishita M, Eto M, Ishikawa M, Kozaki K, Toba K, Sagara Y, Taketani Y, Orimo H, Ouchi Y. Modulation of Endothelium-Dependent Flow-Mediated Dilatation of the Brachial Artery by Sex and Menstrual Cycle. *Circulation* 92: 3431–3435, 1995.
- 40. Hopkins ND, Dengel DR, Stratton G, Kelly AS, Steinberger J, Zavala H, Marlatt K, Perry D, Naylor LH, Green DJ. Age and sex relationship with flowmediated dilation in healthy children and adolescents. *J Appl Physiol* 119: 926–

933, 2015.

- Hubert HB, Feinleib M, McNamara PM, Castelli WP. Obesity as an Independent Risk Factor for Cardiovascular Disease : A 26-year Follow-up of Participants in the Framingham Heart Study. *Circulation* 67: 968–977, 1983.
- Humphreys RE, Green DJ, Cable NT, Thijssen DHJ, Dawson EA. Low-flow mediated constriction : the yin to FMD's yang. *Expert Rev Cardiovasc Ther* 12: 557–564, 2014.
- 43. Inaba H, Takeshita K, Uchida Y, Hayashi M, Okumura T, Hirashiki A,
 Yoshikawa D, Ishii H, Yamamoto K, Nakayama T, Hirayama M, Matsumoto H, Matsushita T, Murohara T. Recovery of Flow-Mediated Vasodilatation after Repetitive Measurements Is Involved in Early Vascular Impairment : Comparison with Indices of Vascular Tone. *PLoS One* 9: 1–9, 2014.
- Kannel WB, McGee D. Diabetes and Cardiovascular Disease The Framingham Study. *Jama* 241: 2035–2038, 1979.
- Kannel WB, McGee D, Gordon T. A General Cardiovascular Risk Profile : The Framingham Study. *Am J Cardiol* 36: 46–51, 1976.
- Khimji A, Rockey DC. Endothelin Biology and disease. *Cell Signal* 22: 1615– 1625, 2010.
- Koo TK, Li MY. A Guideline of Selecting and Reporting Intraclass Correlation Coefficients for Reliability Research. *J Chiropr Med* 15: 155–163, 2016.
- Kranen SH, Bond B, Williams CA, Barker AR. Reliability of low-flow vasoreactivity in the brachial artery of adolescents. *J Clin Ultrasound* 47: 133–138,

2019.

- 49. Kuchan MJ, Frangos A. Shear stress regulates endothelin-I release via protein kinase C and cGMP in cultured endothelial cells. *Am J Physiol Hear Circ Physiol* 33: H150–H156, 1993.
- Kuvin JT, Patel AR, Sliney KA, Pandian NG, Rand WM, Udelson JE, Karas RH. Peripheral Vascular Endothelial Function Testing as a Noninvasive Indicator of Coronary Artery Disease. *J Am Coll Cardiol* 38: 1843–1849, 2001.
- Levenson J, Simon A, Pithois-Merli I. Brachial arterial changes in response to wrist occlusion in normotensive and hypertensive men. *AJP Hear Circ Physiol* 253: H217–H224, 1987.
- Liang Y, Teede H, Kotsopoulos D, Shiel L, Cameron JD, Dart AM, McGrath BP. Non-invasive measurements of arterial structure and function : repeatability, interrelationships and trial sample size. *Clin Sci* 95: 669–679, 1998.
- 53. Ludmer P, Selwyn AP, Shook T, Wayne R, Mudge G, Alexander RW, Ganz P. Paradoxical Vasoconstriction Induced by Acetylcholine in Atherosclerotic Coronary Arteries. N Engl J Med 315: 1046–1051, 1986.
- Mabmud SM. Cohen's Kappa. *Encycl. Reserach Des.* SAGE Publications, Inc.: 188–189, 2012.
- Malik J, Wichterle D, Haas T, Melenovsky V, Simek J, Stulc T. Repeatability of Noninvasive Surrogates of Endothelial Function. *Am J Cardiol* 94: 693–696, 2004.
- 56. Martin AA, Cotie LM, Timmons BW, Gorter JW, MacDonald MJ. Arterial

Structure and Function in Ambulatory Adolescents with Cerebral Palsy Are Not Different from Healthy Controls. *Int J Pediatr* 2012: 1–8, 2012.

- 57. McPhee P, Wong-Pack M, Obeid J, MacDonald MJ, Timmons W, Gorter JW. Differences In Cardiovascular Health in Ambulatory Persons with Cerebral Palsy. *J Rehabil Med* 50: 892–897, 2018.
- McPhee PG, Gorter JW, Cotie LM, Timmons BW, Bentley T, MacDonald MJ. Associations of non-invasive measures of arterial structure and function, and traditional indicators of cardiovascular risk in adults with cerebral palsy. *Atherosclerosis* 243: 462–465, 2015.
- Meendering JR, Torgrimson BN, Miller NP, Kaplan PF, Minson CT. A combined oral contraceptive containing 30 mcg ethinyl estradiol and 3.0 mg drospirenone does not impair endothelium-dependent vasodilation. *Contraception* 82: 366–372, 2010.
- 60. Moncada S, Higgs A. L-ARGININE NITRIC OXIDE PATHWAY. *N Engl J Med* 329: 2002–2012, 1993.
- 61. Moreau KL, Hildreth KL, Meditz AL, Deane KD, Kohrt WM. Endothelial Function Is Impaired across the Stages of the Menopause Transition in Healthy Women. J Clin Endocrinol Metab 97: 4692–4700, 2012.
- Myers J, Lee M, Kiratli J. Cardiovascular Disease in Spinal Cord Injury. *Am J Physiol Med Rehabil* 86: 1–11, 2007.
- 63. Norioka N, Takemoto Y, Kobayashi M, Makuuchi A, Yoshikawa J, Yamazaki
 Y, Kamiyama Y, Shuto T, Yoshiyama M. Low-flow mediated constriction

incorporated indices as indicators of cardiovascular risk in smokers. *Atherosclerosis* 251: 132–138, 2016.

- Okumura K, Yasue H, Matsuyama K, Ogawa H, Mokikami Y, Obata K,
 Sakaino N. Effect of Acetylcholine on the Highly Stenotic Coronary Artery : Difference Between the Constrictor Response of the Infarct-Related Coronary Artery and That of the Noninfarct-Related Artery. *J Am Coll Cardiol* 19: 752–758, 1992.
- Onkelinx S, Cornelissen V, Goetschalckx K, Thomaes T, Verhamme P,
 Vanhees L. Reproducibility of different methods to measure the endothelial function. *Vasc Med* 17: 79–84, 2012.
- 66. Open Science Collaboration. An Open, Large-Scale, Collaborative Effort to
 Estimate the Reproducibility of Psychological Science. *Perspect Psychol Sci* 7:
 657–660, 2012.
- 67. **OpenStax**. Anatomy and Physiology. OpenStax, 2013.
- Polderman KH, Stehouwer CDA, van Kamp GJ, Schalkwijk CG, Gooren LJG. Modulation of Plasma Endothelin Levels by the Menstrual Cycle. *Metabolism* 49: 648–650, 2000.
- 69. Rakobowchuk M, Harris E, Taylor A, Baliga V, Cubbon RM, Rossiter HB, Birch KM. Heavy and moderate interval exercise training alters low-flowmediated constriction but does not increase circulating progenitor cells in healthy humans. *Exp Physiol* 97: 375–385, 2012.
- 70. Rakobowchuk M, Parsloe ER, Gibbins SE, Harris E, Birch KM. Prolonged

Low Flow Reduces Reactive Hyperemia and Augments Low Flow Mediated Constriction in the Brachial Artery Independent of the Menstrual Cycle. *PLoS One* 8: 1–8, 2013.

- 71. Ross R. The pathogenesis of atherosclerosis : a perspective for the 1990s. *Nature* 362: 801–809, 1993.
- Sakurai T, Yanagisawa M, Takuwa Y, Miyazaki H, Kimura S, Goto K,
 Masaki T. Cloning of a cDNA encoding a non-isopeptide-selective subtype of endothelin receptor. *Nature* 348: 732–735, 1990.
- Schlaich MP, John S, Langenfeld MRW, Lackner KJ, Schmitz G, Schmieder RE. Does Lipoprotein (a) Impair Endothelial Function? *J Am Coll Cardiol* 31: 359–365, 1998.
- Seals DR, Jablonski KL, Donato AJ. Aging and vascular endothelial function in humans. *Clin Sci* 120: 357–375, 2011.
- 75. Seals DR, Kaplon RE, Gioscia-Ryan RA, Larocca TJ. You're Only as Old as Your Arteries : Translational Strategies for Preserving Vascular Endothelial Function with Aging. *Physiology* 29: 250–264, 2014.
- 76. Shenouda N, Priest SE, Rizzuto VI, MacDonald MJ. Brachial artery endothelial function is stable across a menstrual and oral contraceptive pill cycle, but lower in premenopausal women than age-matched men. *Am J Physiol Circ Physiol* 315: H366–H374, 2018.
- Shrout PE, Fleiss JL. Intraclass Correlations : Uses in Assessing Rater Reliability. *Psychol Bull* 86: 420–428, 1979.

- Shufelt CL, Bairey Merz CN. Contraceptive Hormone Use and Cardiovascular Disease. *J Am Coll Cardiol* 53: 221–231, 2009.
- 79. Sorensen KE, Celermajer DS, Spiegelhalter DJ, Georgakopoulos D, Robinson J, Thomas O, Deanfield JE. Non-invasive measurement of human endothelium dependent arterial responses : accuracy and reproducibility. *Br Hear J* 74: 247–253, 1995.
- Spieker LE, Lüscher TF, Noll G. ETA receptors mediate vasoconstriction of large conduit arteries during reduced flow in humans. *J Cardiovasc Pharmacol* 42: 315–318, 2003.
- 81. Spiro JR, Digby JE, Ghimire G, Mason M, Mitchell AG, Ilsley C, Donald A, Dalby MCD, Kharbanda RK. Brachial artery low-flow-mediated constriction is increased early after coronary intervention and reduces during recovery after acute coronary syndrome : characterization of a recently described index of vascular function. *Eur Heart J* 32: 856–866, 2011.
- Stary HC. Evolution and Progression of Atherosclerotic Lesions in Coronary Arteries of Children and Young Adults. *Arteriosclerosis* 9: 119-32, 1989.
- 83. Stoner L, Sabatier M, VanhHiel L, Groves D, Ripley D, Palardy G, McCully
 K. Upper vs. Lower Extremity Arterial Function After Spinal Cord Injury. *J Spinal Cord Med* 29: 138–146, 2006.
- 84. Sun ZDY, Cheriyan J. Non-invasive measurements of arterial function : What?When? Why should we use them? *Heart* 0: 1–9, 2019.
- 85. Thijssen DHJ, van Bemmel MM, Bullens LM, Dawson EA, Hopkins ND,

Tinken TM, **Black MA**, **Hopman MTE**, **Cable NT**, **Green DJ**. The impact of baseline diameter on flow-mediated dilation differs in young and older humans. *Am J Physiol Heart Circ Physiol* 295: H1594–H1598, 2008.

- 86. Thijssen DHJ, Black MA, Pyke KE, Padilla J, Atkinson G, Harris RA, Parker B, Widlansky ME, Tschakovsky ME, Green DJ. Assessment of flow-mediated dilation in humans : a methodological and physiological guideline. *Am J Physiol Hear Circ Physiol* 300: 2–12, 2011.
- 87. Thijssen DHJ, Bruno RM, van Mil ACCM, Holder SM, Faita F, Greyling A, Zock PL, Taddei S, Deanfield JE, Luscher T, Green DJ, Ghiadoni L. Expert consensus and evidence-based recommendations for the assessment of flowmediated dilation in humans. *Eur Heart J* 0: 1–14, 2019.
- Thijssen DHJ, Kooijman M, de Groot PCE, Bleeker MWP, Smits P, Green
 DJ, Hopman MTE. Endothelium-dependent and -independent vasodilation of the superficial femoral artery in spinal cord-injured subjects. *J Appl Physiol* 104: 1387–1393, 2008.
- 89. Thompson AK, Przemska A, Vasilopoulou D, Newens KJ, Williams CM. Combined Oral Contraceptive Pills Containing Desogestrel or Drospirenone Enhance Large Vessel and Microvasculature Vasodilation in Healthy Premenopausal Women. *Microcirculation* 18: 339–346, 2011.
- 90. Torgrimson BN, Meendering JR, Kaplan PF, Minson CT. Endothelial function across an oral contraceptive cycle in women using levonorgestrel and ethinyl estradiol. *Am J Physiol - Hear Circ Physiol* 292: H2874–H2880, 2007.

- 91. Totosy de Zepetnek JO, Ditor DS, Au JS, MacDonald MJ. Impact of shear rate pattern on upper and lower limb conduit artery endothelial function in both spinal cord-injured and able-bodied men. *Exp Physiol* 100: 1107–1117, 2015.
- 92. Tousoulis D, Antoniades C, Stefanadis C. EVALUATING ENDOTHELIAL FUNCTION IN HUMANS : A GUIDE TO INVASIVE AND NON-INVASIVE TECHNIQUES. *Heart* 91: 553–558, 2005.
- Vane J, Anggard E, Botting R. Regulatory Functions of the Vacular Endothelium. N Engl J Med 323: 27–36, 1990.
- 94. Vanputte C, Regan J, Russo A., Tate P, Stephens T., Seeley R. Seeley's Anatomy and Physiology. 10th ed. McGraw-Hill Education, 2013.
- 95. Wadley AJ, Veldhuijzen Van Zanten JJCS, Aldred S. The interactions of oxidative stress and inflammation with vascular dysfunction in ageing : the vascular health triad. *Age (Omaha)* 35: 705–718, 2013.
- 96. Weissgerber TL, Davies GAL, Tschakovsky ME. Low flow-mediated constriction occurs in the radial but not the brachial artery in healthy pregnant and nonpregnant women. *J Appl Physiol* 108: 1097–1105, 2010.
- 97. Wenner MM, Sebzda KN, Kuczmarski AV, Pohlig RT, Edwards DG. ET B receptor contribution to vascular dysfunction in postmenopausal women. Am J Physiol Regul Integr Comp Physiol 313: 51–57, 2019.
- 98. Williams JS, Stimpson TV, Tremblay JC, Fenuta AM, Pyke KE. The influence of acute hyperglycaemia on brachial artery flow-mediated dilatation in the early and late follicular phases of the menstrual cycle. *Exp Physiol* 104: 957–966, 2019.

- 99. Yanagisawa M, Kurihara H, Kimura S, Tomobe Y, Kobayashi M, Mitsui Y, Yazaki Y, Goto K, Masaki T. A novel potent vasoconstrictor peptide produced by vascular endothelial cells. *Nature* 332: 411–415, 1988.
- 100. Yasue H, Matsuyama K, Matsuyama K, Okumura K, Morikami Y, Ogawa H. Responses of Angiographically Normal Human Coronary Arteries to Intracoronary Injection of Acetylcholine by Age and Segment Possible Role of Early Coronary Atherosclerosis. *Circulation* 2: 482–490, 1990.
- 101. Statistics Canada. Table 13-10-0394-01 Leading causes of death, total population, by age group.

CHAPTER 2: MANUSCRIPT

Determining the Repeatability of Low Flow Mediated Constriction and Total Vessel Reactivity in the Brachial Artery of Humans

By: Vanessa I. Rizzuto, Katherine D. Currie, Ninette Shenouda, Natalie T. D'Isabella,

Patrick G. McPhee, Julia O. Totosy de Zepetnek, Joey P. Bacauanu, Audra A. Martin,

Lisa M. Cotie, Jem L. Cheng, Austin J. Cameron, Greg M. McGill, Jelmer H. van

Puffelen, Jason S. Au, Ada Tang, Brian Timmons, Jan Willem Gorter, Maureen J.

MacDonald

2.1 ABSTRACT

Endothelial function is the ability of an artery to vasodilate that is often assessed in the peripheral vasculature using a flow mediated dilation (FMD) test. While FMD has been shown to be a valuable tool, it may not ideally capture overall vascular function. Two novel measures, low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and total vessel reactivity (TVR) have been introduced to provide a complementary vascular assessment to FMD, however little is known about the repeatability of L-FMC and TVR, particularly in the brachial artery. Additionally, it is unclear how L-FMC and TVR might be influenced by aging or the presence of cardiovascular disease (CVD) or elevated CVD risk and if these measures differ between the sexes. Therefore the main purpose of this investigation was to assess the day-to-day repeatability of FMD, L-FMC and TVR in the brachial artery of humans. The secondary purpose was to assess how FMD, L-FMC and TVR change with aging and if this relationship was influenced by sex or the presence of CVD or elevated CVD risk. 375 participants (age: 37 ± 22) were included in the overall study, which included both retrospective and prospective data. 98 participants (age: 34 ± 19) underwent two FMD tests; as such they were included in the repeatability analysis. For all participants brachial artery endothelial function was assessed using a FMD test. A 30 second image was taken at 4 minutes of cuff occlusion to capture the low flow response. The between day repeatability of FMD was substantial (ICC = 0.68). TVR was moderate (ICC = 0.50) and L-FMC was slight (ICC = 0.01). FMD and TVR (ρ = -0.24, ρ = -0.19, p < 0.005) were associated with age, however there was no relationship between age and L-FMC. These relationships persisted in individuals with CVD and elevated CVD risk,

and sex did not moderate the relationship between age and any of our vascular outcomes. These results indicate that brachial artery FMD and TVR are relatively repeatable, however L-FMC is not repeatable. As well, it appears that while age is associated with a decrease in FMD and TVR, there is no such relationship between age and L-FMC.

2.2 INTRODUCTION

Arterial endothelial function refers to the ability of endothelial cells to produce vasodilation (4, 43). Endothelial function is commonly assessed in the peripheral vasculature using the non-invasive flow mediated dilation (FMD) dilation test (44). Importantly, FMD has been shown to be predictive of future cardiovascular events in both symptomatic and asymptomatic individuals (43). While FMD has been shown to be a valuable tool for assessing endothelial function, some have argued that it does not capture overall endothelial function, particularly the full expression of vascular range including vasoconstriction and vasodilation (17, 25). As a result, two novel measures of endothelial function, low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and total vessel reactivity (TVR) have been introduced to address some of the apparent limitations of FMD (16). L-FMC is a measure of arterial diameter during a low blood flow state that is meant to provide information on resting vascular tone and vasoconstriction capacity (16, 17, 19). The information required to determine L-FMC can be acquired during the occlusion phase of a traditional FMD test (16). It is thought that L-FMC is mediated by an increased production of endothelin-1 (ET-1) and a decreased production of certain vasodilators (endothelial derived hyperpolarizing factor, prostaglandins) (16). TVR is a composite score of both FMD and L-FMC and is thought to provide a more comprehensive

assessment of vascular function in comparison to either index alone (23, 25). While these two novel measures of vascular function can potentially improve our understanding of endothelial function, little is known about their repeatability, particularly when assessed in the brachial artery. Previous studies assessing the repeatability of brachial artery L-FMC have reported conflicting findings, with some reporting that L-FMC has good within and between day repeatability, while others reporting that L-FMC has poor repeatability in adolescents and young adults (3, 21, 27, 42). The very limited research available that assessed the repeatability of brachial artery TVR has found either almost perfect (26) or moderate repeatability (27) in adolescents and healthy young adults.

It is well known that aging influences endothelial function and it is thought that a combination of a decrease in nitric oxide (NO) bioavailability, an increase in inflammatory factors and reactive oxygen species are responsible for the age related decline in vascular function (38). As such, studies have reported higher levels of reactive oxygen species and inflammation along with lower FMD (11, 12). While decreases in FMD with age have been well documented, little is known about how aging influences L-FMC and TVR. A study by Gori *et al.* found that older age (>65 years) was associated with lower L-FMC (19). To our knowledge, no study has comprehensively the effects of aging of L-FMC and TVR.

Endothelial function has been shown to vary between the sexes. Hashimoto *et al.* were the first to show that natural cycling women have higher levels of FMD during the follicular and luteal phase when compared to men, however in their study FMD during the menstrual phase was similar between men and women (24). Since that early report, a

variety of studies have assessed FMD across the menstrual cycle and have either reported increases or no change in FMD across the menstrual cycle (1, 10, 22). Recent work from our lab found there were no changes in FMD across both a natural menstrual cycle or oral contraceptive pill cycle, however once scaled to baseline diameter, women had lower levels of FMD when compared to men (40). Important sex differences are also present with aging, as women appear to show a decline in FMD later in life compared to men, and the rate of decline in FMD with aging is greater in women compared to men (5). Additionally, Moreau *et al.* found FMD progressively decreased across the phases of the menopause transition (34). Until now, very little work has assessed potential sex differences in L-FMC and TVR. One study found that L-FMC did not change across the menstrual cycle (37). A study by Gori *et al.* found that male sex was associated with lower radial artery L-FMC and Norioka *et al.* found that male sex was associated with the presence of brachial artery L-FMC (19, 35).

Endothelial function has been shown to be reduced in individuals with CVD and elevated CVD risk. Kuvin *et al.* found individuals with coronary artery disease (CAD) had lower levels of FMD and that the number of cardiovascular disease (CVD) risk factors was associated with FMD (28). Little is known about the influence of CVD and CVD risk factors on L-FMC. Gori *et al* found that both radial artery L-FMC and TVR were lower in individuals with CAD and that L-FMC was negatively correlated with CAD severity (16, 17, 19). Aizawa *et al.* found the presence of CVD risk factors did not influence L-FMC (2). In agreement with this finding, Harrison *et al* found no differences in FMD and L-FMC between individuals with and without CVD risk factors, however TVR appeared lower in those individuals with CVD risk factors when compared to those without CVD risk factors. (23).

Given the work to date, the main purposes of this study were to assess FMD, L-FMC and TVR in a diverse population of individuals to determine: (1) the repeatability of brachial artery FMD, L-FMC and TVR and (2) how brachial artery FMD, L-FMC and TVR are influenced by age, sex, elevated cardiovascular disease risk and the presence of overt CVD. We hypothesized that the repeatability of FMD, L-FMC and TVR would be moderate and that FMD, L-FMC and TVR would decrease with aging. Furthermore, we hypothesized that differences between the sexes would be evident, such that men would show a decline in both FMD and L-FMC earlier in life than women and that the presence of CVD or elevated CVD risk would lead to a reduction in FMD, L-FMC and TVR.

2.3 METHODS

2.3.1 Participants

Retrospective data along with prospective data were used for the present investigation. Our retrospective data set included 355 participants that previously underwent at least one FMD test in our laboratory. This data set consisted of individuals ranging from six to eighty-one years of age, including healthy young adults, individuals with spinal cord injury, individuals with cerebral palsy, individuals with stroke, individuals with coronary artery disease and healthy older adults. The FMD results from many of these studies have been published elsewhere (6–9, 32, 33, 39–41, 45). All of the data was collected using a similar FMD protocol as described below. This cohort also consists of data from forty participants (age <18 years old) taking part in the SKIP

(School-age Kids" health from early Investment in Physical activity) study (data not yet published).

80 participants from the retrospective cohort had undergone repeated testing; therefore, the data from these individuals were used for the day-to-day repeatability analysis. We controlled for hormonal fluctuations in both natural cycling women and women taking oral contraceptive pills. For natural cycling women we used data from two visits that occurred during the menstrual phase of the menstrual cycle. For women on oral contraceptive pills we used two visits that occurred during the active phase of a pill cycle, as repeat data was not available during the placebo phase. As some studies were intervention studies that had randomized baseline visits, we used the first two visits based on chronological order. Additionally, we only utilized baseline (or pre-intervention) data from any study that had an intervention component.

For our observational analysis, we utilized the first visit for any participants that underwent multiple testing visits. Additionally, the SKIP study is a longitudinal study assessing various measures within school-aged children across a three-year period. As such, we only utilized data from the first year of the study.

In addition to our retrospective data set, we collected prospective data from 20 individuals (14 women, 6 men) who were recruited from McMaster University using poster advertisements as well as advertisements in a local newspaper. Individuals were required to be 35-80 years of age to address the age ranges where our retrospective data was most sparse. Postmenopausal women were included if they had not experienced menses for >1 year and were not currently taking hormone replacement therapy. No

premenopausal women were recruited in the prospective cohort. Participants needed to be free of active cardiovascular or cerebrovascular disease to be included in the prospective portion of the study. The study was approved by the Hamilton Integrated Research Ethics Board (HiREB #5291).

Study ID	Number of Participants
RAM	50
SFCP	39
САМО	34
SKIP	40
SCI	34
CAD	26
TR	25
TVR	20
NESTLE	18
CAMS	12
AC	16
AM	20
ASPEN	10
SPEC	9

Table	1. Li	st of S	Studies

AB - SCI	8
ACUTEENDO	7
EDS	4
COS	3
TOTAL	375

RAM – Repeatability of Arterial Measures, SFCP – Stay Fit Cerebral Palsy: Cardiovascular Health, CAMO – Cardiovascular Health and Mobility in community older adults, SKIP – school-age kids health from early investment in physical activity, SCI – Cardiovascular and metabolic health in spinal cord injury, CAD – Vascular adaptations to low-volume HIIT in coronary artery disease, TR – Endothelial adaptations to SIT vs END vs Control, TVR – Total Vessel Reactivity, NESTLE – Step reduction in older adults, CAMS – Cardiovascular Health and Mobility after stroke, AC – Sex-differences in response to a single bout of SIT, AM – Arterial Measures, ASPEN – Artery Function Responses to Changes in Blood Flow, SPEC – Speckle Tracking Study, AB – SCI – Cardiovascular and metabolic health in able bodied individuals, ACUTE ENDO – acute endothelial function, EDS – exercise dilation study, COS - CHOICES: Cardiovascular/Health Outcomes in spinal cord injury.

2.3.2 Study Design

All study visits for prospective data collection took place in the Vascular Dynamics Lab at McMaster University. All participants attended one familiarization visit. At the familiarization visit participants were screened to ensure they were eligible to take part in the study. Participants provided informed consent and were given a demonstration of the FMD technique, however no data was acquired at this visit.

Prior to the testing visits, participants were instructed to refrain from vigorous physical activity for 24 hours, as well to have fasted overnight for at least 10 hours. Testing visits took place in the morning between the hours of 7:00am-12:00pm to control for diurnal variation. At the start of the first testing visit anthropometric measurements including body weight and height were collected.

For postmenopausal women and men, data was collected during two study visits

scheduled at the same time of day on two different days separate by at least 24 hours. For postmenopausal women a blood sample was collected at the start of all visits. For men, one blood sample was collected at the start of one of the two visits, of which was randomized for each participant. Immediately following the blood draw, participants were fitted with three electrocardiography electrodes (AD Instruments, Colorado Springs, CO) that were used to record heart rate throughout the duration of the protocol. Participants had ten minutes of supine rest, after which blood pressure was assessed using an automated, oscillometric blood pressure device (Dinamap ProSeries, Batesville, IN). Blood pressure was assessed once every minute, for at least three minutes. The first measure of blood pressure was discarded, and the second and third measures were averaged. However, if the second and third measures were greater than 5mmHg apart, one additional measurement was collected. The two closest measures of blood pressure were then averaged.

2.3.3 Outcome Measures

2.3.3.2 Venous Blood Draw

A 16.0mL venous blood sample was collected at the start of each visit for women and at the start of one visit for men. Blood was collected in four 4.0mL serum blood collection tubes (BD Vacutainer Plus, Red BD Hemogard Closure, Franklin Lakes, NJ) and set aside to clot for at least 45 minutes. Following coagulation, the tubes were spun at 4000rpm for ten minutes in a centrifuge set to 4°C (Sorvall Legend XTR Centrifuge, Thermo Fisher Scientific, Waltham, MA). Serum was aliquoted into three 1.5mL eppendorfs and frozen at -20°C. Frozen serum samples were brought to the Core Laboratory at the McMaster University Medical Centre for analysis of endogenous estradiol (Architect Estradiol Chemiluminescent Microparticle Immunoassay, Abbott Laboratories, Abbott Park, IL), progesterone (Architect Progesterone Chemiluminescent Microparticle Immunoassay, Abbott Laboratories, Abbott Park, IL), and testosterone (Immulite 2000 Total Testosterone Chemiluminescent Enzyme Immunoassay, Siemens Healthcare Diagnostics, Tarrytown, NY).

2.3.3.3 Flow Mediated Dilation (FMD)

A Duplex ultrasound (Vivid Q, GE Medical Systems, Horten, Norway) along with a 12 MHz linear array probe was used to simultaneously assess brachial artery diameter and mean blood velocity. A single lead ECG was connected to the ultrasound to simultaneously collect heart rate. At the start of the test, a pneumatic cuff was placed on the participant's right forearm and a baseline image of the right brachial artery was taken for thirty seconds. The cuff was then rapidly inflated to 200 mmHg and remained inflated for five minutes. An additional Duplex image of the brachial artery was acquired at four minutes of occlusion for thirty seconds. The cuff was then rapidly deflated at five minutes, and a cineloop was taken in Duplex mode for three minutes to capture the reactive hyperemia response. Ultrasound images were then prepared for offline analysis using a software program (Sante DICOM Editor). First raw images were transferred from the ultrasound to a computer. Individual frames were then extracted at or before every R spike of the cardiac cycle. The extracted frames were then merged into a single loop for all baseline, four-minute and reactive hyperemia images. For analysis, a semi-automated edge tracking software (Arterial Measurement System II Image and Data Analysis, Gothenburg; Sweden) was used to determine brachial artery diameter at all three time points.

Flow mediated dilation was calculated by subtracting the mean baseline diameter from the maximum diameter reached during reactive hyperemia using the following equations to determine absolute and relative FMD:

(1) FMD (mm) = maximum diameter-baseline diameter

(2) FMD (%) =
$$\frac{\text{maximum diameter-baseline diameter}}{\text{baseline diameter}} \times 100$$

Low flow mediated constriction was calculated by subtracting the mean baseline diameter from the mean occlusion diameter using the following equations to determine absolute and relative L-FMC:

(3) L-FMC (mm) = occlusion diameter-baseline diameter

(4) L-FMC % =
$$\frac{\text{occlusion diameter-baseline diameter}}{\text{baseline diameter}} \times 100$$

Total vessel reactivity was calculated by subtracting the occlusion diameter from the maximum diameter using the following equation:

(5) TVR % = $\frac{\text{maximum diameter-occlusion diameter}}{\text{occlusion diameter}} \times 100$

2.3.3.4 Nitroglycerin Challenge Test (NTG)

For 194 of 375 participants, a nitroglycerin challenge test (NTG) was used to assess smooth muscle function. After the FMD test participants were given 10 minutes of supine rest. Following the rest period, a thirty-second baseline image of the brachial artery was taken. A 0.4 mg dose of nitroglycerin (NTG) was then administered sublingually to the participant. Following NTG administration, a thirty-second image was obtained every minute for ten minutes. Images were then prepared for offline analysis and analyzed as described above. The absolute and relative diameter change after NTG administration was calculated using the following equations:

(6) Absolute NTG (mm) = peak NTG-baseline NTG

(7) Relative NTG (%) =
$$\frac{\text{peak NTG-baseline NTG}}{\text{baseline NTG}} \times 100$$

2.3.3.5 Mean Blood Velocity & Shear Rate

Mean blood velocity signals were collected during the baseline, occlusion and reactive hyperemia phases of the test while the ultrasound was in Duplex mode. A spectral analysis system (Neurovision 500M TCD, Multigon Instruments, Yonkers, NY, USA) was used to perform a Fast Fourier transformation function on the acquired audio signals from the ultrasound to generate intensity weighted mean blood velocity (MBV) signals. A Powerlab system (Powerlab model ML870, AD Instruments, Colorado Springs, CO, USA) was then used to sample the MBV signal and convert the analog signals to digital which were then analyzed offline using LabChart software (LabChart 8, AD Instruments, Colorado Springs, CO, USA). For reactive hyperemia MBV and arterial diameters were then averaged into 5-cycle rolling average bins and used to calculate blood flow and shear rate using the following equations:

(8) Blood flow
$$\left(\frac{mL}{min}\right) = (\pi r^2 \times MBV) \times 60$$
 where $r = arterial diameter/2$
(9) Shear rate $(s^{-1}) = \frac{MBV \times 8}{arterial diameter}$

Differences in the retrospective cohort

While our FMD acquisition and analysis has remained relatively consistent over

the years of the studies included in this analysis, there are some differences between studies in the retrospective cohort. Some studies included a familiarization visit (where participants were given a demonstration of the FMD technique, but no data was acquired), while others did not. The fasting period for studies included in the retrospective dataset ranged from 4-12 hours (8, 9, 32, 33, 39-41, 45). Similarly, the period of time the participant was instructed to refrain from exercise ranged from 12-24 hours. The rest period prior to vascular testing ranged from 10-20 minutes. A majority of studies utilized a GE Vivid Q ultrasound with a 12 MHz linear array probe (6-8, 33, 39-41, 45), while one study utilized the GE System FiVe with a 10 MHz linear array probe (32). Studies also utilized a slightly different cuff placement, ranging from 3-10cm away from the antecubital fossa, however all cuff placement was distal to the brachial artery assessment site. One study had a different protocol for acquiring the ultrasound images during the FMD test; they acquired a baseline image 3 heart cycles in duration, after cuff deflation they collected blood velocity signals for 30 seconds, after which they collected an image 3 heart cycles in duration every 15 seconds until 3 minutes after cuff deflation (32). The nitroglycerin challenge test protocol also varied between studies. One study gave participants 15 minutes of rest before NTG and acquired ultrasound images of the brachial artery at every two minutes after nitroglycerin administration (45). Another study acquired images that were 10 heart cycles in duration at baseline and every minute after nitroglycerin administration (8).

2.3.4 Statistical Analysis

Statistical Package for the Social Sciences (SPSS Inc., Version 25.0, Chicago IL)

was used for all analyses. We utilized intraclass correlation coefficients (ICCs, two way mixed, absolute agreement) to determine the repeatability of FMD, L-FMC and TVR. ICC cut off values are as follows: poor < 0, slight 0 - 0.2, fair 0.21-0.4, moderate 0.41 -0.60, substantial 0.61 - 0.80, almost perfect 0.81-1 (29). Sample size calculations were based on previous research assessing the repeatability of L-FMC using ICC, Sample. Size in Rstudio (Version 1.1.423) to estimate a sample size if the ICC value is between 0.2-0.3. The sample size required to detect an ICC in this range with $\alpha = 0.05$ and $\beta = 0.80$ fell between 83 – 192 participants. As a secondary measure of repeatability for L-FMC, we utilized Cohen's Kappa to measure the level of agreement between the two repeat visits. Relative L-FMC at each visit was assigned a label as follows: > 0 was labeled "dilate", = 0 was labeled "no change" and < 0 was labeled "constriction". To determine if a relationship existed between age and our vascular measures we utilized Spearmen's correlation coefficients as our data were non-parametric upon visual inspection. To determine if sex moderated the relationship between age and our vascular measures, we utilized a moderated multiple regression with sex as the dichotomous moderator variable and also assessed potential between day differences in hemodynamic variables using a signed rank test. Potential differences in between day endothelial independent dilation were assessed using paired-sample t-tests.

2.4 RESULTS

FMD data was available in 375 participants for the observational study and repeat data was available in 98 participants for the repeatability analysis. From the 20 participants that were recruited, all 20 were included in the observational study analysis

and 18 were included in the repeatability investigation as one participant only completed one visit and another did not follow pretesting instructions at one visit. Participant characteristics are outlined in Table 2, while hemodynamic variables are outlined in Table 3 for the repeatability cohort and Table 4 for the observational cohort.

-	
Observational Cohort	
Sex	253M, 122F
Age (years)	37 ± 22
BMI	24.4 ± 5.8
Repeatability Cohort	
Sex	53M, 45F
Age (years)	34 ± 19
BMI	25.2 ± 5

 Table 2. Participant Characteristics

Data are presented as mean \pm standard deviation. M – males, F - females.

Repeatability Study

There were differences in systolic blood pressure (p<0.005), diastolic blood pressure (p=0.010) and mean arterial pressure (p=0.002) between the two visits, however there were no differences in heart rate (p=0.826). Data on FMD variables can be found in Table 5. We found that FMD had substantial repeatability (ICC=0.68), L-FMC had poor repeatability (ICC= 0.01) and TVR had moderate repeatability (ICC=0.50) in our cohort. At Visit 1 40.8% of individuals presented with constriction during low flow and 59.2% presented with dilation. Similarly, at Visit 2, 39.8% of individuals presented with constriction and 1% showed no change. 19 participants consistently presented with dilation at one visit and constriction at the other visit. In contrast, baseline, occlusion and peak arterial diameters all had almost

perfect repeatability (Table 5). Additionally, we found that there was poor agreement of L-FMC between the visits ($\kappa = 0.12$). We found that there were no differences in endothelial independent function between the two visits (Table 6). Blood analysis in the 20 prospective participants revealed all females were within normative values for postmenopausal women for estrogen and testosterone at both visits, however one female had slightly elevated progesterone at Visit 2. Males were within normative values for estrogen, progesterone and testosterone.

Tuble of Hellouyhumes, Repeauointy Conort			
	Visit 1	Visit 2	р
HR (bpm)	62 (15)	62 (15)	.862
SBP (mmHg)	116 (20)	113 (17)	<0.005
DBP (mmHg)	69 (9)	67 (7)	0.010
MAP (mmHg)	87 (8)	85 (7)	0.002

Table 3. Hemodynamics, Repeatability Cohort

Data are presented as medians with interquartile range. HR – heart rate, SBP – systolic blood pressure, DBP – diastolic blood pressure, MAP – mean arterial pressure. Results are from a sign rank test. n=87.

Observational Study

Vascular variables for the observational analysis can be found in Table 7. In our cohort 190 individuals experienced vasoconstriction during the low flow period (50.7%) while 185 presented with vasodilation (49.3%). Individuals who experienced vasoconstriction during low flow appeared to be slightly older than those who presented with vasodilation (38 vs. 35 years) and the percentage of men and women who experienced vasoconstriction were similar. Analysis revealed that there was a negative correlation between age and FMD (ρ = -0.24) as well as age and TVR (ρ = -0.19) however there was no correlation between age and L-FMC. To assess whether the presence of CVD or elevated CVD risk would alter this relationship, we reran the

correlations excluding healthy individuals (n = 124). Similarly to the overall observation cohort, we found that FMD and L-FMC were correlated with age (ρ = -0.41 p<0.005, ρ = - 0.43 p<0.005), however L-FMC was not correlated with age in the cohort with CVD and elevated CVD risk. Additionally we found that there was a positive correlation between FMD and L-FMC (ρ = 0.27, p<0.005). Our moderator analysis revealed sex did not moderate the relationship between age and any of our vascular measures.

 Table 4. Hemodynamics, Observational Cohort

	Mean ± Standard Deviation
HR (bpm) (n=322)	65 ± 12
SBP (mmHg) (n=362)	116 ± 17
DBP (mmHg) (n=362)	67 ± 10
MAP (n=305)	86 ± 11

Data are presented as mean \pm standard deviation. HR – heart rate, SBP – systolic blood pressure, DBP – diastolic blood pressure, MAP – mean arterial pressure.
	Visit 1	Visit 2	CV(%)	ICC
Baseline Diameter	3.87±0.76	3.89±0.74	2.4	0.97
Occlusion Diameter	3.88 ± 0.78	3.92 ± 0.74	2.6	0.97
Peak Diameter	4.09±0.76	4.12±0.74	2.4	0.96
Absolute FMD	0.22±0.10	0.23±0.10	13.1	0.63
FMD%	5.90±3.10	6.15±3.09	14.4	0.68
Absolute L-FMC	0.01±0.07	0.03±0.10	-	0.01
L-FMC%	0.33±1.89	0.90±2.92	-	0.01
TVR%	5.56 ± 2.80	5.25±3.19	36.3	0.50

Table 5. Vascular Variables, Repeatability Cohort

Data are presented as mean \pm standard deviation. FMD – flow mediated dilation, L-FMC – low flow mediated constriction, TVR – total vascular reactivity, CV – coefficient of variation, ICC – intraclass correlation coefficient.

Tuble of Through Jerni Chancinge Test, Trepedationary Conort					
	Visit 1	Visit 2	р		
Baseline Diameter (mm)	3.71±0.71	3.71±0.70	0.80		
Peak Diameter (mm)	4.50±0.75	4.48±0.75	0.37		
Absolute NTG (mm)	0.79±0.19	0.77±0.20	0.35		
NTG%	21.92±6.26	21.46±6.44	0.36		
TTP (minutes)	7±2	7±2	0.47		

Table 6. Nitroglycerin Challenge Test, Repeatability Cohort

Data are presented as mean \pm standard deviation. NTG – nitroglycerin challenge test, TTP – time to peak. Results are from a paired sample t-test. N=78 for all variables except TTP V2 where n=77.

	Mean ± Standard Deviation
Baseline Diameter	3.79±0.82
Occlusion Diameter	3.79±0.82
Peak Diameter	4.03±0.84
Absolute FMD	0.24±0.13
FMD%	6.55±3.91
Baseline Blood Flow (n = 215)	50.61±33.98
Peak Blood Flow (n = 215)	358.25±166.33
Peak Shear Rate (n = 223)	964.42±544.53
Shear Rate AUC (n = 205)	23234.50±17603.69
Absolute L-FMC	-0.001 ± 0.12
L-FMC%	0.01±3.31
TVR%	6.61±4.55
Baseline NTG Diameter (n=194)	3.97±0.71
Peak NTG Diameter (n=194)	4.75±0.79
Absolute NTG (n=194)	0.78±0.23
NTG% (n=194)	20.09±6.11
NTG TTP (n=190)	7±2

 Table 7. Vascular Variables, Observation Cohort

Results are presented as mean \pm standard deviation. FMD – flow mediated dilation, L-FMC – low flow mediated constriction, TVR – total vascular reactivity, NTG – nitroglycerin challenge test, TTP – time to peak. n=375 unless otherwise stated.



Figure 1. Associations between age and [A] flow mediated dilation (FMD), [B] low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and [C] total vessel reactivity (TVR). A significant association was found between age and FMD and age and TVR but not age and L-FMC.



Figure 2. Associations between age and [A] flow mediated dilation (FMD) [B] low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and [C] total vessel reactivity (TVR) in individuals with cardiovascular disease or elevated cardiovascular disease risk. A significant association was found between age and FMD and age and TVR but not age and L-FMC.



Figure 3. Lines depict individual participant responses across the two visits for [A] flow mediated dilation (FMD) [B] low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and [C] total vessel reactivity (TVR).



Figure 4. Correlation between low flow mediated constriction (L-FMC) and flow mediated dilation (FMD).

2.5 DISCUSSION

This is the first study to comprehensively assess the repeatability of both brachial artery L-FMC and TVR in a diverse cohort of individuals. Additionally, we are the first to directly investigate the relationship between age and L-FMC or TVR as well as the influence of sex on this relationship.

2.5.1 Repeatability Analysis

In contrast to our hypothesis, our results suggest that FMD is repeatable in the brachial artery, while L-FMC is not repeatable and TVR is only moderately repeatable. Our finding that brachial artery FMD is substantially repeatable is consistent with some, but not all, previous literature. Malik et al. assessed the between-day repeatability of brachial artery FMD within a ten day period in a cohort of twenty healthy men and found FMD had poor repeatability (ICC=0.10) (31). In contrast, Onkelinx et al. found brachial artery FMD had excellent between-day repeatability in a cohort of 18 patients with CAD (ICC=0.99) (36). Liang et al. assessed the repeatability of FMD in 30 adults across an average of 2.5 weeks and found a CV of 10.8% (30). In a recent systematic review, Grevling et al. found that greater adherence to current FMD guidelines was associated with less variation in FMD (20). As our lab follows a standard operating procedure for all FMD studies that was developed to follow the current guidelines, this may explain why we found FMD had substantial repeatability in our cohort. However, the data in our repeatability cohort came from multiple studies and was collected and analyzed by different individuals, despite a majority of repeat tests being analyzed by the same individuals within a participant. Additionally, there were some methodological differences between studies, such as different ultrasound equipment and pre-testing instructions. This between-study variation could result in greater variation in FMD and may explain why our level of repeatability was not as high as other studies.

Our study is the largest study to date to assess the repeatability of L-FMC in the brachial artery. Consistent with previous work, we found brachial artery L-FMC is highly variable both within, and between, individuals (2, 21, 23, 27). We also found that L-FMC was not repeatable between days in the brachial artery, however the repeatability of the occlusion diameter was almost perfect. Similar to our findings, Kranen et al. found that in a cohort of 27 adolescents L-FMC had poor repeatability (ICC= 0.17, $\kappa = 0.04$) however the occlusion diameter had almost perfect repeatability (ICC = 0.94) (27). Additionally, Harbin and colleagues found that brachial artery L-FMC was not repeatable within, or between, days (21). In contrast, Sprio et al. found that L-FMC in a cohort of 10 healthy adults was repeatable within a day (42). Similarly, Bell and colleagues found brachial artery L-FMC had almost perfect between-day repeatability in a cohort of 5 healthy young men (ICC=0.87) (3). There are a variety of potential reasons why these contradictory findings exist. First, both the studies by Bell et al. and Sprio et al. used relatively small sample sizes (n=5 and n=10 respectively) when compared to our study as well as those by Kranen et al. and Harbin et al. (3, 21, 27, 42). Using a sample size calculation we determined a much larger sample than n=5 or n=10 would be required to detect the presence of poor L-FMC repeatability. Additionally, both our study and the study by Kranen *et al.* utilized retrospective data. For our study this retrospective data included studies in which the data was collected and analyzed by different individuals, which could have increased the variability in our sample. It is also important to note that in all of the previous studies as well as our study, both the absolute and relative diameter change during low flow reported is quite small (3, 21, 27, 42). Therefore, it is possible that our equipment is not sensitive enough to accurately detect these small changes in diameter, or the error in our measurements is greater than the actual change in diameter. Either of these problems could be responsible for the variability observed in L-FMC present in the brachial artery in the current study, as well as the contradictory findings present in the literature. While guidelines exist for the assessment of FMD, no such guidelines have been developed for L-FMC. Differences in the timing of the low flow measurement and the definition of dilation/constriction exist in the literature, which could also be responsible for the observed differences seen between studies.

Our results indicate that TVR in the brachial artery is moderately repeatable (ICC = 0.50). There have been limited previous investigations into TVR, with only two groups previously assessing the repeatability of TVR in the brachial artery. Inaba *et al.* assessed TVR (calculated as the absolute value of FMD+L-FMC) in 25 healthy men and found the measure had almost perfect repeatability (ICC = 0.93) (26). In contrast, Kranen *et al.* assessed TVR (as the difference between peak and occlusion diameter relative to baseline diameter) in 27 adolescents and found brachial artery TVR had moderate repeatability (ICC = 0.52) (27). We calculated TVR as the difference between peak and occlusion diameter relative to occlusion diameter and found similar results to Kranen *et al.* In a follow up analysis, we also calculated TVR as the absolute value of FMD + L-FMC, another commonly used equation in the literature. The repeatability of this measure

(ICC=0.52) was similar to that observed for our previously calculated TVR measure. Regardless of the equation used, TVR is a composite score of FMD and L-FMC and as such, is influenced by variability present in both of these measures. As we reported poor L-FMC repeatability, the high level of variability in L-FMC likely influenced the repeatability of TVR. Importantly, we found that there were no between day differences in any of the nitroglycerin challenge test variables. These results indicate that smooth muscle function did not differ between the two visits, which is in accordance with previous work that found NTG was relatively repeatable between days (15).

2.5.2 Observational Analysis

Our study is the first to directly investigate the relationship between age and L-FMC and TVR. In agreement with our hypothesis, we found that both FMD and TVR were negatively associated with age, and in contrast we found that L-FMC was not significantly associated with age. It is thought that the age related decline in FMD is related to a decreases in NO bioavailability and increases in oxidative stress and inflammation (38). Our results are inline with previous studies that have reported a decline in FMD as age increases (5, 34). Additionally, we expected that TVR would show a similar decline with age to FMD, as TVR is a composite score of FMD and L-FMC. We postulated that L-FMC would be attenuated with age, as Gori *et al.* found that being over 65 years old was associated with lower radial artery L-FMC (19). However, our results suggest that there is no relationship between L-FMC and age. It is possible the contrasts in the results of different studies may be due to conflicting alterations in ET-1 and vascular structure that occur with aging. ET-1 has been shown to increase with age,

therefore increases in ET-1 could potentially lead to an increase, rather than a decrease in L-FMC (13, 38). However, Harrison *et al.* found that L-FMC was positively correlated with brachial artery pulse wave velocity, suggesting that increases in stiffness are related to an attenuation of L-FMC (23). Therefore, it is possible that the contradictory actions of increased ET-1 and arterial stiffening might counterbalance each other, leading to no change in L-FMC with aging. We expected that CVD and elevated CVD risk would lead to a reduction in FMD, L-FMC and TVR and thus, the relationship between age and our vascular measures would be altered. However, we found that the relationship between age and our vascular measures was maintained in our cohort of individuals with CVD and elevated CVD risk.

Surprisingly, we found that sex did not moderate the relationship between age and any of our vascular measures. Earlier work has found sex differences in FMD in both younger and older adults (5, 14, 24). It is possible that the different patient populations in our sample could have influenced our ability to detect an effect of sex. While we attempted to increase the number of middle aged and older adults through our prospective cohort, a larger portion of our sample included children and younger adults. As there are conflicting findings of sex differences in younger adults, it is possible that the greater number of these individuals in our observational cohort influenced the sex specific moderator analysis of our data. As we saw L-FMC was highly variable in our repeatability analysis, it is possible that any influence of sex on the relationship between age and L-FMC is imperceptible. As both the relationship between age and FMD and L-FMC was not moderated by sex, it was unsurprising that the relationship between TVR and age was also not moderated by sex.

Our results indicate there is a positive relationship between FMD and L-FMC. This suggests that reactivity to low flow influences the subsequent reactive hyperemia response and highlights the importance of assessing L-FMC alongside FMD. These findings are consistent with some (2, 18, 21, 23) but not all (16, 19, 27) studies that have previously assessed FMD and L-FMC. Importantly, it appears there are differences between the brachial artery and radial artery, as a majority of studies performed in the brachial artery have found a relationship between FMD and L-FMC (2, 21, 23), whereas those performed in the radial artery have not (16, 19). These findings highlight the potential for physiological differences between the two arterial beds.

2.5.3 Limitations and Future Directions

One major limitation of the present investigation is that our retrospective data included data from multiple studies that were collected and analyzed by different individuals. It is possible that having multiple sonographers and different individuals analyzing the ultrasound images could have increased the variation seen in our measurements. Additionally, there were slight differences in certain aspects of testing between the studies, such as the ultrasound equipment used and pretesting instructions, which could have influenced our results. While we found similar results to other studies that utilized healthy individuals, the inclusion of individuals with cardiovascular disease and elevated cardiovascular disease risk could have also increased the variability seen in our sample.

Future studies should continue to assess the repeatability of L-FMC and TVR and

guidelines for both of these measures should be developed if they are to be used as supplementary measurements to FMD. More work should be done to understand the mechanisms that are responsible for the low flow response and in particular address the dichotomy of dilatory and constrictor responses both within and between individuals. Additionally, more mechanistic studies should be performed in the brachial artery, as there has been relatively little research in this area and mechanistic studies may provide insight into why large variability exists between and within individuals. Finally, studies should focus on understanding other potential physiological factors that may influence L-FMC and TVR.

2.6 CONCLUSION

Our results indicate that FMD has substantial between day repeatability, while TVR is only moderately repeatable between days and L-FMC is not repeatable between days. Additionally we found that FMD and TVR were negatively associated with age, however L-FMC showed no relationship with age. Sex did not appear to moderate the relationship between age and any of our vascular measures and relationships between age and FMD and TVR persisted in our cohort of individuals with CVD and elevated CVD risk.

REFERENCES

- Adkisson EJ, Casey DP, Beck DT, Gurovich AN, Martin JS, Braith RW.
 Central, peripheral and resistance arterial reactivity: fluctates during the phases of the menstrual cycle. *Exp Biol Med* 235: 111–118, 2010.
- Aizawa K, Elyas S, Adingupu DD, Casanova F, Gooding KM, Strain WD, Shore AC, Gates PE. Reactivity to low-flow as a potential determinant for brachial artery flow-mediated vasodilatation. *Physiol Rep* 4: 1–12, 2016.
- 3. Bell PL, Kelley ET, McCoy SM, Credeur DP. Influence of aerobic fitness on vasoreactivity in young men. *Eur J Appl Physiol* 117: 2075–2083, 2017.
- Celermajer DS, Sorensen KE, Gooch VM, Spiegelhalter DJ, Miller OI, Sullivan ID, Llyod JK, Deanfield JE. Non-invasive detection of endothelial dysfunction in children and adults at risk of atherosclerosis. *Lancet* 340: 1111– 1115, 1992.
- Celermajer DS, Sorensen KE, Spiegelhalter DJ, Georgakopoulos D, Robinson J, Deanfield JE. Aging is Associated With Endothelial Dysfunction in Healthy Men Years Before the Age-Related Decline in Women. *J Am Coll Cardiol* 24: 471–476, 1994.
- Cheng JL, Au JS, MacDonald MJ. Peripheral artery endothelial function responses to altered shear stress patterns in humans. *Exp Physiol* 104: 1126–1135, 2019.
- 7. Cotie LM, Currie KD, McGill GM, Cameron AJ, McFadden AS, Phillips SM,

MacDonald MJ. Associations between measures of vascular structure and function and systemic circulating blood markers in humans. *Physiol Rep* 4: 1–7, 2016.

- Currie KD, Dubberley JB, McKelvie RS, MacDonald MJ. Low-Volume, High-Intensity Interval Training in Patients with CAD. *Med Sci Sports Exerc* 45: 1436– 1442, 2013.
- 9. **D'Isabella NT**. Vascular health in adults with and without stroke. 2016.
- D'Urzo KA, King TJ, Williams JS, Silvester MD, Pyke KE. The impact of menstrual phase on brachial artery flow-mediated dilatation during handgrip exercise in healthy premenopausal women. *Exp Physiol* 103: 291–302, 2018.
- 11. **Donato AJ, Black AD, Jablonski KL, Gano LB, Seals DR**. Aging is associated with greater nuclear NF κ B, reduced I κ B α , and increased expression of proinflammatory cytokines in vascular endothelial cells of healthy humans. *Aging Cell* 7: 805–812, 2008.
- Donato AJ, Eskurza I, Silver AE, Levy AS, Pierce GL, Gates PE, Seals DR. Direct Evidence of Endothelial Oxidative Stress With Aging in Humans Relation to Impaired Endothelium-Dependent Dilation and Upregulation of Nuclear FactorkB. *Circ Res* 100: 1659–1666, 2007.
- Donato AJ, Gano LB, Eskurza I, Silver AE, Gates PE, Jablonski K, Seals DR. Vascular endothelial dysfunction with aging : endothelin-1 and endothelial nitric oxide synthase. *Am J Physiol - Hear Circ Physiol* 297: H425–H432, 2009.
- 14. Gavin KM, Seals DR, Silver AE, Moreau KL. Vascular Endothelial Estrogen

Receptor α Is Modulated by Estrogen Status and Releated to Endothelial Function and Endothelial Nitric Oxide Synthase in Healthy Women. *J Clin Endocrinol Metab* 94: 3513–3520, 2009.

- Ghiadoni L, Faita F, Salvetti M, Cordiano C, Biggi A, Puato M, Di Monaco A, De Siati L, Volpe M, Ambrosio G, Gemignani V, Muiesan ML, Taddei S, Lanza GA, Cosentino F. Assessment of flow-mediated dilation reproducibility: A nationwide multicenter study. *J Hypertens* 30: 1399–1405, 2012.
- Gori T, Dragoni S, Lisi M, Stolfo G Di, Sonnati S, Fineschi M, Parker JD.
 Conduit Artery Constriction Mediated by Low Flow A Novel Noninvasive Method for the Assessment of Vascular Function. *J Am Coll Cardiol* 51: 1953–1958, 2008.
- 17. Gori T, Grotti S, Dragoni S, Lisi M, Stolfo G Di, Sonnati S, Fineschi M,
 Parker JD. Assessment of vascular function : flow-mediated constriction
 complements the information of flow- mediated dilatation. *Heart* 96: 141–147, 2010.
- Gori T, Henning U Von, Muxel S, Schaefer S, Fasola F, Vossler M, Schnorbus B, Binder H, Parker JD, Munzel T. Both flow-mediated dilation and constriction are associated with changes in blood flow and shear stress : Two complementary perspectives on endothelial function. *Clin Hemorheol Microcirc* 64: 255–266, 2016.
- Gori T, Muxel S, Damaske A, Radmacher MC, Fasola F, Schaefer S, Schulz A, Jabs A, Parker JD, Munzel T. Endothelial function assessment: Flowmediated dilation and constriction provide different and complementary

information on the presence of coronary artery disease. *Eur Heart J* 33: 363–371, 2012.

- Greyling A, van Mil ACCM, Zock PL, Green DJ, Ghiadoni L, Thijssen DH.
 Adherence to guidelines strongly improves reproducibility of brachial artery flowmediated dilation. *Atherosclerosis* 248: 196–202, 2016.
- Harbin MM, Ostrem JD, Evanoff NG, Kelly AS, Dengel DR. Intra- and interday reproducibility of low-flow mediated constriction response in young adults. *Clin Physiol Funct Imaging* 38: 502–507, 2017.
- Harris RA, Tedjasaputra V, Zhao J, Richardson RS. Premenopausal Women Exhibit an Inherent Protection of Endothelial Function Following a High-Fat Meal. *Reprod Sci* 19: 221–228, 2012.
- 23. Harrison M, Parkhurst K, Tarumi T, Lin H, Tanaka H. Low flow-mediated constriction : prevalence , impact and physiological determinant. *Clin Physiol Funct Imaging* 31: 394–398, 2011.
- Hashimoto M, Akishita M, Eto M, Ishikawa M, Kozaki K, Toba K, Sagara Y, Taketani Y, Orimo H, Ouchi Y. Modulation of Endothelium-Dependent Flow-Mediated Dilatation of the Brachial Artery by Sex and Menstrual Cycle. *Circulation* 92: 3431–3435, 1995.
- 25. Humphreys RE, Green DJ, Cable NT, Thijssen DHJ, Dawson EA. Low-flow mediated constriction : the yin to FMD's yang. *Expert Rev Cardiovasc Ther* 12: 557–564, 2014.
- 26. Inaba H, Takeshita K, Uchida Y, Hayashi M, Okumura T, Hirashiki A,

Yoshikawa D, Ishii H, Yamamoto K, Nakayama T, Hirayama M, Matsumoto H, Matsushita T, Murohara T. Recovery of Flow-Mediated Vasodilatation after Repetitive Measurements Is Involved in Early Vascular Impairment : Comparison with Indices of Vascular Tone. *PLoS One* 9: 1–9, 2014.

- 27. Kranen SH, Bond B, Williams CA, Barker AR. Reliability of low-flow vasoreactivity in the brachial artery of adolescents. *J Clin Ultrasound* 47: 133–138, 2019.
- Kuvin JT, Patel AR, Sliney KA, Pandian NG, Rand WM, Udelson JE, Karas RH. Peripheral Vascular Endothelial Function Testing as a Noninvasive Indicator of Coronary Artery Disease. *J Am Coll Cardiol* 38: 1843–1849, 2001.
- Landis JR, Koch GG. The Measurement of Observer Agreement for Categorical Data. *Biometrics* 33: 159–174, 1977.
- Liang Y, Teede H, Kotsopoulos D, Shiel L, Cameron JD, Dart AM, McGrath BP. Non-invasive measurements of arterial structure and function : repeatability, interrelationships and trial sample size. *Clin Sci* 95: 669–679, 1998.
- Malik J, Wichterle D, Haas T, Melenovsky V, Simek J, Stulc T. Repeatability of Noninvasive Surrogates of Endothelial Function. *Am J Cardiol* 94: 693–696, 2004.
- 32. Martin AA, Cotie LM, Timmons BW, Gorter JW, MacDonald MJ. Arterial Structure and Function in Ambulatory Adolescents with Cerebral Palsy Are Not Different from Healthy Controls. *Int J Pediatr* 2012: 1–8, 2012.
- 33. McPhee PG, Gorter JW, Cotie LM, Timmons BW, Bentley T, MacDonald

MJ. Associations of non-invasive measures of arterial structure and function , and traditional indicators of cardiovascular risk in adults with cerebral palsy. *Atherosclerosis* 243: 462–465, 2015.

- 34. Moreau KL, Hildreth KL, Meditz AL, Deane KD, Kohrt WM. Endothelial Function Is Impaired across the Stages of the Menopause Transition in Healthy Women. J Clin Endocrinol Metab 97: 4692–4700, 2012.
- 35. Norioka N, Takemoto Y, Kobayashi M, Makuuchi A, Yoshikawa J, Yamazaki Y, Kamiyama Y, Shuto T, Yoshiyama M. Low-flow mediated constriction incorporated indices as indicators of cardiovascular risk in smokers. *Atherosclerosis* 251: 132–138, 2016.
- 36. Onkelinx S, Cornelissen V, Goetschalckx K, Thomaes T, Verhamme P, Vanhees L. Reproducibility of different methods to measure the endothelial function. *Vasc Med* 17: 79–84, 2012.
- 37. Rakobowchuk M, Parsloe ER, Gibbins SE, Harris E, Birch KM. Prolonged Low Flow Reduces Reactive Hyperemia and Augments Low Flow Mediated Constriction in the Brachial Artery Independent of the Menstrual Cycle. *PLoS One* 8: 1–8, 2013.
- 38. Seals DR, Kaplon RE, Gioscia-Ryan RA, Larocca TJ. You're Only as Old as Your Arteries : Translational Strategies for Preserving Vascular Endothelial Function with Aging. *Physiology* 29: 250–264, 2014.
- 39. Shenouda N, Gillen JB, Gibala MJ, MacDonald MJ. Changes in brachial artery endothelial function and resting diameter with moderate-intensity continuous but

not sprint interval training in sedentary men. J Appl Physiol 123: 773-780, 2017.

- 40. Shenouda N, Priest SE, Rizzuto VI, Macdonald MJ. Brachial artery endothelial function is stable across a menstrual and oral contraceptive pill cycle, but lower in premenopausal women than age-matched men. Am J Physiol - Hear Circ Physiol 315: H366-374, 2018.
- Shenouda N, Skelly LE, Gibala MJ, MacDonald MJ. Brachial artery endothelial 41. function is unchanged after acute sprint interval exercise in sedentary men and women. Exp Physiol 103: 968-975, 2018.
- 42. Spiro JR, Digby JE, Ghimire G, Mason M, Mitchell AG, Ilsley C, Donald A, Dalby MCD, Kharbanda RK. Brachial artery low-flow-mediated constriction is increased early after coronary intervention and reduces during recovery after acute coronary syndrome : characterization of a recently described index of vascular function. Eur Heart J 32: 856–866, 2011.
- 43. Thijssen DHJ, Black MA, Pyke KE, Padilla J, Atkinson G, Harris RA, Parker B. Widlansky ME, Tschakovsky ME, Green DJ. Assessment of flow-mediated dilation in humans : a methodological and physiological guideline. Am J Physiol -*Hear Circ Physiol* 300: 2–12, 2011.
- Thijssen DHJ, Bruno RM, van Mil ACCM, Holder SM, Faita F, Greyling A, 44. Zock PL, Taddei S, Deanfield JE, Luscher T, Green DJ, Ghiadoni L, Expert consensus and evidence-based recommendations for the assessment of flowmediated dilation in humans. Eur Heart J 0: 1-14, 2019.
- 45. Totosy de Zepetnek JO, Ditor DS, Au JS, MacDonald MJ. Impact of shear rate 77

pattern on upper and lower limb conduit artery endothelial function in both spinal cord-injured and able-bodied men. *Exp Physiol* 100: 1107–1117, 2015.

APPENDICES

APPENDIX 1: RAW DATA

Shaded areas indicate missing data.

Repeatability Cohort

Participant Characteristics

Study ID	Sex	Age	Height	Weight	BMI
CAMS01	MALE	50	1.76	102.70	33.15
CAMS02	FEMALE	75	1.52	66.30	28.70
CAMS06	MALE	62	1.69	77.90	27.27
CAMS08	MALE	60	1.745	75.40	24.76
CAMS09	MALE	52	1.63	69.70	26.23
CAMS10	MALE	65	1.79	114.10	35.61
CAMS11	FEMALE	56	1.58	94.70	37.93
CAMS12	MALE	61	1.81	87.40	26.68
CAMS13	MALE	75	1.76	99.70	32.19
CAMS14	MALE	70	1.74	111.00	36.66
CAMS15	FEMALE	55	1.58	74.80	29.96
V2 CAMS01	MALE	50	1.76	102.70	33.15
V2 CAMS02	FEMALE	75	1.52	66.30	28.70
V2 CAMS06	MALE	62	1.69	77.90	27.27
V2 CAMS08	MALE	60	1.745	75.40	24.76
V2 CAMS09	MALE	52	1.63	69.70	26.23
V2 CAMS10	MALE	65	1.79	114.10	35.61
V2 CAMS11	FEMALE	56	1.58	94.70	37.93
V2 CAMS12	MALE	61	1.81	87.40	26.68
V2 CAMS13	MALE	75	1.76	99.70	32.19
V2 CAMS14	MALE	70	1.74	111.00	36.66
V2 CAMS15	FEMALE	55	1.58	74.80	29.96
RAM01 V1	MALE	21	1.84	86.8	25.64
RAM02 V1	MALE	21	1.82	88.9	26.84
RAM03 V1	MALE	22	1.76	67	21.63
RAM04 V1	MALE	21	1.87	82.1	23.48
RAM05 V1	MALE	21	1.65	63	23.14
RAM06 V1	MALE	21	1.82	73.6	22.22
RAM07 V1	MALE	21	1.68	72	25.51

RAM08 V1	MALE	24	1.79	67	20.91
RAM09 V1	MALE	21	1.81	62.7	19.14
RAM10 V1	MALE	23	1.76	86.2	27.83
RAM11 V1	MALE	19	1.74	74.4	24.57
RAM12 V1	MALE	20	1.89	76.5	21.42
RAM15 V1	MALE	19	1.79	85.7	27.49
RAM16 V1	MALE	21	1.83	73.4	21.92
RAM17 V1	MALE	20	1.79	71.6	22.35
RAM18 V1	MALE	21	1.78	86	27.14
RAM19 V1	MALE	21	1.86	81.1	23.44
RAM20 V1	MALE	21	1.67	71.5	25.64
RAM01 V2	MALE	21	1.84	86.8	25.64
RAM02 V2	MALE	21	1.82	88.9	26.84
RAM03 V2	MALE	22	1.76	67	21.63
RAM04 V2	MALE	21	1.87	82.1	23.48
RAM05 V2	MALE	21	1.65	63	23.14
RAM06 V2	MALE	21	1.82	73.6	22.22
RAM07 V2	MALE	21	1.68	72	25.51
RAM08 V2	MALE	24	1.79	67	20.91
RAM09 V2	MALE	21	1.81	62.7	19.14
RAM10 V2	MALE	23	1.76	86.2	27.83
RAM11 V2	MALE	19	1.74	74.4	24.57
RAM12 V2	MALE	20	1.89	76.5	21.42
RAM15 V2	MALE	19	1.79	85.7	27.49
RAM16 V2	MALE	21	1.83	73.4	21.92
RAM17 V2	MALE	20	1.79	71.6	22.35
RAM18 V2	MALE	21	1.78	86	27.14
RAM19 V2	MALE	21	1.86	81.1	23.44
RAM20 V2	MALE	21	1.67	71.5	25.64
RAM21 V1	FEMALE	20	1.54	46.3	19.52
RAM22 V1	FEMALE	20	1.575	46.4	18.70
RAM23 V1	FEMALE	26	1.55	43.9	18.27
RAM24 V1	FEMALE	19	1.59	56.4	22.31
RAM25 V1	FEMALE	22	1.61	52.2	20.14
RAM26 V1	FEMALE	21	1.64	62.1	23.09
RAM31 V1	FEMALE	23	1.55	48.3	20.10
RAM32 V1	FEMALE	24	1.6	66.7	26.05

RAM34 V1	FEMALE	18	1.56	54	22.19
RAM35 V1	FEMALE	32	1.63	60	22.58
RAM36 V1	FEMALE	20	1.57	57.4	23.29
RAM38 V1	FEMALE	22	1.58	46.5	18.63
RAM21 V2	FEMALE	20	1.54	46.3	19.52
RAM22 V2	FEMALE	20	1.575	46.4	18.70
RAM23 V2	FEMALE	26	1.55	43.9	18.27
RAM24 V2	FEMALE	19	1.59	56.4	22.31
RAM25 V2	FEMALE	22	1.61	52.2	20.14
RAM26 V2	FEMALE	21	1.64	62.1	23.09
RAM31 V2	FEMALE	23	1.55	48.3	20.10
RAM32 V2	FEMALE	24	1.6	66.7	26.05
RAM34 V2	FEMALE	18	1.56	54	22.19
RAM35 V2	FEMALE	32	1.63	60	22.58
RAM36 V2	FEMALE	20	1.57	57.4	23.29
RAM38 V2	FEMALE	22	1.58	46.5	18.63
V2RAM41	FEMALE	20	1.74	66.2	21.87
V2RAM43	FEMALE	26	1.65	60.5	22.22
V2RAM44	FEMALE	24	1.58	56.8	22.75
V2RAM46	FEMALE	20	1.65	60.5	22.22
V2RAM47	FEMALE	23	1.54	54	22.77
V2RAM48	FEMALE	19	1.67	103.8	37.22
V2RAM49	FEMALE	27	1.64	58.7	21.82
V2RAM50	FEMALE	18	1.58	47.2	18.91
V2RAM51	FEMALE	21	1.67	62.4	22.37
V2RAM52	FEMALE	18	1.62	51.7	19.70
V2RAM53	FEMALE	20	1.74	65.8	21.73
V2RAM54	FEMALE	21	1.69	59.2	20.73
V2RAM55	FEMALE	23	1.68	70.5	24.98
V2RAM56	FEMALE	19	1.65	47.2	17.34
V2RAM58	FEMALE	21	1.73	73	24.39
V2RAM59	FEMALE	20	1.58	64.4	25.80
V2RAM60	FEMALE	20	1.76	58.3	18.82
V2RAM61	FEMALE	27	1.66	59.6	21.63
V3RAM41	FEMALE	20	1.74	66.2	21.87
V3RAM43	FEMALE	26	1.65	60.5	22.22
V3RAM44	FEMALE	24	1.58	56.8	22.75

V3RAM46	FEMALE	20	1.65	60.5	22.22
V3RAM47	FEMALE	23	1.54	54	22.77
V3RAM48	FEMALE	19	1.67	103.8	37.22
V3RAM49	FEMALE	27	1.64	58.7	21.82
V3RAM50	FEMALE	18	1.58	47.2	18.91
V3RAM51	FEMALE	21	1.67	62.4	22.37
V3RAM52	FEMALE	18	1.62	51.7	19.70
V3RAM53	FEMALE	20	1.74	65.8	21.73
V3RAM54	FEMALE	21	1.69	59.2	20.73
V3RAM55	FEMALE	23	1.68	70.5	24.98
V3RAM56	FEMALE	19	1.65	47.2	17.34
V3RAM58	FEMALE	21	1.73	73	24.39
V3RAM59	FEMALE	20	1.58	64.4	25.80
V3RAM60	FEMALE	20	1.76	58.3	18.82
V3RAM61	FEMALE	27	1.66	59.6	21.63
ASPEN 1 V1	MALE	22	1.84	98.00	28.95
ASPEN 2 V1	MALE	23	1.68	60.50	21.44
ASPEN 3 V1	MALE	23	1.84	103.00	30.42
ASPEN 4 V1	MALE	21	1.81	80.50	24.57
ASPEN 5 V1	MALE	18	1.75	80.20	26.19
ASPEN 6 V1	MALE	20	1.73	77.00	25.73
ASPEN 7 V1	MALE	20	1.78	73.00	23.04
ASPEN 8 V1	MALE	22	1.80	74.00	22.84
ASPEN 9 V1	MALE	21	1.78	110.00	34.72
ASPEN 10 V1	MALE	30	1.80	65.50	20.22
ASPEN 1 V2	MALE	22	1.84	98.00	28.95
ASPEN 2 V2	MALE	23	1.68	60.50	21.44
ASPEN 3 V2	MALE	23	1.84	103.00	30.42
ASPEN 4 V2	MALE	21	1.81	80.50	24.57
ASPEN 5 V2	MALE	18	1.75	80.20	26.19
ASPEN 6 V2	MALE	20	1.73	77.00	25.73
ASPEN 7 V2	MALE	20	1.78	73.00	23.04
ASPEN 8 V2	MALE	22	1.80	74.00	22.84
ASPEN 9 V2	MALE	21	1.78	110.00	34.72
ASPEN 10 V2	MALE	30	1.80	65.50	20.22
V1 ACUTEENDO 1	MALE	25	1.85	91.00	26.60
V1 ACUTEENDO 2	MALE	22	1.81	91.50	27.90

		25	1 70	(7.50)	01 10
VI ACUTEENDO 3	MALE	25	1.79	67.50	21.10
V1 ACUTEENDO 4	MALE	22	1.63	71.50	26.90
V1 ACUTEENDO 5	MALE	21	1.69	65.50	22.90
V1 ACUTEENDO 6	MALE	21	1.83	84.50	25.20
V1 ACUTEENDO 7	MALE	25	1.83	75.00	22.40
V2 ACUTEENDO 1	MALE	25	1.85	91.00	26.60
V2 ACUTEENDO 2	MALE	22	1.81	91.50	27.90
V2 ACUTEENDO 3	MALE	25	1.79	67.50	21.10
V2 ACUTEENDO 4	MALE	22	1.63	71.50	26.90
V2 ACUTEENDO 5	MALE	21	1.69	65.50	22.90
V2 ACUTEENDO 6	MALE	21	1.83	84.50	25.20
V2 ACUTEENDO 7	MALE	25	1.83	75.00	22.40
EDS01	MALE	22	1.76	72	23.24
EDS02	MALE	20	1.8	59.7	18.43
EDS03	MALE	20	1.87	89.3	25.54
EDS04	MALE	24	1.82	91.1	27.50
EDS01 V2	MALE	22	1.76	72	23.24
EDS02 V2	MALE	20	1.8	59.7	18.43
EDS03 V2	MALE	20	1.87	89.3	25.54
EDS04 V2	MALE	24	1.82	91.1	27.50
TVR2	FEMALE	53	1.68	65.50	23.21
TVR3	MALE	79	1.84	80.74	23.85
TVR4	MALE	54	1.73	103.64	34.63
TVR5	MALE	38	1.92	86.36	23.43
TVR6	FEMALE	71	1.63	74.84	28.17
TVR7	MALE	71	1.75	74.80	24.42
TVR8	FEMALE	55	1.62	93.89	35.78
TVR9	MALE	55	1.76	107.50	34.70
TVR11	FEMALE	60	1.61	60.09	23.18
TVR12	FEMALE	67	1.60	64.54	25.21
TVR13	FEMALE	80	1.64	75.28	27.99
TVR14	FEMALE	58	1.77	87.98	28.08
TVR15	FEMALE	62	1.68	73.60	26.08
TVR16	FEMALE	60	1.66	58.86	21.36
TVR17	MALE	62	1.79	84.50	26.37
TVR18	FEMALE	73	1.54	107.16	45.18
TVR19	FEMALE	65	1.61	78.60	30.32
TVR20	FEMALE	67	1.63	72.50	27.29

V2TVR02	FEMALE	53	1.68	65.50	23.21
V2TVR03	MALE	79	1.84	80.74	23.85
V2TVR04	MALE	54	1.73	103.64	34.63
V2TVR05	MALE	38	1.92	86.36	23.43
V2TVR06	FEMALE	71	1.63	74.84	28.17
V2TVR07	MALE	71	1.75	74.80	24.42
V2TVR08	FEMALE	55	1.62	93.89	35.78
V2TVR09	MALE	55	1.76	107.50	34.70
V2TVR11	FEMALE	60	1.61	60.09	23.18
V2TVR12	FEMALE	67	1.60	64.54	25.21
V2TVR13	FEMALE	80	1.64	75.28	27.99
V2TVR14	FEMALE	58	1.77	87.98	28.08
V2TVR15	FEMALE	62	1.68	73.60	26.08
V2TVR16	FEMALE	60	1.66	58.86	21.36
V2TVR17	MALE	62	1.79	84.50	26.37
V2TVR18	FEMALE	73	1.54	107.16	45.18
V2TVR19	FEMALE	65	1.61	78.60	30.32
V2TVR20	FEMALE	67	1.63	72.50	27.29

Hemodynamics

Study ID	HR	SBP	DBP	МАР
CAMS01				
CAMS02				
CAMS06				
CAMS08				
CAMS09				
CAMS10				
CAMS11				
CAMS12				
CAMS13				
CAMS14				
CAMS15				
V2 CAMS01				
V2 CAMS02				
V2 CAMS06				
V2 CAMS08				

V2 CAMS09				
V2 CAMS10				
V2 CAMS11				
V2 CAMS12				
V2 CAMS13				
V2 CAMS14				
V2 CAMS15				
RAM01 V1	58	118	68	88
RAM02 V1	59	116	63	85
RAM03 V1	55	121	69	88
RAM04 V1	73	124	77	93
RAM05 V1	65	105	62	82
RAM06 V1	63	119	60	85
RAM07 V1	77	134	70	93
RAM08 V1	64	126	67	89
RAM09 V1	67	111	65	85
RAM10 V1	72	132	71	93
RAM11 V1	47	117	68	88
RAM12 V1	83	128	68	91
RAM15 V1	55	127	67	90
RAM16 V1	71	127	64	89
RAM17 V1	72	113	66	85
RAM18 V1	55	125	65	89
RAM19 V1	73	126	66	88
RAM20 V1	72	113	65	85
RAM01 V2	57	126	69	91
RAM02 V2	72	130	67	91
RAM03 V2	54	126	63	89
RAM04 V2	79	118	76	91
RAM05 V2	58	111	64	84
RAM06 V2	59	117	60	84
RAM07 V2	56	126	67	90
RAM08 V2	53	113	65	85

RAM09 V2	64	109	65	84
RAM10 V2	79	125	65	87
RAM11 V2	47	117	68	88
RAM12 V2	49	116	62	84
RAM15 V2	52	121	65	88
RAM16 V2	78	125	65	88
RAM17 V2	68	114	62	84
RAM18 V2	50	116	63	85
RAM19 V2	75	122	61	85
RAM20 V2	48	111	62	84
RAM21 V1	68	109	76	87
RAM22 V1	54	96	62	77
RAM23 V1	60	92	64	76
RAM24 V1	53	103	65	82
RAM25 V1	61	107	69	85
RAM26 V1	53	117	78	90
RAM31 V1	59	102	66	82
RAM32 V1	79	113	73	88
RAM34 V1	64	106	66	83
RAM35 V1	45	114	70	87
RAM36 V1	58	103	68	83
RAM38 V1	66	94	64	77
RAM21 V2	71	107	82	90
RAM22 V2	52	95	64	77
RAM23 V2	61	90	63	74
RAM24 V2	57	107	68	84
RAM25 V2	56	103	68	83
RAM26 V2	49	112	75	88
RAM31 V2	57	91	63	74
RAM32 V2	73	118	73	89
RAM34 V2	64	104	65	82
RAM35 V2	49	108	67	85
RAM36 V2	60	99	70	83

RAM38 V2	65	91	59	73
V2RAM41	70	95	62	77
V2RAM43	72	94	65	78
V2RAM44	74	102	65	81
V2RAM46	68	98	68	81
V2RAM47	55	101	61	79
V2RAM48	54	108	66	84
V2RAM49	74	109	74	86
V2RAM50	61	105	71	84
V2RAM51	80	99	64	80
V2RAM52	72	106	66	83
V2RAM53	56	107	66	84
V2RAM54	72	108	80	88
V2RAM55	62	107	66	83
V2RAM56	69	96	67	79
V2RAM58	59	116	70	89
V2RAM59	64	112	79	88
V2RAM60	60	91	63	75
V2RAM61	70	103	68	83
V3RAM41	70	95	63	77
V3RAM43	67	96	64	78
V3RAM44	83	101	68	83
V3RAM46	62	97	66	80
V3RAM47	57	96	60	77
V3RAM48	56	107	66	83
V3RAM49	64	110	75	87
V3RAM50	60	103	67	83
V3RAM51	67	99	64	80
V3RAM52	58	103	63	81
V3RAM53	54	104	64	82
V3RAM54	70	101	69	83
V3RAM55	68	105	64	82
V3RAM56	72	96	67	81

V3RAM58	48	105	63	81
V3RAM59	62	112	81	89
V3RAM60	67	106	70	84
V3RAM61	70	102	70	83
ASPEN 1 V1	55	112	58	80
ASPEN 2 V1	63	115	60	81
ASPEN 3 V1	62	148	79	106
ASPEN 4 V1	74	123	60	85
ASPEN 5 V1	69	121	63	86
ASPEN 6 V1	62	122	61	85
ASPEN 7 V1	59	127	72	93
ASPEN 8 V1	60	127	60	86
ASPEN 9 V1	51	128	75	94
ASPEN 10 V1	53	103	70	82
ASPEN 1 V2	70	131	60	87
ASPEN 2 V2	66	104	58	76
ASPEN 3 V2	73	118	65	86
ASPEN 4 V2	73	129	62	87
ASPEN 5 V2	60	130	68	93
ASPEN 6 V2	60	108	60	77
ASPEN 7 V2	69	121	62	85
ASPEN 8 V2	62	119	57	83
ASPEN 9 V2	55	121	77	93
ASPEN 10 V2	55	102	68	81
V1 ACUTEENDO 1	58	124	73	90
V1 ACUTEENDO 2	56	126	73	91
V1 ACUTEENDO 3	48	133	78	96
V1 ACUTEENDO 4	50	122	70	87
V1 ACUTEENDO 5	54	131	77	95
V1 ACUTEENDO 6	75	131	69	90
V1 ACUTEENDO 7	59	106	57	73
V2 ACUTEENDO 1	59	112	66	81
V2 ACUTEENDO 2	51	127	70	89

	1	1	1	1
V2 ACUTEENDO 3	52	108	64	79
V2 ACUTEENDO 4	43	115	68	84
V2 ACUTEENDO 5	53	121	70	87
V2 ACUTEENDO 6	74	133	67	89
V2 ACUTEENDO 7	64	99	55	70
EDS01	88.5	114.5	77.5	89
EDS02	72	114	68.5	87
EDS03	56	131	72	93
EDS04	67	123.7	70.3	89.3
EDS01 V2	72.5	123.5	76.5	93
EDS02 V2	54	117	72	88
EDS03 V2	77	115	65	86
EDS04 V2	68	117.7	73.3	90
TVR2	60.5	108	69.5	84.5
TVR3	59	141.5	79.5	104.5
TVR4	91.5	126	76.5	94
TVR5	49	116	71	89
TVR6	56.5	138	85.5	107.5
TVR7	65	126.5	74	95
TVR8	73	124.5	79	97
TVR9	64	115	69.5	85
TVR11	59	123	78	96.5
TVR12	60.5	117.5	75	92
TVR13	69.5	133.5	71.5	97.5
TVR14	55	112.5	75.5	76
TVR15	66	128.5	80	100.5
TVR16	51.5	92.5	58.5	71.5
TVR17	41.5	126	77	97
TVR18	60	140	69.5	98.5
TVR19	54.5	119	69.5	89
TVR20	73	139.5	76	101
V2TVR02	68	94.5	55.5	70
V2TVR03	80.5	138	85.5	106.5
V2TVR04	87.5	133	82.5	102
V2TVR05	50.5	119.5	69.5	89

V2TVR06	60.5	124	73	93.5
V2TVR07	66.5	121	73.5	91.5
V2TVR08	64.5	113	74	88.5
V2TVR09	63	113	67	84
V2TVR11	56	111	73	86.5
V2TVR12	66.5	113.5	68	85.5
V2TVR13	74.5	131	76	98.5
V2TVR14	56.5	111.5	65	83.5
V2TVR15	65.5	125	83.5	99.5
V2TVR16	63.5	96.5	67.5	78
V2TVR17	44.5	123.5	78.5	96.5
V2TVR18	58	145.5	72.5	103.5
V2TVR19	55	117.5	70	89.5
V2TVR20	75	122.7	70	91.3

Blood Analyses

Normative Values Postmenopausal Women: estradiol (<103 pmol/L), progesterone (<0.7 nmol/L), testosterone (\leq 1.5 nmol/L)

Normative Values Men: estradiol (<162 pmol/L), progesterone (<0.7 nmol/L), testosterone (4.5-26.6 nmol/L)

Study	Estradiol (pmol/L)		Progesterone	e (nmol/L)	Testosterone (nmol/L)		
ID	V1	V2	V1	V2	V1	V2	
TVR01							
TVR02	<92	<92	< 0.3	0.4	<0.7	1	
TVR03	99	N/A	0.6	N/A	15.2	N/A	
TVR04							
TVR05	N/A	<92	N/A	0.5	N/A	12.4	
TVR06	<92	<92	< 0.3	< 0.3	<0.7	<0.7	
TVR07	<92	N/A	0.6	N/A	12.8	N/A	
TVR08	<92		0.4		<0.7		
TVR09							
TVR10							
TVR11	<92	<92	< 0.3	0.4	<0.7	<0.7	
TVR12	<92	<92	0.4	0.4	<0.7	<0.7	
TVR13	<92		0.5		0.9		
TVR14		<92		< 0.3		<0.7	
TVR15	<92	<92	<0.3	< 0.3	< 0.7	<0.7	

TVR16	<92	<92	0.4	0.4	<0.7	<0.7
TVR17	N/A	<92	N/A	0.3	N/A	13.7
TVR18	<92	<92	0.4	0.9	<0.7	<0.7
TVR19		<92		< 0.3		<0.7
TVR20	<92	<92	< 0.3	< 0.3	< 0.7	<0.7

Vascular Variables

Study ID	BL	Peak	Time	Abs	% FMD	4 min	Abs L-	%L-FMC	TVR	ABS(FMD	LOW
	Diamete	Diameter	to	FMD		Diameter	FMC			+LFMC)	FLOW
	r	4.2.4	Peak	0.00	2.00	4.16	0.00	2.12	4.20	4.10	RESPONSE
CAMS01	4.20	4.34		0.09	2.06	4.16	-0.09	-2.13	4.28	4.18	Constrict
CAMS02	2.80	2.76		-0.04	-1.35	2.61	-0.19	-6.75	5.79	8.11	Constrict
CAMS06	4.33	4.52		0.19	4.27	4.40	0.07	1.52	2.71	5.79	Dilate
CAMS08	4.21	4.36		0.15	3.53	4.10	-0.11	-2.51	6.19	6.02	Constrict
CAMS09	3.30	3.41		0.11	3.44	3.25	-0.05	-1.45	4.96	4.90	Constrict
CAMS10	5.66	5.83		0.18	3.09	5.68	0.02	0.34	2.74	3.44	Dilate
CAMS11	2.28	2.59		0.31	13.60	2.32	0.04	1.76	11.64	15.36	Dilate
CAMS12	3.81	3.78		-0.03	-0.82	3.79	-0.02	-0.56	-0.27	1.38	Constrict
CAMS13	3.55	3.84		0.29	8.23	3.58	0.03	0.86	7.30	9.10	Dilate
CAMS14	4.62	4.82		0.20	4.32	4.75	0.13	2.75	1.53	7.06	Dilate
CAMS15	2.67	2.81		0.14	5.16	2.60	-0.07	-2.60	7.96	7.77	Constrict
V2 CAMS01	4.33	4.42		0.09	2.18	4.36	0.03	0.73	1.43	2.91	Dilate
V2 CAMS02	2.62	2.65		0.03	1.00	2.67	0.04	1.68	-0.67	2.67	Dilate
V2 CAMS06	4.33	4.67		0.34	7.93	4.49	0.16	3.70	4.08	11.62	Dilate
V2 CAMS08	4.25	4.39		0.14	3.31	4.31	0.06	1.43	1.85	4.75	Dilate
V2 CAMS09	3.66	3.74		0.08	2.25	3.67	0.02	0.48	1.76	2.73	Dilate
V2 CAMS10	5.39	5.56		0.16	3.03	5.34	-0.05	-0.89	3.95	3.91	Constrict
V2 CAMS11	2.36	2.79		0.43	18.08	2.66	0.30	12.54	4.92	30.64	Dilate
V2 CAMS12	3.82	3.92		0.11	2.77	3.86	0.04	1.06	1.69	3.84	Dilate
V2 CAMS13	3.95	4.05		0.10	2.58	3.81	-0.14	-3.66	6.47	6.24	Constrict
V2 CAMS14	4.96	5.20		0.24	4.86	4.96	0.00	-0.01	4.88	4.87	Constrict
V2 CAMS15	2.84	3.23		0.39	13.56	3.31	0.47	16.52	-2.54	30.07	Dilate
RAM01 V1	4.27	4.61	34.28	0.34	8.03	4.31	0.04	0.90	7.07	8.86	Dilate
----------	------	------	-------	------	-------	------	-------	-------	-------	-------	-----------
RAM02 V1	5.08	5.33	59.16	0.25	4.98	5.08	0.00	0.08	4.90	5.00	Dilate
RAM03 V1	4.15	4.32	48.36	0.17	4.11	4.16	0.01	0.30	3.80	4.40	Dilate
RAM04 V1	4.17	4.28	34.28	0.11	2.68	4.22	0.05	1.20	1.46	3.84	Dilate
RAM05 V1	3.62	3.95	46.37	0.33	9.02	3.83	0.22	5.95	2.90	15.07	Dilate
RAM06 V1	4.01	4.28	56.97	0.27	6.75	4.08	0.07	1.83	4.83	8.56	Dilate
RAM07 V1	4.29	4.64	25.18	0.35	8.23	4.35	0.06	1.41	6.72	9.57	Dilate
RAM08 V1	4.14	4.49	75.90	0.35	8.33	4.06	-0.09	-2.16	10.72	10.61	Constrict
RAM09 V1	4.09	4.24	35.20	0.15	3.61	4.13	0.04	0.87	2.71	4.54	Dilate
RAM10 V1	4.54	4.76	73.94	0.21	4.71	4.63	0.08	1.83	2.83	6.46	Dilate
RAM11 V1	3.83	4.02	44.99	0.19	4.88	3.81	-0.02	-0.45	5.36	5.41	Constrict
RAM12 V1	4.48	4.87	35.51	0.39	8.61	4.40	-0.08	-1.85	10.66	10.56	Constrict
RAM15 V1	4.65	4.93	29.96	0.28	5.93	4.68	0.02	0.53	5.37	6.55	Dilate
RAM16 V1	3.81	4.39	70.66	0.57	15.06	3.92	0.11	2.87	11.85	17.83	Dilate
RAM17 V1	4.25	4.53	60.57	0.28	6.61	4.33	0.08	1.90	4.62	8.49	Dilate
RAM18 V1	4.78	4.96	62.25	0.17	3.63	4.75	-0.03	-0.66	4.32	4.22	Constrict
RAM19 V1	4.35	4.64	57.97	0.3	6.80	4.36	0.01	0.19	6.59	7.09	Dilate
RAM20 V1	4.21	4.56	78.44	0.34	8.16	4.27	0.06	1.38	6.69	9.45	Dilate
RAM01 V2	4.27	4.68	50.65	0.41	9.69	4.42	0.15	3.57	5.91	13.17	Dilate
RAM02 V2	5.06	5.33	41.58	0.27	5.34	5.08	0.02	0.37	4.95	5.70	Dilate
RAM03 V2	4.02	4.26	44.39	0.23	5.77	4.07	0.05	1.19	4.52	6.91	Dilate
RAM04 V2	3.62	3.73	53.51	0.1	2.89	3.67	0.05	1.39	1.47	4.15	Dilate
RAM05 V2	3.57	3.85	29.13	0.28	7.98	3.66	0.09	2.47	5.37	10.31	Dilate
RAM06 V2	4.04	4.25	44.83	0.21	5.18	4.16	0.12	2.90	2.21	8.10	Dilate
RAM07 V2	4.22	4.50	41.69	0.27	6.49	4.25	0.03	0.70	5.75	7.09	Dilate
RAM08 V2	4.02	4.37	60.22	0.35	8.71	4.17	0.15	3.84	4.68	12.55	Dilate

RAM09 V2	3.95	4.10	42.59	0.15	3.74	3.93	-0.02	-0.52	4.29	4.32	Constrict
RAM10 V2	4.64	4.88	100.08	0.24	5.09	4.77	0.13	2.78	2.24	7.96	Dilate
RAM11 V2	3.83	4.03	40.11	0.2	5.29	3.81	-0.02	-0.62	5.95	5.84	Constrict
RAM12 V2	4.26	4.59	20.63	0.33	7.66	4.27	0.01	0.22	7.42	7.96	Dilate
RAM15 V2	4.64	4.88	41.14	0.24	5.22	4.69	0.05	1.13	4.04	6.30	Dilate
RAM16 V2	3.92	4.53	59.41	0.61	15.53	3.84	-0.08	-2.13	18.04	17.69	Constrict
RAM17 V2	4.25	4.51	44.40	0.26	6.12	4.27	0.02	0.59	5.51	6.70	Dilate
RAM18 V2	4.76	4.93	43.75	0.17	3.60	4.70	-0.06	-1.27	4.93	4.84	Constrict
RAM19 V2	4.26	4.51	47.19	0.25	5.85	4.34	0.07	1.73	4.05	7.60	Dilate
RAM20 V2	4.19	4.48	77.74	0.29	6.99	4.22	0.03	0.71	6.24	7.63	Dilate
RAM21 V1	2.47	2.76	39.77	0.29	11.76	2.42	-0.06	-2.26	14.35	14.00	Constrict
RAM22 V1	2.82	3.13	99.21	0.32	11.19	2.77	-0.04	-1.52	12.90	12.69	Constrict
RAM23 V1	2.74	2.94	25.18	0.2	7.35	2.74	0.00	-0.08	7.49	7.38	Constrict
RAM24 V1	3.55	3.63	45.39	0.08	2.16	3.54	-0.01	-0.36	2.58	2.61	Constrict
RAM25 V1	3.05	3.22	41.04	0.17	5.64	3.03	-0.02	-0.59	6.27	6.17	Constrict
RAM26 V1	2.83	3.20	34.77	0.37	13.00	2.91	0.08	2.75	9.97	15.83	Dilate
RAM31 V1	3.30	3.41	145.69	0.1	3.15	3.31	0.01	0.35	2.78	3.38	Dilate
RAM32 V1	3.07	3.28	76.00	0.21	6.78	3.05	-0.02	-0.69	7.53	7.53	Constrict
RAM34 V1	2.72	2.98	47.97	0.26	9.54	2.74	0.02	0.81	8.66	10.37	Dilate
RAM35 V1	3.47	3.66	58.98	0.18	5.25	3.50	0.03	0.76	4.45	5.95	Dilate
RAM36 V1	3.35	3.47	41.90	0.13	3.77	3.30	-0.05	-1.40	5.24	5.28	Constrict
RAM38 V1	3.18	3.31	41.86	0.13	4.07	3.17	-0.01	-0.40	4.50	4.49	Constrict
RAM21 V2	2.49	2.75	37.56	0.26	10.34	2.47	-0.02	-0.81	11.24	11.25	Constrict
RAM22 V2	2.82	3.04	45.48	0.22	7.74	2.79	-0.03	-1.04	8.86	8.84	Constrict
RAM23 V2	2.78	3.07	56.60	0.29	10.34	2.77	-0.01	-0.39	10.77	10.82	Constrict
RAM24 V2	3.53	3.67	39.62	0.14	3.86	3.51	-0.02	-0.56	4.44	4.52	Constrict

RAM25 V2	2.94	3.08	45.00	0.14	4.80	2.93	-0.01	-0.49	5.31	5.25	Constrict
RAM26 V2	2.88	3.24	52.64	0.36	12.55	3.08	0.20	7.00	5.18	19.51	Dilate
RAM31 V2	3.45	3.61	35.29	0.16	4.63	3.42	-0.04	-1.04	5.73	5.68	Constrict
RAM32 V2	3.09	3.35	83.78	0.26	8.50	3.09	0.00	0.11	8.38	8.53	Dilate
RAM34 V2	2.76	3.06	60.82	0.3	10.95	2.72	-0.04	-1.63	12.78	12.50	Constrict
RAM35 V2	3.49	3.66	38.41	0.17	4.85	3.50	0.01	0.21	4.63	5.08	Dilate
RAM36 V2	3.37	3.55	30.70	0.18	5.44	3.37	0.00	0.13	5.30	5.47	Dilate
RAM38 V2	3.11	3.37	30.83	0.25	8.13	3.17	0.06	1.84	6.18	9.88	Dilate
V2RAM41	3.10	3.32	32.65	0.23	7.32	3.18	0.08	2.51	4.69	9.90	Dilate
V2RAM43	3.12	3.33	30.97	0.21	6.83	3.16	0.04	1.29	5.47	8.12	Dilate
V2RAM44	2.86	3.16	101.83	0.29	10.29	3.00	0.14	4.82	5.22	15.18	Dilate
V2RAM46	2.94	3.29	41.20	0.35	11.72	3.00	0.05	1.85	9.69	13.42	Dilate
V2RAM47	3.31	3.54	34.07	0.23	6.87	3.29	-0.02	-0.66	7.58	7.48	Constrict
V2RAM48	3.38	3.71	28.75	0.33	9.77	3.38	0.01	0.16	9.59	10.06	Dilate
V2RAM49	3.00	3.16	38.31	0.16	5.39	3.00	0.00	0.10	5.28	5.39	Dilate
V2RAM50	2.78	3.10	36.70	0.32	11.41	2.80	0.02	0.63	10.71	12.13	Dilate
V2RAM51	3.70	3.85	25.85	0.15	4.10	3.69	-0.01	-0.16	4.27	4.38	Constrict
V2RAM52	3.36	3.69	24.66	0.33	9.82	3.42	0.06	1.73	7.95	11.61	Dilate
V2RAM53	3.85	4.06	26.78	0.21	5.39	3.83	-0.02	-0.46	5.87	5.97	Constrict
V2RAM54	2.88	3.12	41.72	0.24	8.23	2.83	-0.05	-1.82	10.23	10.07	Constrict
V2RAM55	3.51	3.80	26.58	0.29	8.32	3.59	0.08	2.37	5.82	10.69	Dilate
V2RAM56	3.25	3.50	22.80	0.25	7.68	3.26	0.01	0.28	7.38	7.99	Dilate
V2RAM58	3.31	3.60	30.55	0.29	8.84	3.27	-0.03	-1.01	9.95	9.75	Constrict
V2RAM59	3.49	3.67	32.35	0.18	5.26	3.44	-0.05	-1.37	6.72	6.69	Constrict
V2RAM60	3.37	3.58	30.66	0.21	6.12	3.31	-0.07	-1.93	8.20	8.19	Constrict
V2RAM61	3.32	3.51	28.39	0.19	5.67	3.28	-0.04	-1.12	6.88	6.88	Constrict

V3RAM41	3.16	3.37	30.65	0.21	6.56	3.17	0.00	0.13	6.42	6.56	Dilate
V3RAM43	3.02	3.23	30.56	0.20	6.73	3.09	0.07	2.35	4.28	9.05	Dilate
V3RAM44	3.00	3.27	86.22	0.27	8.94	3.10	0.10	3.31	5.45	12.27	Dilate
V3RAM46	3.17	3.28	132.94	0.11	3.36	3.17	-0.01	-0.18	3.55	3.68	Constrict
V3RAM47	3.34	3.64	25.14	0.30	9.06	3.40	0.07	1.97	6.95	11.15	Dilate
V3RAM48	3.49	3.81	29.40	0.32	9.10	3.52	0.03	0.84	8.19	9.95	Dilate
V3RAM49	3.04	3.22	57.69	0.17	5.63	2.90	-0.15	-4.86	11.03	10.56	Constrict
V3RAM50	2.90	3.21	45.18	0.31	10.61	2.90	0.00	-0.03	10.63	10.61	Constrict
V3RAM51	3.69	3.83	33.10	0.14	3.73	3.62	-0.07	-1.88	5.72	5.62	Constrict
V3RAM52	3.54	3.94	10.42	0.40	11.20	3.61	0.07	1.98	9.07	13.29	Dilate
V3RAM53	4.00	4.20	27.01	0.20	5.10	3.99	-0.01	-0.29	5.40	5.25	Constrict
V3RAM54	2.91	3.15	41.16	0.24	8.30	2.88	-0.03	-1.15	9.55	9.28	Constrict
V3RAM55	2.95	3.22	40.35	0.27	9.08	2.95	0.01	0.20	8.86	9.28	Dilate
V3RAM56	3.40	3.62	23.13	0.22	6.52	3.40	0.00	0.00	6.52	6.52	Nochange
V3RAM58	3.13	3.31	38.69	0.18	5.78	3.10	-0.02	-0.75	6.58	6.42	Constrict
V3RAM59	3.46	3.66	32.45	0.20	5.74	3.42	-0.04	-1.26	7.10	6.90	Constrict
V3RAM60	3.60	3.84	33.50	0.23	6.44	3.60	-0.01	-0.16	6.61	6.72	Constrict
V3RAM61	3.37	3.60	37.93	0.24	7.09	3.32	-0.05	-1.37	8.58	8.57	Constrict
ASPEN 1 V1	5.04	5.29		0.25	4.98	5.08	0.04	0.80	4.14	5.76	Dilate
ASPEN 2 V1	4.05	4.29		0.24	5.81	4.13	0.07	1.77	3.97	7.70	Dilate
ASPEN 3 V1	5.29	5.42		0.14	2.55	5.27	-0.02	-0.39	2.96	2.95	Constrict
ASPEN 4 V1	4.34	4.66		0.32	7.39	4.45	0.11	2.47	4.80	9.84	Dilate
ASPEN 5 V1	4.47	4.66		0.19	4.43	4.53	0.06	1.43	2.96	5.68	Dilate
ASPEN 6 V1	4.55	4.71		0.16	3.41	4.43	-0.13	-2.79	6.38	6.31	Constrict
ASPEN 7 V1	4.09	4.39		0.3	7.23	4.23	0.13	3.26	3.85	10.59	Dilate
ASPEN 8 V1	3.4	3.63		0.23	6.72	3.46	0.07	1.96	4.67	8.73	Dilate

ASPEN 9 V1	4.88	5.14		0.26	5.25	4.99	0.11	2.22	2.97	7.54	Dilate
ASPEN 10V1	4.17	4.57		0.4	9.65	4.22	0.05	1.16	8.40	10.75	Dilate
ASPEN 1 V2	4.84	5.10		0.26	5.48	4.94	0.10	2.09	3.32	7.46	Dilate
ASPEN 2 V2	4.19	4.47		0.28	6.68	4.42	0.22	5.29	1.32	11.97	Dilate
ASPEN 3 V2	5.05	5.24		0.19	3.85	5.00	-0.04	-0.84	4.73	4.61	Constrict
ASPEN 4 V2	4.39	4.62		0.23	5.34	4.54	0.15	3.39	1.88	8.63	Dilate
ASPEN 5 V2	4.47	4.87		0.4	8.96	4.56	0.09	2.07	6.74	11.02	Dilate
ASPEN 6 V2	4.37	4.58		0.21	4.76	4.59	0.22	4.97	-0.20	9.73	Dilate
ASPEN 7 V2	3.79	4.14		0.34	9.06	4.09	0.30	7.83	1.14	16.91	Dilate
ASPEN 8 V2	3.08	3.48		0.4	12.94	3.22	0.14	4.41	8.17	17.40	Dilate
ASPEN 9 V2	5.05	5.30		0.25	4.85	5.07	0.02	0.44	4.39	5.39	Dilate
ASPEN 10V2	4.35	4.74		0.39	8.86	4.23	-0.13	-2.89	12.10	11.86	Constrict
V1	3.97	4.26	37.05	0.29	7.19	4.11	0.13	3.29	3.77	10.47	Dilate
ACUTEENDO 1	2.01	4.07	17 07	0.17	4.27	2.00	0.02	0.79	5.10	5.06	Constrict
ACUTEENDO 2	5.91	4.07	4/.8/	0.17	4.27	3.88	-0.03	-0.78	5.10	5.00	Construct
V1	4.45	4.81	22.13	0.36	8.05	4.47	0.02	0.50	7.51	8.55	Dilate
ACUTEENDO 3	2 27	2.29	60.60	0.11	2.25	2 20	0.07	2.21	5 71	5 57	Constrict
ACUTEENDO 4	5.27	5.50	00.00	0.11	5.25	5.20	-0.07	-2.21	5.71	5.57	Construct
V1	4.17	4.21	95.12	0.04	1.02	4.00	-0.17	-3.97	5.19	4.99	Constrict
ACUTEENDO 5	4.50	4.76	(2.70	0.10	2.07	4.46	0.11	2.40	6.61	6.45	
VI ACUTEENDO 6	4.58	4./6	63.70	0.18	3.97	4.46	-0.11	-2.48	6.61	6.45	Constrict
V1	3.71	3.88	57.78	0.17	4.52	3.69	-0.02	-0.60	5.15	5.12	Constrict
ACUTEENDO 7											
V2	4.06	4.34	33.35	0.27	6.70	4.12	0.06	1.41	5.22	8.11	Dilate
ACUTEENDO I	2.00	4.17	00.00	0.10	4.70	2.00	0.02	0.20	5 1 1	5.00	Constrict
ACUTEENDO 2	5.98	4.1/	90.66	0.19	4.70	3.90	-0.02	-0.39	5.11	5.09	Constrict
V2	4.43	4.81	63.84	0.39	8.74	4.42	-0.01	-0.24	9.00	8.98	Constrict
ACUTEENDO 3											

V2	3.27	3.54	57.46	0.27	8.36	3.36	0.09	2.70	5.52	11.06	Dilate
ACUTEENDO 4											
V2	3.78	3.93	28.84	0.15	3.98	3.85	0.07	1.91	2.03	5.89	Dilate
ACUTEENDU 5	1.54	4.81	61.02	0.27	5.96	4.61	0.07	1.62	4.27	7.58	Dilate
ACUTEENDO 6	4.54	4.01	01.02	0.27	5.90	4.01	0.07	1.02	4.27	7.58	Dilate
V2	3.67	3.96	57.78	0.29	7.90	3.73	0.05	1.48	6.32	9.38	Dilate
ACUTEENDO 7											
EDS01	2.94	3.20	33.49	0.25	8.62	2.96	0.02	0.62	7.95	9.24	Dilate
EDS02	3.45	3.87	58.66	0.42	12.21	3.67	0.22	6.33	5.53	18.53	Dilate
EDS03	3.95	4.16	71.32	0.21	5.41	4.00	0.05	1.27	4.09	6.67	Dilate
EDS04	4.65	5.05		0.40	8.52	4.67	0.01	0.32	8.18	8.84	Dilate
EDS01 V2	3.15	3.24	48.46	0.09	2.91	3.13	-0.02	-0.63	3.56	3.54	Constrict
EDS02 V2	3.71	3.95	58.36	0.23	6.28	3.55	-0.16	-4.42	11.19	10.70	Constrict
EDS03 V2	4.29	4.53	69.58	0.24	5.58	4.34	0.05	1.17	4.35	6.75	Dilate
EDS04 V2	4.81	5.06	48.42	0.25	5.14	4.78	-0.02	-0.51	5.68	5.66	Constrict
TVR2	4.00	4.09	58.77	0.09	2.28	4.00	0.00	0.10	2.18	2.25	Dilate
TVR3	5.71	5.78		0.07	1.23	5.67	-0.04	-0.70	1.94	1.93	Constrict
1 1 1 1 2											
TVR4	5.69	5.84	61.46	0.15	2.64	5.75	0.06	1.05	1.57	3.68	Dilate
	5.45	5 53	40.27	0.08	1.52	5 / 0	0.04	0.77	0.75	2 20	Dilate
TVR5	5.45	5.55	40.27	0.00	1.52	5.47	0.04	0.77	0.75	2.27	Dilate
TVR6	4.73	4.92	132.43	0.19	3.95	4.77	0.04	0.80	3.12	4.75	Dilate
	4.69	4.87	80.43	0.18	3.75	4.74	0.05	1.14	2.58	4.90	Dilate
	4 39	4 65	59.35	0.26	6.03	4 46	0.07	1 59	4 37	7.52	Dilate
TVR8	1.55	1.05	55.20	0.10	4.20	1.70	0.01	0.16	1.57	1.32	Dilata
TVR9	4.43	4.04	35.50	0.19	4.30	4.40	0.01	0.10	4.14	4.49	Dilate
TVR11	4.78	4.98	64.34	0.21	4.32	4.77	-0.01	-0.22	4.56	4.55	Constrict

TVR12	3.62	3.81	71.54	0.19	5.30	3.60	-0.02	-0.59	5.93	5.80	Constrict
TVR13	3.74	3.88	41.30	0.14	3.69	3.72	-0.02	-0.53	4.24	4.28	Constrict
TVR14	3.36	3.51	48.34	0.15	4.32	3.37	0.01	0.41	3.90	4.76	Dilate
TVR15	4.00	4.11	74.18	0.11	2.63	4.00	-0.01	-0.17	2.80	3.00	Constrict
TVR16	3.72	3.96	57.19	0.24	6.55	3.76	0.05	1.23	5.26	7.89	Dilate
TVR17	5.46	5.72	65.52	0.26	4.81	5.53	0.08	1.39	3.37	6.27	Dilate
TVR18	3.76	3.89	63.85	0.12	3.29	3.80	0.04	1.04	2.23	4.26	Dilate
TVR19	3.16	3.23	33.97	0.07	2.09	3.14	-0.02	-0.67	2.78	2.76	Constrict
TVR20	3.99	4.09	146.58	0.09	2.33	3.97	-0.02	-0.59	2.94	2.76	Constrict
V2TVR02	3.86	3.96	115.77	0.10	2.69	3.84	-0.02	-0.44	3.14	3.12	Constrict
V2TVR03	5.46	5.73	74.15	0.27	4.93	5.66	0.20	3.70	1.19	8.63	Dilate
V2TVR04	5.42	5.67	53.77	0.25	4.60	5.30	-0.12	-2.12	6.87	6.72	Constrict
V2TVR05	5.29	5.43		0.14	2.67	5.34	0.06	1.06	1.59	3.74	Dilate
V2TVR06	5.05	5.15	78.85	0.11	2.10	5.05	0.00	0.05	2.05	2.15	Dilate
V2TVR07	4.76	4.92	68.80	0.16	3.39	4.75	0.00	-0.07	3.47	3.47	Constrict
V2TVR08	4.33	4.58	49.79	0.24	5.65	4.41	0.08	1.75	3.83	7.39	Dilate
V2TVR09	4.52	4.75	50.83	0.23	5.02	4.49	-0.03	-0.60	5.66	5.63	Constrict
V2TVR11	4.83	4.94	62.42	0.11	2.36	4.85	0.02	0.47	1.88	2.83	Dilate
V2TVR12	4.62	4.72	66.64	0.10	2.15	4.64	0.02	0.52	1.62	2.67	Dilate
V2TVR13	3.70	3.83		0.13	3.48	3.67	-0.03	-0.84	4.35	4.32	Constrict
V2TVR14	3.34	3.50	70.23	0.16	4.93	3.38	0.05	1.39	3.49	6.32	Dilate
V2TVR15	4.05	4.30		0.24	6.04	4.02	-0.03	-0.78	6.86	6.81	Constrict

V2TVR16	3.75	3.88	36.26	0.13	3.37	3.81	0.06	1.63	1.71	5.01	Dilate
V2TVR17	5.49	5.65	30.47	0.15	2.77	5.49	0.00	-0.03	2.80	2.80	Constrict
V2TVR18	3.70	3.75	69.66	0.05	1.24	3.71	0.01	0.15	1.09	1.39	Dilate
V2TVR19	3.35	3.47	53.01	0.12	3.45	3.19	-0.16	-4.87	8.75	8.33	Constrict
V2TVR20	4.10	4.29	45.21	0.19	4.58	4.15	0.05	1.17	3.37	5.74	Dilate

Study ID	BL NTG	PEAK NTG	Abs NTG	%NTG	ТТР
CAMS01					
CAMS02	2.82	3.18	0.36	12.71	9.00
CAMS06	4.29	4.71	0.43	9.93	9.00
CAMS08	4.22	4.80	0.58	13.75	10.00
CAMS09					
CAMS10	5.65	6.11	0.46	8.17	7.00
CAMS11	2.16	2.83	0.68	31.33	7.00
CAMS12	3.93	4.33	0.40	10.28	10.00
CAMS13	3.49	4.10	0.60	17.21	10.00
CAMS14					
CAMS15	2.50	3.11	0.61	24.60	8.00
V2 CAMS01					
V2 CAMS02	2.58	2.90	0.32	12.56	7.00
V2 CAMS06	4.41	5.01	0.60	13.52	10.00
V2 CAMS08	4.19	4.90	0.70	16.81	10.00
V2 CAMS09					
V2 CAMS10	5.56	6.30	0.74	13.32	9.00
V2 CAMS11	2.13	2.72	0.59	27.92	7.00
V2 CAMS12	4.02	4.43	0.41	10.15	10.00
V2 CAMS13	3.71	4.10	0.40	10.66	9.00
V2 CAMS14	4.89	5.31	0.43	8.70	8.00
V2 CAMS15	2.40	3.27	0.87	36.05	6.00
RAM01 V1	4.20	4.80	0.60	14.34	8.00
RAM02 V1	4.69	5.48	0.79	16.91	10.00
RAM03 V1	4.29	4.92	0.63	14.65	7.00
RAM04 V1	4.01	4.91	0.90	22.43	7.00
RAM05 V1	3.67	4.47	0.80	21.78	9.00
RAM06 V1	3.93	4.72	0.79	20.24	10.00
RAM07 V1	4.17	5.17	1.00	23.88	7.00
RAM08 V1	4.00	4.99	0.99	24.74	8.00
RAM09 V1	3.80	4.65	0.85	22.44	9.00
RAM10 V1	4.22	4.96	0.74	17.61	8.00
RAM11 V1	3.78	4.45	0.67	17.59	9.00
RAM12 V1	4.41	5.50	1.09	24.69	8.00

Nitroglycerin Challenge Test (NTG) Data

RAM15 V1	4.96	5.63	0.67	13.59	8.00
RAM16 V1	4.06	4.78	0.72	17.74	5.00
RAM17 V1	4.21	5.16	0.95	22.53	7.00
RAM18 V1	4.58	5.39	0.81	17.58	7.00
RAM19 V1	4.42	5.37	0.95	21.57	5.00
RAM20 V1	3.92	5.13	1.21	30.83	10.00
RAM01 V2	4.23	4.87	0.64	15.25	8.00
RAM02 V2	4.89	5.61	0.72	14.84	6.00
RAM03 V2	3.86	4.52	0.66	17.04	7.00
RAM04 V2	3.91	4.71	0.80	20.35	8.00
RAM05 V2	3.77	4.49	0.72	19.23	9.00
RAM06 V2	3.86	4.60	0.74	19.31	7.00
RAM07 V2	4.16	4.94	0.78	18.63	10.00
RAM08 V2	3.98	4.79	0.81	20.41	5.00
RAM09 V2	3.88	4.70	0.82	21.16	10.00
RAM10 V2	4.35	5.25	0.90	20.75	9.00
RAM11 V2	3.63	4.42	0.79	21.62	10.00
RAM12 V2	4.14	5.18	1.04	25.16	5.00
RAM15 V2	4.65	5.37	0.72	15.51	6.00
RAM16 V2	3.84	4.74	0.90	23.39	10.00
RAM17 V2	4.17	5.20	1.03	24.84	6.00
RAM18 V2	4.67	5.37	0.70	14.99	9.00
RAM19 V2	4.06	4.91	0.85	21.04	10.00
RAM20 V2	3.90	5.35	1.45	37.11	10.00
RAM21 V1	2.57	3.34	0.77	29.88	6.00
RAM22 V1	2.79	3.38	0.59	21.36	10.00
RAM23 V1	2.63	3.38	0.75	28.63	10.00
RAM24 V1	3.53	4.53	1.00	28.33	10.00
RAM25 V1	3.06	3.48	0.42	13.87	10.00
RAM26 V1	2.74	3.44	0.70	25.46	5.00
RAM31 V1	3.10	3.92	0.82	26.47	6.00
RAM32 V1	3.04	3.54	0.50	16.62	4.00
RAM34 V1	2.89	3.62	0.73	25.21	10.00
RAM35 V1	3.55	4.35	0.80	22.39	4.00
RAM36 V1	3.31	4.17	0.86	26.15	4.00
RAM38 V1	3.09	3.78	0.69	22.42	8.00
RAM21 V2	2.52	3.13	0.61	24.05	6.00

RAM22 V2	2.83	3.45	0.62	21.86	10.00
RAM23 V2	2.80	3.37	0.57	20.42	10.00
RAM24 V2	3.53	4.26	0.73	20.62	9.00
RAM25 V2	2.86	3.28	0.42	14.53	8.00
RAM26 V2	3.00	3.87	0.87	28.80	7.00
RAM31 V2	3.25	3.89	0.64	19.82	5.00
RAM32 V2	3.17	3.66	0.49	15.63	4.00
RAM34 V2	2.73	3.50	0.77	28.05	10.00
RAM35 V2	3.49	4.30	0.81	23.15	10.00
RAM36 V2	3.14	4.17	1.03	32.87	5.00
RAM38 V2	2.96	3.73	0.77	26.18	10.00
V2RAM41	3.17	4.04	0.87	27.30	4.00
V2RAM43	3.26	3.97	0.72	22.00	5.00
V2RAM44	2.98	3.84	0.86	28.90	5.00
V2RAM46	3.00	3.85	0.86	28.50	5.00
V2RAM47	3.61	4.37	0.76	21.20	5.00
V2RAM48	3.63	4.36	0.73	20.10	3.00
V2RAM49	3.10	3.94	0.85	27.30	5.00
V2RAM50	2.74	3.75	1.01	36.70	5.00
V2RAM51	3.60	4.60	0.99	27.60	4.00
V2RAM52	3.59	4.61	1.02	28.50	5.00
V2RAM53	3.81	4.59	0.78	20.40	4.00
V2RAM54	2.92	3.65	0.73	25.00	4.00
V2RAM55	3.47	4.53	1.06	30.40	4.00
V2RAM56	3.11	4.21	1.10	35.20	4.00
V2RAM58	3.39	4.23	0.84	24.80	5.00
V2RAM59	3.51	4.24	0.72	20.60	5.00
V2RAM60	3.39	4.38	0.99	29.10	4.00
V2RAM61	3.35	4.33	0.98	29.30	4.00
V3RAM41	3.15	3.74	0.60	19.00	4.00
V3RAM43	3.31	4.11	0.80	24.10	
V3RAM44	3.10	3.97	0.88	28.30	5.00
V3RAM46	3.22	3.97	0.75	23.30	5.00
V3RAM47	3.69	4.48	0.79	21.30	5.00
V3RAM48	3.67	4.43	0.75	20.40	3.00
V3RAM49	2.76	3.66	0.90	32.60	5.00
V3RAM50	3.04	3.96	0.92	30.10	5.00

V3RAM51	3.62	4.55	0.93	25.70	6.00
V3RAM52	3.45	4.47	1.02	29.60	4.00
V3RAM53	3.84	5.08	1.24	32.30	4.00
V3RAM54	3.06	3.83	0.77	25.20	5.00
V3RAM55	3.31	4.52	1.21	36.50	5.00
V3RAM56	3.38	4.42	1.03	30.60	5.00
V3RAM58	3.17	4.04	0.86	27.20	4.00
V3RAM59	3.45	4.24	0.79	22.90	5.00
V3RAM60	3.62	4.52	0.90	24.90	4.00
V3RAM61	3.42	4.37	0.95	27.90	6.00
ASPEN 1 V1					
ASPEN 2 V1					
ASPEN 3 V1					
ASPEN 4 V1					
ASPEN 5 V1					
ASPEN 6 V1					
ASPEN 7 V1					
ASPEN 8 V1					
ASPEN 9 V1					
ASPEN 10 V1					
ASPEN 1 V2					
ASPEN 2 V2					
ASPEN 3 V2					
ASPEN 4 V2					
ASPEN 5 V2					
ASPEN 6 V2					
ASPEN 7 V2					
ASPEN 8 V2					
ASPEN 9 V2					
ASPEN 10 V2					
V1 ACUTEENDO 1	4.16	4.92	0.76	18.31	6.00
V1 ACUTEENDO 2	3.98	4.99	1.01	25.25	10.00
V1 ACUTEENDO 3	4.21	4.96	0.75	17.71	9.00
V1 ACUTEENDO 4	3.35	4.13	0.79	23.58	8.00
V1 ACUTEENDO 5	4.34	4.84	0.50	11.44	8.00
V1 ACUTEENDO 6	4.89	5.45	0.56	11.48	5.00
V1 ACUTEENDO 7	3.88	4.69	0.81	20.77	6.00

V2 ACUTEENDO 1	4.10	4.83	0.73	17.67	6.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 2	4.06	4.98	0.92	22.53	10.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 3	4.39	5.18	0.78	17.82	6.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 4	3.47	4.11	0.64	18.46	10.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 5	4.01	4.58	0.57	14.22	9.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 6	4.61	5.44	0.83	18.13	10.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 7	3.84	4.59	0.75	19.62	9.00
EDS01	3.14	3.89	0.75	23.89	8.00
EDS02	3.48	4.40	0.92	26.44	9.00
EDS03	4.01	4.74	0.73	18.20	9.00
EDS04	4.73	5.58	0.85	17.97	5.00
EDS01 V2	2.88	3.55	0.67	23.26	8.00
EDS02 V2	3.52	4.38	0.86	24.56	7.00
EDS03 V2	4.42	4.99	0.57	12.90	9.00
EDS04 V2	4.75	5.30	0.55	11.58	6.00
TVR2	3.56	4.86	1.30	36.63	7.00
TVR3					
TVR4					
TVR5	5.50	6.43	0.93	16.91	9.00
TVR6					
TVR7					
TVR8					
TVR9					
TVR11	4.59	5.80	1.22	26.50	7.00
TVR12	4.62	5.22	0.60	12.91	9.00
TVR13	3.56	4.29	0.73	20.37	5.00
TVR14	3.19	3.90	0.71	22.26	5.00
TVR15	3.80	4.46	0.66	17.45	5.00
TVR16	3.82	4.72	0.90	23.51	6.00
TVR17	5.44	6.35	0.91	16.67	6.00
TVR18					
TVR19	3.24	3.81	0.57	17.70	6.00
TVR20	3.87	4.75	0.88	22.74	8.00
V2TVR02	3.59	4.65	1.06	29.67	6.00
V2TVR03					
V2TVR04					
V2TVR05	5.46	6.30	0.84	15.47	7.00
V2TVR06					

νατνρή					
V21VR07					
V2TVR08					
V2TVR09					
V2TVR11	4.66	5.90	1.24	26.72	6.00
V2TVR12	4.58	5.21	0.63	13.80	5.00
V2TVR13	3.63	4.10	0.47	13.02	5.00
V2TVR14	3.30	3.82	0.52	15.63	5.00
V2TVR15	4.04	4.55	0.51	12.63	3.00
V2TVR16					
V2TVR17	5.41	6.16	0.75	13.92	6.00
V2TVR18					
V2TVR19	3.32	3.94	0.62	18.65	8.00
V2TVR20	3.94	4.84	0.90	22.88	8.00

Observational Cohort

Participant Characteristics

Study ID	Sex	Age	Height	Weight	BMI
SPEC02	FEMALE	19.0	1.63	63.00	23.71
SPEC03	MALE	22.0	1.86	78.70	22.75
SPEC04	MALE	21.0	1.75	66.00	21.55
SPEC05	FEMALE	18.0	1.76	62.80	20.27
SPEC06	MALE	21.0	1.75	62.00	20.24
SPEC07	MALE	19.0	1.81	73.50	22.44
SPEC08	MALE	18.0	1.94	87.00	23.12
SPEC09	MALE	22.0	1.97	94.00	24.22
SPEC10	MALE	21.0	1.79	74.00	23.10
COS01	MALE	44.0	1.88	96.70	27.36
COS02	MALE	51.0	2.00	88.90	22.23
COS03	FEMALE	26.0	1.65	47.00	17.26
SFCP01	MALE	35.0	1.57	96.70	39.23
SFCP02	FEMALE	31.0	1.52	41.70	17.93
SFCP03	FEMALE	37.0	1.64	84.00	31.42
SFCP04	FEMALE	52.0	1.53	65.70	28.25
SFCP05	MALE	31.0	1.66	71.40	25.91
SFCP06	MALE	18.0	1.80	70.50	21.76

SFCP07	FEMALE	48.0	1.59	79.70	31.53
SFCP08	FEMALE	26.0	1.47	73.00	33.78
SFCP09	FEMALE	20.0	1.39	40.00	20.70
SFCP10	FEMALE	33.0	1.41	75.90	38.18
SFCP11	MALE	32.0	1.70	53.40	18.48
SFCP12	FEMALE	24.0	1.67	64.70	23.20
SFCP13	MALE	25.0	1.50	41.20	18.43
SFCP14	FEMALE	30.0	1.61	57.40	22.14
SFCP15	FEMALE	53.0	1.45	38.00	18.07
SFCP16	FEMALE	40.0	1.45	58.50	28.02
SFCP17	MALE	25.0	1.67	68.70	24.63
SFCP18	MALE	31.0	1.65	51.10	18.77
SFCP19	MALE	47.0	1.69	47.50	16.63
SFCP21	FEMALE	23.0	1.49	49.90	22.48
SFCP22	MALE	23.0	1.75	91.60	30.08
SFCP23	MALE	18.0	1.72	69.20	23.53
SFCP24	FEMALE	38.0	1.40	41.30	21.07
SFCP26	MALE	35.0	1.70	74.00	25.61
SFCP28	FEMALE	44.0	1.60	69.20	27.20
SFCP29	MALE	20.0	1.66	53.90	19.56
SFCP30	FEMALE	29.0	1.53	57.70	24.65
SFCP31	MALE	30.0	1.79	94.20	29.40
SFCP32	MALE	28.0	1.80	122.40	37.78
SFCP33	FEMALE	75.0	1.62	131.10	49.95
SFCP34	MALE	50.0	1.74	107.10	35.58
SFCP35	MALE	35.0	1.60	50.50	19.85
SFCP36	MALE	48.0	1.60	47.00	18.47
SFCP42	MALE	58.0	1.74	90.00	29.90
SFCP43	FEMALE	24.0	1.55	42.90	17.74
SFCP45	MALE	37.0	1.62	57.10	21.89
SFCP46	FEMALE	18.0	1.43	26.90	13.25
SFCP47	FEMALE	32.0	1.53	42.90	18.33
SFCP48	MALE	22.0	1.83	76.30	22.78
AMCP1	MALE	9.9	1.38	32.90	17.40
AMCP2	MALE	15.3	1.58	46.20	18.50
AMCP3	MALE	13.7	1.39	36.40	18.90
AMCP4	MALE	14.8	1.57	58.40	23.70

AMCP5	MALE	12.4	1.49	32.60	14.80
AMCP6	MALE	15.0	1.65	49.20	18.10
AMCP7	MALE	10.3	1.37	46.30	24.60
AMCP8	MALE	13.4	1.48	35.10	16.10
AMCP9	FEMALE	11.9	1.65	40.40	14.90
AMCP11	FEMALE	11.5	1.39	32.70	17.00
AMCON1	MALE	11.7	1.48	35.10	16.10
AMCON2	MALE	12.3	1.74	63.30	20.90
AMCON3	MALE	13.6	1.72	42.80	14.40
AMCON4	MALE	14.7	1.72	59.50	20.20
AMCON5	MALE	9.4	1.34	27.40	15.30
AMCON6	MALE	12.1	1.61	71.10	27.50
AMCON7	MALE	14.3	1.70	58.70	20.30
AMCON8	MALE	9.9	1.40	38.50	19.60
AMCON10	FEMALE	16.8	1.68	58.80	20.80
AMCON11	FEMALE	10.5	1.42	34.90	17.40
TR02	MALE	20.0	1.73	69.30	23.30
TR03	MALE	34.0	1.84	76.70	22.70
TR04	MALE	19.0	1.81	64.90	19.80
TR05	MALE	24.0	1.71	66.00	22.60
TR06	MALE	35.0	1.85	126.80	37.00
TR07	MALE	20.0	1.64	76.00	28.30
TR08	MALE	38.0	1.75	70.40	23.00
TR09	MALE	21.0	1.62	80.60	30.70
TR10	MALE	19.0	1.72	64.20	21.70
TR11	MALE	22.0	1.97	128.10	33.00
TR12	MALE	21.0	1.77	81.00	26.00
TR13	MALE	19.0	1.72	53.30	18.10
TR14	MALE	25.0	1.69	68.80	24.20
TR15	MALE	44.0	1.70	108.80	37.60
TR17	MALE	39.0	1.79	107.10	33.60
TR18	MALE	37.0	1.98	89.30	22.80
TR19	MALE	21.0	1.76	69.30	22.40
TR20	MALE	24.0	1.71	73.60	25.20
TR21	MALE	22.0	1.75	63.80	21.00
TR22	MALE	26.0	1.71	75.40	25.80
TR23	MALE	34.0	1.85	102.90	30.10

TR24	MALE	26.0	1.81	84.70	25.70
TR25	MALE	24.0	1.78	85.00	26.80
TR26	MALE	41.0	1.69	55.00	19.30
TR27	MALE	27.0	1.78	119.20	37.60
CAMO01	MALE	73.0	1.82	86.00	26.08
CAMO02	MALE	73.0	1.83	82.46	24.62
CAMO03	FEMALE	75.0	1.54	52.62	22.19
CAMO04	MALE	78.0	1.78	94.44	29.74
CAMO05	FEMALE	70.0	1.65	55.40	20.35
CAMO06	FEMALE	62.0	1.61	72.10	27.82
CAMO07	MALE	74.0	1.76	68.60	22.15
CAMO08	MALE	69.0	1.90	86.80	24.04
CAMO09	MALE	78.0	1.85	80.40	23.49
CAMO10	FEMALE	68.0	1.67	74.90	26.86
CAMO11	FEMALE	72.0	1.69	67.00	23.46
CAMO12	FEMALE	68.0	1.65	52.40	19.36
CAMO13	FEMALE	76.0	1.62	77.60	29.57
CAMO14	FEMALE	72.0	1.70	60.50	20.93
CAMO15	MALE	77.0	1.68	58.10	20.59
CAMO16	FEMALE	66.0	1.63	75.80	28.53
CAMO17	FEMALE	67.0	1.65	64.86	23.83
CAMO18	FEMALE	68.0	1.58	58.40	23.39
CAMO19	MALE	78.0	1.64	71.60	26.62
CAMO20	MALE	75.0	1.83	76.90	22.96
CAMO21	FEMALE	66.0	1.66	77.10	27.98
CAMO22	FEMALE	70.0	1.64	77.20	28.70
CAMO23	FEMALE	67.0	1.71	70.70	24.18
CAMO24	MALE	66.0	1.79	57.30	17.88
CAMO25	MALE	67.0	1.75	94.60	30.89
CAMO26	FEMALE	68.0	1.61	70.30	27.12
CAMO27	MALE	77.0	1.87	79.00	22.59
CAMO28	MALE	71.0	1.70	84.40	29.12
CAMO29	FEMALE	68.0	1.66	109.00	39.56
CAMO30	MALE	73.0	1.65	82.70	30.38
CAMO31	MALE	67.0	1.81	69.80	21.31
CAMO32	MALE	70.0	1.75	102.50	33.47

CAMO33	FEMALE	68.0	1.63	66.80	25.14
CAMO34	MALE	69.0	1.80	85.10	26.18
CAMS01	MALE	50.0	1.76	102.70	33.15
CAMS02	FEMALE	75.0	1.52	66.30	28.70
CAMS05	MALE	80.0	1.74	93.00	30.72
CAMS06	MALE	62.0	1.69	77.90	27.27
CAMS08	MALE	60.0	1.75	75.40	24.76
CAMS09	MALE	52.0	1.63	69.70	26.23
CAMS10	MALE	65.0	1.79	114.10	35.61
CAMS11	FEMALE	56.0	1.58	94.70	37.93
CAMS12	MALE	61.0	1.81	87.40	26.68
CAMS13	MALE	75.0	1.76	99.70	32.19
CAMS14	MALE	70.0	1.74	111.00	36.66
CAMS15	FEMALE	55.0	1.58	74.80	29.96
CAD01	MALE	49.0	1.75	113.20	37.20
CAD02	MALE	69.0	1.81	110.60	33.80
CAD03	MALE	64.0	1.68	84.30	30.00
CAD04	MALE	59.0	1.81	81.20	24.80
CAD05	MALE	60.0	1.75	83.90	27.60
CAD06	MALE	70.0	1.68	76.90	27.20
CAD07	MALE	77.0	1.87	99.50	28.60
CAD08	MALE	64.0	1.65	58.90	21.60
CAD09	MALE	61.0	1.69	79.80	27.90
CAD10	MALE	81.0	1.66	71.40	26.10
CAD13	MALE	66.0	1.83	104.60	31.20
CAD14	FEMALE	68.0	1.54	57.50	24.20
CAD16	MALE	66.0	1.70	87.50	30.50
CAD18	MALE	71.0	1.70	97.60	33.80
CAD19	MALE	77.0	1.83	72.50	21.60
CAD20	MALE	54.0	1.90	103.40	28.60
CAD21	MALE	73.0	1.74	74.60	24.60
CAD22	MALE	57.0	1.72	86.40	29.20
CAD23	MALE	70.0	1.74	56.80	18.80
CAD24	MALE	76.0	1.77	84.40	26.90
CAD25	MALE	67.0	1.74	89.90	29.90
CAD26	MALE	54.0	1.76	91.10	29.40
CAD27	MALE	48.0	1.90	118.90	32.90

CAD28	MALE	62.0	1.66	74.50	27.20
CAD29	FEMALE	55.0	1.81	70.90	21.60
CAD30	MALE	50.0	1.56	65.20	27.00
RAM01 V1	MALE	21.0	1.84	86.80	25.64
RAM02 V1	MALE	21.0	1.82	88.90	26.84
RAM03 V1	MALE	22.0	1.76	67.00	21.63
RAM04 V1	MALE	21.0	1.87	82.10	23.48
RAM05 V1	MALE	21.0	1.65	63.00	23.14
RAM06 V1	MALE	21.0	1.82	73.60	22.22
RAM07 V1	MALE	21.0	1.68	72.00	25.51
RAM08 V1	MALE	24.0	1.79	67.00	20.91
RAM09 V1	MALE	21.0	1.81	62.70	19.14
RAM10 V1	MALE	23.0	1.76	86.20	27.83
RAM11 V1	MALE	19.0	1.74	74.40	24.57
RAM12 V1	MALE	20.0	1.89	76.50	21.42
RAM13 V1	MALE	21.0	1.89	98.20	27.49
RAM14 V1	MALE	21.0	1.76	74.50	24.05
RAM15 V1	MALE	19.0	1.79	85.70	27.49
RAM16 V1	MALE	21.0	1.83	73.40	21.92
RAM17 V1	MALE	20.0	1.79	71.60	22.35
RAM18 V1	MALE	21.0	1.78	86.00	27.14
RAM19 V1	MALE	21.0	1.86	81.10	23.44
RAM20 V1	MALE	21.0	1.67	71.50	25.64
RAM21 V1	FEMALE	20.0	1.54	46.30	19.52
RAM22 V1	FEMALE	20.0	1.58	46.40	18.70
RAM23 V1	FEMALE	26.0	1.55	43.90	18.27
RAM24 V1	FEMALE	19.0	1.59	56.40	22.31
RAM25 V1	FEMALE	22.0	1.61	52.20	20.14
RAM26 V1	FEMALE	21.0	1.64	62.10	23.09
RAM31 V1	FEMALE	23.0	1.55	48.30	20.10
RAM32 V1	FEMALE	24.0	1.60	66.70	26.05
RAM34 V1	FEMALE	18.0	1.56	54.00	22.19
RAM35 V1	FEMALE	32.0	1.63	60.00	22.58
RAM36 V1	FEMALE	20.0	1.57	57.40	23.29
RAM38 V1	FEMALE	22.0	1.58	46.50	18.63
V1RAM41	FEMALE	20.0	1.74	66.20	21.87
V1RAM43	FEMALE	26.0	1.65	60.50	22.22

V1RAM44	FEMALE	24.0	1.58	56.80	22.75
V1RAM46	FEMALE	20.0	1.65	60.50	22.22
V1RAM47	FEMALE	23.0	1.54	54.00	22.77
V1RAM48	FEMALE	19.0	1.67	103.80	37.22
V1RAM49	FEMALE	27.0	1.64	58.70	21.82
V1RAM50	FEMALE	18.0	1.58	47.20	18.91
V1RAM51	FEMALE	21.0	1.67	62.40	22.37
V1RAM52	FEMALE	18.0	1.62	51.70	19.70
V1RAM53	FEMALE	20.0	1.74	65.80	21.73
V1RAM54	FEMALE	21.0	1.69	59.20	20.73
V1RAM55	FEMALE	23.0	1.68	70.50	24.98
V1RAM56	FEMALE	19.0	1.65	47.20	17.34
V1RAM58	FEMALE	21.0	1.73	73.00	24.39
V1RAM59	FEMALE	20.0	1.58	64.40	25.80
V1RAM60	FEMALE	20.0	1.76	58.30	18.82
V1RAM61	FEMALE	27.0	1.66	59.60	21.63
ASPEN 1	MALE	22.0	1.84	98.00	28.95
ASPEN 2	MALE	23.0	1.68	60.50	21.44
ASPEN 3	MALE	23.0	1.84	103.00	30.42
ASPEN 4	MALE	21.0	1.81	80.50	24.57
ASPEN 5	MALE	18.0	1.75	80.20	26.19
ASPEN 6	MALE	20.0	1.73	77.00	25.73
ASPEN 7	MALE	20.0	1.78	73.00	23.04
ASPEN 8	MALE	22.0	1.80	74.00	22.84
ASPEN 9	MALE	21.0	1.78	110.00	34.72
ASPEN 10	MALE	30.0	1.80	65.50	20.22
NESTLE S6	MALE	68.0	1.80	92.20	28.46
NESTLE S8	MALE	79.0	1.75	82.30	26.87
NESTLE S10	MALE	76.0	1.68	86.10	30.51
NESTLE S11	MALE	65.0	1.60	59.50	23.24
NESTLE S12	MALE	70.0	1.78	83.70	26.42
NESTLE S13	MALE	71.0	1.70	84.80	29.34
NESTLE S14	MALE	65.0	1.71	80.60	27.56
NESTLE S15	MALE	66.0	1.70	78.00	26.99
NESTLE S16	MALE	66.0	1.73	82.10	27.43
NESTLE S17	MALE	70.0	1.60	62.40	24.38
NESTLE S18	MALE	68.0	1.82	99.70	30.10

NESTLE S19	MALE	71.0	1.83	108.40	32.37
NESTLE S21	MALE	67.0	1.83	82.10	24.52
NESTLE S23	MALE	65.0	1.70	62.10	21.49
NESTLE S25	MALE	70.0	1.80	92.50	28.55
NESTLE S27	MALE	69.0	1.85	94.80	27.70
NESTLE S28	MALE	67.0	1.73	89.00	29.74
NESTLE S31	MALE	78.0	1.80	74.00	22.84
ACM1	MALE	23.0	1.83	99.90	29.83
ACM2	MALE	22.0	1.60	58.90	23.01
ACM3	MALE	25.0	1.80	123.42	38.09
ACM4	MALE	18.0	1.81	91.10	27.81
ACM5	MALE	20.0	1.76	62.20	20.08
ACM6	MALE	20.0	1.86	69.90	20.20
ACM8	MALE	30.0	1.83	92.30	27.56
ACM10	MALE	21.0	1.68	77.10	27.32
ACF1	FEMALE	19.0	1.78	107.50	33.93
ACF4	FEMALE	19.0	1.60	52.90	20.66
ACF5	FEMALE	21.0	1.63	43.80	16.49
ACF6	FEMALE	20.0	1.61	68.30	26.35
ACF7	FEMALE	20.0	1.70	57.80	20.00
ACF8	FEMALE	23.0	1.61	58.40	22.53
ACF9	FEMALE	21.0	1.63	58.00	21.83
ACF10	FEMALE	27.0	1.75	102.90	33.60
V1 ACUTEENDO 1	MALE	25.0	1.85	91.00	26.60
V1 ACUTEENDO 2	MALE	22.0	1.81	91.50	27.90
V1 ACUTEENDO 3	MALE	25.0	1.79	67.50	21.10
V1 ACUTEENDO 4	MALE	22.0	1.63	71.50	26.90
V1 ACUTEENDO 5	MALE	21.0	1.69	65.50	22.90
V1 ACUTEENDO 6	MALE	21.0	1.83	84.50	25.20
V1 ACUTEENDO 7	MALE	25.0	1.83	75.00	22.40
AB-SCI04 NC	MALE	40.0	1.86	94.40	27.29
AB-SCI06 NC	MALE	42.0	1.84	96.90	28.62
AB-SCI07 NC	MALE	32.0	1.78	85.40	27.11
AB-SCI11 NC	MALE	51.0	1.86	77.00	22.26
AB-SCI12 NC	MALE	43.0	1.84	80.60	23.94
AB-SCI14 NC	MALE	43.0	1.74	60.20	20.00
AB-SCI19 NC	MALE	37.0	1.92	92.00	25.09

AB-SCI24 NC	MALE	52.0	1.80	103.00	31.97
SCI01	MALE	31.0	1.88	81.82	23.27
SCI02	MALE	53.0	1.62	77.27	29.44
SCI03	MALE	28.0	1.87	56.82	16.25
SCI04	MALE	41.0	1.91	76.70	21.14
SCI05	MALE	47.0	1.75	67.16	22.06
SCI06	MALE	40.0	1.78	88.70	28.00
SCI07	MALE	31.0	1.74	82.00	27.24
SCI08	MALE	32.0	1.78	76.70	24.21
SCI09	MALE	51.0	1.67	86.40	30.98
SCI10	MALE	58.0	1.77	120.45	38.45
SCI11	MALE	53.0	1.86	111.40	32.20
SCI12	MALE	43.0	1.80	86.60	26.88
SCI13	MALE	27.0	1.82	75.00	22.64
SCI14	MALE	44.0	1.59	51.30	20.42
SCI15	MALE	41.0	1.75	80.00	26.12
SCI16	MALE	34.0	1.73	73.80	24.66
SCI17	MALE	55.0	1.88	123.90	35.06
SCI18	MALE	37.0	1.74	67.30	22.23
SCI19	MALE	38.0	1.72	71.00	24.00
SCI20	MALE	65.0	1.68	87.80	31.29
SCI21	MALE	36.0	1.72	93.50	31.60
SCI22	FEMALE	48.0	1.66	76.70	28.00
SCI23	MALE	30.0	1.64	65.80	24.46
SCI24	MALE	52.0	1.73	62.70	20.95
SCI25	MALE	25.0	1.74	85.80	28.34
SCI26	MALE	53.0	1.66	86.40	31.35
SCI27	MALE	38.0	1.71	65.50	22.40
SCI28	MALE	26.0	1.75	86.60	28.28
SCI29	FEMALE	26.0	1.76	98.90	31.93
SCI30	MALE	30.0	1.86	96.80	27.98
SCI31	MALE	40.0	1.74	73.50	24.42
SCI32	MALE	36.0	1.85	96.10	28.23
SCI33	MALE	50.0	1.89	98.00	27.43
SCI34	MALE	23.0	1.73	61.60	20.70
EDS01	MALE	22.0	1.76	72.00	23.24
EDS02	MALE	20.0	1.80	59.70	18.43

EDS03	MALE	20.0	1.87	89.30	25.54
EDS04	MALE	24.0	1.82	91.10	27.50
TVR1	FEMALE	49.0	1.76	74.10	23.92
TVR2	FEMALE	53.0	1.68	65.50	23.21
TVR3	MALE	79.0	1.84	80.74	23.85
TVR4	MALE	54.0	1.73	103.64	34.63
TVR5	MALE	38.0	1.92	86.36	23.43
TVR6	FEMALE	71.0	1.63	74.84	28.17
TVR7	MALE	71.0	1.75	74.80	24.42
TVR8	FEMALE	55.0	1.62	93.89	35.78
TVR9	MALE	55.0	1.76	107.50	34.70
TVR10	FEMALE	62.0	1.63	61.24	23.05
TVR11	FEMALE	60.0	1.61	60.09	23.18
TVR12	FEMALE	67.0	1.60	64.54	25.21
TVR13	FEMALE	80.0	1.64	75.28	27.99
TVR14	FEMALE	58.0	1.77	87.98	28.08
TVR15	FEMALE	62.0	1.68	73.60	26.08
TVR16	FEMALE	60.0	1.66	58.86	21.36
TVR17	MALE	62.0	1.79	84.50	26.37
TVR18	FEMALE	73.0	1.54	107.16	45.18
TVR19	FEMALE	65.0	1.61	78.60	30.32
TVR20	FEMALE	67.0	1.63	72.50	27.29
PFA02	FEMALE	8.9			17.78
PFA03	FEMALE	8.7			17.64
PFA10	FEMALE	8.6			17.32
PFA11	FEMALE	8.5			19.56
PFA12	FEMALE	8.0			15.68
PFA14	FEMALE	8.5			14.80
PFA17	FEMALE	8.2			17.30
PFA30	FEMALE	7.6			21.79
PFA34	FEMALE	8.0			16.39
PFA36	FEMALE	7.5			16.51
PFA40	FEMALE	7.4			16.85
PFA55	FEMALE	7.4			15.53
PFA56	FEMALE	7.2			18.09
PFA59	FEMALE	7.3			15.17
PFA69	FEMALE	6.4			16.84
PFB03	FEMALE	9.4			18.00
PFB04	FEMALE	9.1			17.05

PFB14	FEMALE	9.9		17.67
PFB19	FEMALE	8.2		15.76
PFB24	FEMALE	9.2		15.95
PMA10	MALE	7.5		16.28
PMA15	MALE	7.4		15.01
PMA16	MALE	7.2		14.88
PMB05	MALE	10.0		21.63
PMA22	MALE	7.4		16.45
PMA24	MALE	7.9		14.89
PMB04	MALE	9.5		16.63
PMA27	MALE	7.6		15.79
PMA28	MALE	7.5		15.04
PMA32	MALE	7.6		17.34
PMA33	MALE	7.6		16.95
PMA38	MALE	7.7		15.60
PMA42	MALE	7.3		15.32
PMA67	MALE	7.4		13.88
PMA68	MALE	6.5		15.56
PMA73	MALE	6.3		15.88
PMA74	MALE	7.2		14.82
PMA77	MALE	6.6		15.99
PMB06	MALE	9.9		15.35
PMB01	MALE	9.5		15.08

Hemodynamics

Study ID	HR	SBP	DBP	MAP
SPEC02	64	106	44	60
SPEC03	63	131	61	79
SPEC04	63	126	56	73
SPEC05	58	134	68	85
SPEC06	60	102	52	65
SPEC07	53	125	56	72
SPEC08	55	105	46	60
SPEC09	50	128	59	74
SPEC10	65	135	63	78
COS01	50	101	64	81

COS02	60	120	87	97
COS03	60	107	66	83
SFCP01	81	130	79	97
SFCP02	87	140	94	109
SFCP03	79	116	59	84
SFCP04	70	125	78	95
SFCP05	68	134	72	94
SFCP06	76	129	76	95
SFCP07	64	100	67	81
SFCP08	64	113	74	88
SFCP09	86	108	65	83
SFCP10	60	118	69	88
SFCP11	60	107	57	78
SFCP12	74	114	67	86
SFCP13	92	121	74	91
SFCP14	72	117	78	91
SFCP15	60	182	85	123
SFCP16	95	140	92	110
SFCP17	83	137	86	104
SFCP18	66	113	71	88
SFCP19	56	109	71	86
SFCP21	67	122	69	89
SFCP22	88	130	73	93
SFCP23	75	130	65	90
SFCP24	84	91	63	75
SFCP26	71	120	67	88
SFCP28	79	121	86	98
SFCP29	65	121	65	87
SFCP30	95	132	83	100
SFCP31	66	115	74	88
SFCP32	66	115	74	88
SFCP33	95	156	78	111
SFCP34	81	142	90	109
SFCP35	81	121	69	89
SFCP36	81	112	68	86
SFCP42	85	149	86	109
SFCP43	103	110	71	89

SFCP45	103	124	72	91
SFCP46	85	113	68	89
SFCP47	60	112	69	86
SFCP48	67	139	73	97
AMCP1	62	112	56	82
AMCP2	57	111	64	84
AMCP3	76	96	66	79
AMCP4	74	130	69	91
AMCP5	75	83	66	87
AMCP6	91	111	66	84
AMCP7	85	101	62	79
AMCP8	80	109	59	82
АМСР9	61	103	57	77
AMCP11	94	109	51	67
AMCON1	62	107	66	83
AMCON2	60	122	69	89
AMCON3	70	111	68	85
AMCON4	54	117	65	86
AMCON5	86	104	69	83
AMCON6	84	121	66	88
AMCON7	64	126	55	86
AMCON8	71	109	67	84
AMCON10	62	109	66	84
AMCON11	65	107	64	81
TR02	57	99	59	76
TR03	62	108	66	84
TR04	47	113	69	86
TR05	54	112	67	85
TR06	55	112	72	87
TR07	80	122	67	88
TR08	67	115	74	88
TR09	82	114	74	89
TR10	66	108	64	83
TR11	52	129	68	91
TR12	72	122	68	89
TR13	75	94	59	74
TR14	67	113	69	87

TR15	61	112	71	86
TR17	55	113	71	88
TR18	58	99	62	78
TR19	69	117	74	89
TR20	81	115	65	85
TR21	76	116	64	85
TR22	63	113	66	85
TR23	59	128	70	91
TR24	60	115	63	84
TR25	50	111	65	84
TR26	43	94	66	78
TR27	67	126	75	94
CAMO01	54	123	67	85
CAMO02	60	134	73	93
CAMO03	75	130	68	89
CAMO04	71	135	70	92
CAMO05	52	126	66	86
CAMO06	60	106	69	81
CAMO07	59	114	66	82
CAMO08	58	140	83	102
CAMO09	62	150	72	98
CAMO10	79	130	74	93
CAMO11	55	128	76	93
CAMO12	68	133	67	89
CAMO13	61	115	55	75
CAMO14	72	125	63	84
CAMO15	80	143	87	106
CAMO16	68	128	64	86
CAMO17	69	101	62	75
CAMO18	64	103	62	76
CAMO19	55	141	82	102
CAMO20	53	144	80	101
CAMO21	63	122	79	93
CAMO22				
CAMO23	54	119	66	84
CAMO24	58	138	78	98

CAMO25	63	132	74	93
CAMO26	67	124	77	93
CAMO27	56	128	70	89
CAMO28	91	139	89	106
CAMO29	71	118	53	
CAMO30	48	138	78	
CAMO31	63	104	66	
CAMO32	45	140	84	
CAMO33	54	120	69	
CAMO34	63	156	97	
CAMS01	47.6	123.2	72.6	
CAMS02	57	128.4	65.6	
CAMS05	83.6	158.6	76.6	
CAMS06	87.4	116.6	72	
CAMS08	63	137.2	86	
CAMS09	61.2	113.6	69.8	
CAMS10	73	135	100	
CAMS11				
CAMS12	63.8	122	70.4	
CAMS13	68.4	151.8	84.2	
CAMS14	56.4	148.8	92.4	
CAMS15	47.8	138	74.4	
CAD01	54	143	70	94
CAD02	53	137	62	87
CAD03	48	136	76	96
CAD04	62	134	70	91
CAD05	60	133	63	86
CAD06	53	110	59	76
CAD07	64	130	64	86
CAD08	55	123	58	80
CAD09	58	123	63	83
CAD10	79	134	60	85
CAD13	61	136	58	84
CAD14	47	97	54	69
CAD16	61	111	54	73
CAD18	53	113	55	75
CAD19	45	147	59	88

CAD20	54	116	60	78
CAD21	74	127	69	88
CAD22	49	117	58	77
CAD23	72	129	66	87
CAD24	56	149	63	92
CAD25	59	105	58	74
CAD26	51	119	61	80
CAD27	52	145	71	96
CAD28	52	102	55	71
CAD29	72	180	93	122
CAD30	64	113	69	84
RAM01 V1	58	118	68	88
RAM02 V1	59	116	63	85
RAM03 V1	55	121	69	88
RAM04 V1	73	124	77	93
RAM05 V1	65	105	62	82
RAM06 V1	63	119	60	85
RAM07 V1	77	134	70	93
RAM08 V1	64	126	67	89
RAM09 V1	67	111	65	85
RAM10 V1	72	132	71	93
RAM11 V1	47	117	68	88
RAM12 V1	83	128	68	91
RAM13 V1	75	129	70	92
RAM14 V1	74	123	76	92
RAM15 V1	55	127	67	90
RAM16 V1	71	127	64	89
RAM17 V1	72	113	66	85
RAM18 V1	55	125	65	89
RAM19 V1	73	126	66	88
RAM20 V1	72	113	65	85
RAM21 V1	68	109	76	87
RAM22 V1	54	96	62	77
RAM23 V1	60	92	64	76
RAM24 V1	53	103	65	82
RAM25 V1	61	107	69	85
RAM26 V1	53	117	78	90

RAM31 V1	59	102	66	82
RAM32 V1	79	113	73	88
RAM34 V1	64	106	66	83
RAM35 V1	45	114	70	87
RAM36 V1	58	103	68	83
RAM38 V1	66	94	64	77
V1RAM41	57	107	74	86
V1RAM43	68	101	70	83
V1RAM44	61	100	67	82
V1RAM46	60	102	69	83
V1RAM47	58	95	58	74
V1RAM48	60	114	66	86
V1RAM49	60	116	78	90
V1RAM50	72	101	71	84
V1RAM51	79	111	68	85
V1RAM52	63	103	62	80
V1RAM53	52	105	66	83
V1RAM54	75	104	67	83
V1RAM55	60	105	66	83
V1RAM56	67	98	66	80
V1RAM58	51	112	65	85
V1RAM59	64	105	77	86
V1RAM60	64	103	68	83
V1RAM61	70	100	73	83
ASPEN 1	55	112	58	80
ASPEN 2	63	115	60	81
ASPEN 3	62	148	79	106
ASPEN 4	74	123	60	85
ASPEN 5	69	121	63	86
ASPEN 6	62	122	61	85
ASPEN 7	59	127	72	93
ASPEN 8	60	127	60	86
ASPEN 9	51	128	75	94
ASPEN 10	53	103	70	82
NESTLE S6	83	125	69	88
NESTLE S8	62	160	73	102
NESTLE S10	53	83	52	62

NESTLE S11	53	83	51	62
NESTLE S12	58	112	40	64
NESTLE S13	74	112	40	64
NESTLE S14	54	101	50	67
NESTLE S15	52	109	44	66
NESTLE S16	79	113	30	58
NESTLE S17	54	120	49	73
NESTLE S18	61	133	71	91
NESTLE S19	51	110	39	63
NESTLE S21	50	93	57	69
NESTLE S23	72	106	32	57
NESTLE S25	52	108	52	71
NESTLE S27	54	152	68	96
NESTLE S28	74	120	57	78
NESTLE S31	47	112	36	61
ACM1	69	124	64	86
ACM2	71	72	56	64
ACM3	60	111	64	80
ACM4	72	123	69	88
ACM5	73	114	73	90
ACM6	72	114	65	80
ACM8	69	115	68	85
ACM10	80	115	70	87
ACF1	54	131	70	91
ACF4	80	110	65	82
ACF5	77	88	74	73
ACF6	80	104	65	80
ACF7	58	64	54	60
ACF8	67	134	92	105
ACF9	55	95	52	70
ACF10	54	127	76	97
V1 ACUTEENDO 1	58	124	73	90
V1 ACUTEENDO 2	56	126	73	91
V1 ACUTEENDO 3	48	133	78	96
V1 ACUTEENDO 4	50	122	70	87
V1 ACUTEENDO 5	54	131	77	95
V1 ACUTEENDO 6	75	131	69	90

V1 ACUTEENDO 7	59	106	57	73
AB-SCI04 NC				
AB-SCI06 NC				
AB-SCI07 NC				
AB-SCI11 NC				
AB-SCI12 NC				
AB-SCI14 NC				
AB-SCI19 NC				
AB-SCI24 NC				
SCI01				
SCI02				
SCI03	69	90	52	65
SCI04	58	129	84	99
SCI05				
SCI06	68	130	70	90
SCI07	84	133	88	103
SCI08	68	79	48	58
SCI09	70	93	68	76
SCI10	60	97	52	67
SCI11	61	149	81	104
SCI12	90	131	90	104
SCI13	77	102	55	71
SCI14	74	105	74	84
SCI15	65	96	74	81
SCI16	68	83	52	62
SCI17	77	146	85	105
SCI18	67	103	63	76
SCI19	80	119	70	86
SCI20	78	129	69	89
SCI21	66	114	69	84
SCI22	70	102	66	78
SCI23	66	128	69	89
SCI24	70	131	79	96
SCI25	62	121	68	86
SCI26	67	111	73	86
SCI27	87	111	67	82
SCI28	62	153	101	118

	64	108	64	70
SCI29	04	108	04	19
SCI30	98	11/	67	84
SCI31	87	96	63	74
SCI32	64	118	71	87
SCI33	60	82	46	58
SCI34	70	108	67	81
EDS01	88.5	114.5	77.5	89
EDS02	72	114	68.5	87
EDS03	56	131	72	93
EDS04	67	123.7	70.3	89.3
TVR1	49	106	70	84
TVR2	61	108	70	85
TVR3	59	142	80	105
TVR4	92	126	77	94
TVR5	49	116	71	89
TVR6	57	138	86	108
TVR7	65	127	74	95
TVR8	73	125	79	97
TVR9	64	115	70	85
TVR10	62	102	58	78
TVR11	59	123	78	97
TVR12	61	118	75	92
TVR13	70	134	72	98
TVR14	55	113	76	76
TVR15	66	129	80	101
TVR16	52	93	59	72
TVR17	42	126	77	97
TVR18	60	140	70	99
TVR19	55	119	70	89
TVR20	73	140	76	101
PFA02		102	62	
PFA03		95	62	
PFA10		104	65	
PFA11		93	63	
PFA12		103	64	
PFA14		112	69	
PFA17		102	66	
PFA30		107	75	

PFA34	99	65	
PFA36	107	67	
PFA40	103	68	
PFA55	95	65	
PFA56	95	60	
PFA59	88	62	
PFA69	99	54	
PFB03	95	60	
PFB04	102	65	
PFB14	107	62	
PFB19	94	63	
PFB24	91	57	
PMA10	100	63	
PMA15	89	49	
PMA16	102	61	
PMB05	111	66	
PMA22	98	45	
PMA24	85	59	
PMB04	107	71	
PMA27	95	56	
PMA28	93	63	
PMA32	105	64	
PMA33	105	61	
PMA38	94	59	
PMA42	101	63	
PMA67	95	60	
PMA68	88	61	
PMA73	105	55	
PMA74	99	62	
PMA77	101	63	
PMB06	104	66	
PMB01	87	57	

Vascular Variables

	BL Diamata	Peak Diamat	Time	Abs EMD	% FMD	4 min Diamata	Abs L-	%L-	TVR	ABS(F		AUC to
Study ID	r	er	Геак	FNID		r	FMC	FMC		FMC)	RESPONSE	реак
SPEC02	3.43	3.83	29.23	0.40	11.62	3.36	-0.07	-2.17	14.10	13.79	Constrict	10437
SPEC03	4.16	4.27	34.04	0.10	2.47	4.06	-0.11	-2.58	5.19	5.06	Constrict	6113
SPEC04	4.39	4.76	38.66	0.37	8.45	4.34	-0.05	-1.12	9.67	9.57	Constrict	7757
SPEC05	3.26	3.51	53.30	0.25	7.77	3.19	-0.06	-1.95	9.91	9.72	Constrict	37834
SPEC06	3.67	4.01	50.50	0.33	9.08	3.61	-0.07	-1.79	11.07	10.87	Constrict	16943
SPEC07	3.43	3.65		0.22	6.45	3.79	0.36	10.53	-3.69	16.98	Dilate	
SPEC08	4.82	5.18		0.35	7.26	4.75	-0.07	-1.52	8.92	8.79	Constrict	
SPEC09	4.75	4.97		0.21	4.44	4.75	-0.01	-0.14	4.59	4.58	Constrict	
SPEC10	4.13	4.20	55.73	0.07	1.77	3.83	-0.29	-7.10	9.55	8.87	Constrict	27498
COS01	3.78	3.81	135.00	0.03	0.70	3.79	0.01	0.26	0.44	1.05	Dilate	26986
COS02	4.83	5.05	72.00	0.22	4.54	4.83	-0.01	-0.12	4.67	4.66	Constrict	14113
COS03	3.63	3.63	28.00	0.00	0.00	3.51	-0.13	-3.49	3.61	3.49	Constrict	5989
SFCP01	3.98	4.21	69.23	0.24	5.91	3.95	-0.02	-0.62	6.57	6.53	Constrict	
SFCP02	3.51	4.14	45.41	0.64	18.13	4.04	0.54	15.27	2.49	33.40	Dilate	23848
SFCP03	2.84	3.25	125.97	0.41	14.52	2.77	-0.07	-2.37	17.30	16.89	Constrict	
SFCP04	2.98	3.15	31.55	0.17	5.63	2.92	-0.06	-1.96	7.74	7.59	Constrict	
SFCP05	4.86	5.13	15.66	0.27	5.47	5.07	0.21	4.22	1.20	9.68	Dilate	6558
SFCP06	3.90	4.20		0.30	7.77	3.53	-0.37	-9.49	19.07	17.26	Constrict	
SFCP07	2.98	3.51	99.65	0.53	17.83	2.89	-0.09	-2.93	21.38	20.76	Constrict	
SFCP08	2.67	3.09	32.01	0.42	15.75	2.75	0.08	2.88	12.51	18.63	Dilate	
SFCP09	2.95	3.26	66.99	0.31	10.58	2.80	-0.15	-5.08	16.49	15.65	Constrict	157889
SFCP10	3.23	3.49	41.06	0.26	8.17	3.26	0.03	0.97	7.13	9.14	Dilate	39619
SFCP11	3.50	3.65	52.66	0.15	4.24	3.46	-0.05	-1.36	5.67	5.59	Constrict	
SFCP12	3.63	3.79	45.07	0.17	4.62	3.76	0.13	3.69	0.89	8.31	Dilate	

SFCP13	3.72	3.97	98.40	0.25	6.85	3.49	-0.23	-6.17	13.89	13.03	Constrict	
SFCP14	3.05	3.48	144.16	0.43	14.06	3.07	0.02	0.57	13.41	14.63	Dilate	27513
SFCP15	4.10	4.25	168.58	0.15	3.68	3.77	-0.33	-8.16	12.90	11.85	Constrict	
SFCP16	3.61	4.04	56.83	0.43	11.89	3.64	0.03	0.87	10.93	12.76	Dilate	28969
SFCP17	4.81	5.17	55.33	0.36	7.45	4.81	0.00	-0.10	7.55	7.54	Constrict	29123
SFCP18	3.30	3.62	98.03	0.32	9.59	3.55	0.25	7.43	2.01	17.03	Dilate	19488
SFCP19	3.90	4.17	158.37	0.28	7.10	3.94	0.04	1.04	6.00	8.13	Dilate	19921
SFCP21	2.93	3.35	100.38	0.43	14.68	2.77	-0.16	-5.32	21.13	20.00	Constrict	
SFCP22	3.59	3.85	56.31	0.26	7.31	3.47	-0.12	-3.33	11.01	10.64	Constrict	41907
SFCP23	3.07	3.36	52.64	0.29	9.33	3.12	0.05	1.49	7.73	10.82	Dilate	
SFCP24	2.14	2.41	38.37	0.27	12.76	2.13	-0.01	-0.40	13.22	13.16	Constrict	
SFCP26	3.68	3.83	55.95	0.15	4.13	3.65	-0.03	-0.72	4.88	4.85	Constrict	
SFCP28	3.43	3.61	41.00	0.17	5.05	3.35	-0.08	-2.31	7.53	7.36	Constrict	
SFCP29	3.42	3.69	60.76	0.27	7.94	3.37	-0.05	-1.36	9.42	9.29	Constrict	
SFCP30	2.98	3.15	8.72	0.17	5.80	3.03	0.05	1.68	4.05	7.48	Dilate	
SFCP31	3.85	4.20	53.21	0.35	9.09	3.75	-0.09	-2.46	11.84	11.55	Constrict	
SFCP32	4.21	4.61	77.60	0.40	9.38	3.95	-0.27	-6.38	16.83	15.76	Constrict	
SFCP33	3.40	3.51	47.91	0.11	3.29	3.23	-0.17	-4.88	8.59	8.17	Constrict	
SFCP34	3.83	3.93	105.52	0.09	2.46	3.53	-0.30	-7.74	11.05	10.20	Constrict	
SFCP35	3.84	3.99	17.95	0.15	3.83	4.19	0.35	9.13	-4.85	12.96	Dilate	
SFCP36	3.81	3.83	38.81	0.02	0.48	3.75	-0.06	-1.57	2.09	2.06	Constrict	
SFCP42	3.56	3.97	162.63	0.41	11.47	3.78	0.22	6.26	4.89	17.73	Dilate	
SFCP43	3.92	3.95	71.12	0.03	0.79	3.70	-0.22	-5.61	6.78	6.40	Constrict	
SFCP45	3.36	3.71	37.05	0.35	10.44	3.59	0.23	6.81	3.40	17.24	Dilate	
SFCP46	2.44	2.99	109.13	0.55	22.67	2.23	-0.21	-8.53	34.11	31.20	Constrict	
SFCP47	2.65	3.06	81.08	0.40	15.25	2.46	-0.19	-7.09	24.04	22.34	Constrict	
SFCP48	3.79	4.09	47.97	0.30	8.04	4.00	0.21	5.58	2.33	13.63	Dilate	
---------	------	------	--------	------	-------	------	-------	--------	-------	-------	-----------	-------
AMCP1	3.66	3.70	75	0.04	1.11	3.45	-0.21	-5.83	7.37	6.94	Constrict	
AMCP2	3.27	3.59	45	0.32	9.77	3.28	0.01	0.22	9.53	10.00	Dilate	
AMCP3	2.77	3.42	180	0.65	23.38	2.93	0.16	5.95	16.45	29.33	Dilate	
AMCP4	3.81	4.15	60	0.33	8.75	3.78	-0.03	-0.80	9.63	9.56	Constrict	
AMCP5	3.02	3.04	135	0.02	0.55	2.82	-0.21	-6.80	7.89	7.35	Constrict	
AMCP6	3.30	3.64	120	0.34	10.34	3.26	-0.04	-1.16	11.63	11.50	Constrict	
AMCP7	3.50	3.75	105	0.25	7.06	3.47	-0.03	-0.89	8.01	7.94	Constrict	
AMCP8	2.95	3.53	105	0.58	19.76	2.96	0.01	0.49	19.18	20.24	Dilate	
AMCP9	2.82	3.10	150	0.28	9.86	2.99	0.17	5.99	3.65	15.85	Dilate	
AMCP11	2.41	2.91	45	0.50	20.65	2.47	0.06	2.53	17.67	23.18	Dilate	
AMCON1	3.14	3.48	120.00	0.33	10.57	3.17	0.03	0.88	9.61	11.45	Dilate	
AMCON2	3.23	3.27	180.00	0.04	1.27	3.10	-0.13	-3.99	5.48	5.26	Constrict	
AMCON3	3.14	3.36	45.00	0.21	6.77	3.25	0.10	3.32	3.35	10.09	Dilate	
AMCON4	4.13	4.26	150.00	0.13	3.15	4.21	0.09	2.09	1.04	5.24	Dilate	
AMCON5	3.07	3.29	90.00	0.22	7.24	2.96	-0.11	-3.47	11.10	10.71	Constrict	
AMCON6	3.40	3.66	120.00	0.26	7.66	3.46	0.06	1.73	5.82	9.39	Dilate	
AMCON7	3.37	3.60	75.00	0.23	6.73	3.51	0.14	4.09	2.54	10.83	Dilate	
AMCON8	2.69	2.83	90.00	0.14	5.29	2.64	-0.05	-1.82	7.24	7.11	Constrict	
AMCON10	2.86	3.18	60.00	0.32	11.35	2.91	0.05	1.78	9.40	13.14	Dilate	
AMCON11	3.08	3.10	165.00	0.02	0.54	2.74	-0.35	-11.19	13.20	11.73	Constrict	
TR02	4.06	4.27	49.86	0.21	5.25	3.96	-0.09	-2.32	7.74	7.57	Constrict	28978
TR03	4.93	5.33	43.13	0.40	8.01	4.95	0.02	0.32	7.68	8.33	Dilate	15130
TR04	3.79	4.06	34.58	0.27	7.21	3.71	-0.07	-1.96	9.38	9.17	Constrict	21763
TR05	3.69	4.00	49.87	0.31	8.32	3.59	-0.10	-2.80	11.43	11.11	Constrict	23428
TR06	4.53	5.07	48.81	0.54	11.97	4.60	0.07	1.54	10.27	13.50	Dilate	25564

TR07	4.20	4.57	62.55	0.36	8.62	4.31	0.11	2.61	5.87	11.23	Dilate	61360
TR08	3.94	4.13	41.33	0.18	4.57	3.84	-0.11	-2.67	7.45	7.23	Constrict	21132
TR09	4.34	4.60	33.54	0.26	6.06	4.29	-0.05	-1.07	7.20	7.12	Constrict	26333
TR10	3.47	3.91	54.51	0.44	12.74	3.49	0.03	0.85	11.79	13.56	Dilate	59603
TR11	3.78	3.88	35.51	0.10	2.69	3.71	-0.07	-1.91	4.67	4.61	Constrict	16101
TR12	3.87	4.38	55.18	0.52	13.33	3.86	-0.01	-0.18	13.52	13.52	Constrict	50855
TR13	3.32	3.66	44.92	0.35	10.40	3.34	0.02	0.52	9.84	10.91	Dilate	26553
TR14	3.90	4.17	47.48	0.26	6.71	3.93	0.03	0.64	6.03	7.35	Dilate	22191
TR15	4.02	4.43	45.05	0.41	10.29	4.04	0.03	0.63	9.60	10.90	Dilate	21002
TR17	4.78	5.01	40.97	0.22	4.66	4.76	-0.03	-0.56	5.26	5.23	Constrict	21549
TR18	4.30	4.71	29.53	0.42	9.72	4.35	0.05	1.19	8.42	10.90	Dilate	14921
TR19	3.29	3.48	53.86	0.19	5.77	3.28	-0.01	-0.35	6.13	6.11	Constrict	30287
TR20	4.00	4.45	43.59	0.46	11.39	3.91	-0.09	-2.34	14.06	13.75	Constrict	32891
TR21	3.98	4.52	117.72	0.54	13.67	4.08	0.10	2.57	10.81	16.25	Dilate	14330
TR22	4.03	4.46	40.68	0.43	10.72	4.10	0.07	1.70	8.84	12.39	Dilate	18326
TR23	4.11	4.37	40.78	0.26	6.31	4.07	-0.04	-0.92	7.33	7.23	Constrict	29772
TR24	4.52	4.72	52.68	0.20	4.31	4.41	-0.12	-2.54	7.03	6.85	Constrict	18356
TR25	4.08	4.31	45.82	0.23	5.64	4.05	-0.04	-0.87	6.57	6.49	Constrict	30925
TR26	3.33	3.61	40.02	0.28	8.53	3.26	-0.07	-2.00	10.77	10.55	Constrict	25868
TR27	3.97	4.39	35.62	0.42	10.60	4.02	0.05	1.33	9.15	11.92	Dilate	39121
CAMO01	6.08	6.30		0.22	3.60	6.27	0.19	3.19	0.39	6.79	Dilate	
CAMO02	4.24	4.37		0.13	2.97	4.24	0.00	-0.05	3.02	3.02	Constrict	
CAMO03	3.58	3.83		0.25	7.05	3.74	0.16	4.38	2.56	11.44	Dilate	
CAMO04	5.31	6.09		0.77	14.56	5.78	0.46	8.70	5.38	23.26	Dilate	
CAMO05	3.39	3.64		0.25	7.28	3.58	0.18	5.43	1.76	12.71	Dilate	
CAMO06	3.74	3.61		-0.13	-3.34	3.81	0.07	2.00	-5.24	5.35	Dilate	

CAMO07	3.69	3.85	0.17	4.54	3.52	-0.16	-4.42	9.37	8.96	Constrict	
CAMO08	5.07	5.27	0.20	3.94	5.16	0.09	1.85	2.06	5.79	Dilate	
CAMO09	4.00	3.79	-0.21	-5.30	3.65	-0.35	-8.84	3.88	14.15	Constrict	
CAMO10	3.22	3.38	0.16	5.00	3.21	0.00	-0.13	5.13	5.12	Constrict	
CAM011	3.75	4.17	0.42	11.30	3.88	0.13	3.40	7.64	14.69	Dilate	
CAMO12	3.35	3.61	0.26	7.86	3.29	-0.06	-1.72	9.75	9.58	Constrict	
CAMO13	3.16	3.33	0.17	5.26	3.10	-0.06	-1.91	7.31	7.16	Constrict	
CAMO14	2.68	2.91	0.23	8.63	2.79	0.11	4.01	4.44	12.64	Dilate	
CAMO15	3.44	3.80	0.35	10.20	3.58	0.13	3.91	6.06	14.11	Dilate	
CAMO16	2.87	2.95	0.09	3.01	2.90	0.03	1.05	1.94	4.06	Dilate	
CAMO17	3.65	3.86	0.20	5.60	3.51	-0.14	-3.82	9.79	9.42	Constrict	
CAMO18	2.78	3.17	0.40	14.32	2.97	0.20	7.05	6.79	21.37	Dilate	
CAMO19	3.60	3.89	0.29	8.04	3.66	0.06	1.68	6.25	9.71	Dilate	
CAMO20	4.76	4.99	0.23	4.73	4.94	0.18	3.71	0.98	8.44	Dilate	
CAMO21	4.39	4.55	0.16	3.59	4.47	0.08	1.81	1.75	5.40	Dilate	
CAMO22	3.69	3.53	-0.16	-4.29	3.36	-0.33	-9.02	5.20	13.30	Constrict	
CAMO23	3.97	4.09	0.11	2.78	3.87	-0.11	-2.71	5.65	5.49	Constrict	
CAMO24	3.88	4.03	0.14	3.69	3.83	-0.05	-1.39	5.15	5.08	Constrict	
CAMO25	5.31	5.49	0.18	3.45	5.70	0.39	7.30	-3.59	10.76	Dilate	
CAMO26	3.01	3.21	0.20	6.79	3.00	-0.01	-0.32	7.13	7.10	Constrict	
CAMO27	2.10	2.26	0.15	7.31	2.33	0.23	10.88	-3.22	18.19	Dilate	
CAMO28	4.74	5.00	0.26	5.53	4.78	0.04	0.81	4.69	6.34	Dilate	
CAMO29	3.64	3.77	0.13	3.52	3.60	-0.03	-0.94	4.50	4.46	Constrict	
CAMO30	3.85	4.10	0.25	6.39	3.74	-0.12	-3.00	9.68	9.39	Constrict	
CAMO31	4.00	4.30	0.30	7.50	4.05	0.05	1.23	6.20	8.73	Dilate	
CAMO32	4.52	4.69	0.17	3.73	4.50	-0.02	-0.40	4.15	4.13	Constrict	

CAM033	3.69	3.77		0.08	2.07	3.68	-0.01	-0.40	2.47	2.46	Constrict	
CAMO34	5.20	5.34		0.14	2.67	5.21	0.01	0.19	2.48	2.86	Dilate	
CAMS01	4.26	4.34		0.09	2.06	4.16	-0.09	-2.13	4.28	4.18	Constrict	
CAMS02	2.80	2.76		-0.04	-1.35	2.61	-0.19	-6.75	5.79	8.11	Constrict	
CAMS05	5.13	5.76		0.63	12.19	5.32	0.19	3.71	8.18	15.91	Dilate	
CAMS06	4.33	4.52		0.19	4.27	4.40	0.07	1.52	2.71	5.79	Dilate	
CAMS08	4.21	4.36		0.15	3.53	4.10	-0.11	-2.51	6.19	6.02	Constrict	
CAMS09	3.30	3.41		0.11	3.44	3.25	-0.05	-1.45	4.96	4.90	Constrict	
CAMS10	5.66	5.83		0.18	3.09	5.68	0.02	0.34	2.74	3.44	Dilate	
CAMS11	2.28	2.59		0.31	13.60	2.32	0.04	1.76	11.64	15.36	Dilate	
CAMS12	3.81	3.78		-0.03	-0.82	3.79	-0.02	-0.56	-0.27	1.38	Constrict	
CAMS13	3.55	3.84		0.29	8.23	3.58	0.03	0.86	7.30	9.10	Dilate	
CAMS14	4.62	4.82		0.20	4.32	4.75	0.13	2.75	1.53	7.06	Dilate	
CAMS15	2.67	2.81		0.14	5.16	2.60	-0.07	-2.60	7.96	7.77	Constrict	
CAD01	4.77	5.08	25.2	0.32	6.60	4.80	0.03	0.67	5.88	7.38	Dilate	3446
CAD02	4.19	4.40	52.2	0.21	5.00	4.27	0.08	1.86	3.03	6.87	Dilate	12580
CAD03	3.16	3.30	24	0.15	4.70	3.13	-0.02	-0.70	5.50	5.45	Constrict	2667
CAD04	5.06	5.31	64.9	0.26	5.10	5.03	-0.02	-0.48	5.65	5.62	Constrict	22890
CAD05	4.64	4.79	56.5	0.15	3.20	4.63	-0.01	-0.28	3.49	3.51	Constrict	9956
CAD06	3.31	3.47	24.8	0.16	4.70	3.37	0.05	1.64	2.90	6.48	Dilate	3815
CAD07	4.44	4.81	54.8	0.37	8.30	4.66	0.21	4.74	3.31	13.07	Dilate	5139
CAD08	3.8	4.00	100.9	0.19	5.10	3.87	0.07	1.91	3.24	6.91	Dilate	41301
CAD09	4.84	5.17	76	0.33	6.80	4.94	0.10	2.12	4.55	8.94	Dilate	20461
CAD10	4.58	4.60	16.8	0.02	0.30	4.55	-0.03	-0.75	1.03	1.18	Constrict	1137
CAD13	3.85	4.02	10.9	0.17	4.50	3.83	-0.02	-0.40	4.97	4.84	Constrict	457.7
CAD14	3.06	3.36	29.2	0.3	9.70	3.14	0.08	2.50	7.11	12.26	Dilate	3933

CAD16	4.35	4.52	59.8	0.17	4.00	4.35	0.00	0.11	3.88	4.02	Dilate	10126
CAD18	5.44	5.55	77.5	0.11	2.00	5.45	0.00	0.06	1.96	2.08	Dilate	33967
CAD19	4.55	4.83	88.3	0.28	6.20	4.67	0.12	2.57	3.52	8.73	Dilate	13705
CAD20	5.75	6.03	49.9	0.28	4.90	5.75	0.00	0.01	4.88	4.88	Dilate	5473
CAD21	4.6	4.74	67.2	0.13	2.90	4.68	0.07	1.58	1.30	4.40	Dilate	17775
CAD22	5.44	5.50	61.4	0.06	1.20	5.46	0.03	0.50	0.65	1.61	Dilate	15666
CAD23	4.26	4.43	96.3	0.17	4.10	4.35	0.10	2.26	1.81	6.25	Dilate	25117
CAD24	4.84	5.25	112.4	0.41	8.50	4.90	0.06	1.32	7.05	9.79	Dilate	18584
CAD25	3.54	3.92	91.7	0.39	10.90	3.58	0.04	1.13	9.67	12.15	Dilate	46264
CAD26	4.06	4.18	61.4	0.12	3.00	4.05	-0.01	-0.18	3.23	3.14	Constrict	9835
CAD27	5.26	5.28	38.8	0.02	0.30	5.27	0.01	0.22	0.10	0.60	Dilate	5387
CAD28	5.07	5.20	87.2	0.13	2.60	5.05	-0.02	-0.36	3.00	2.92	Constrict	19490
CAD29	5.26	5.42	14.5	0.16	3.00	5.30	0.04	0.77	2.17	3.81	Dilate	885.4
CAD30	4.00	4.00	69	0	0.00	4.05	0.05	1.35	-1.34	1.35	Dilate	12662
RAM01 V1	4.27	4.61	34.28	0.34	8.03	4.31	0.04	0.90	7.07	8.86	Dilate	26313
RAM02 V1	5.08	5.33	59.16	0.25	4.98	5.08	0.00	0.08	4.90	5.00	Dilate	21702
RAM03 V1	4.15	4.32	48.36	0.17	4.11	4.16	0.01	0.30	3.80	4.40	Dilate	31848
RAM04 V1	4.17	4.28	34.28	0.11	2.68	4.22	0.05	1.20	1.46	3.84	Dilate	26000
RAM05 V1	3.62	3.95	46.37	0.33	9.02	3.83	0.22	5.95	2.90	15.07	Dilate	40507
RAM06 V1	4.01	4.28	56.97	0.27	6.75	4.08	0.07	1.83	4.83	8.56	Dilate	33673
RAM07 V1	4.29	4.64	25.18	0.35	8.23	4.35	0.06	1.41	6.72	9.57	Dilate	20951
RAM08 V1	4.14	4.49	75.90	0.35	8.33	4.06	-0.09	-2.16	10.72	10.61	Constrict	64839
RAM09 V1	4.09	4.24	35.20	0.15	3.61	4.13	0.04	0.87	2.71	4.54	Dilate	24747
RAM10 V1	4.54	4.76	73.94	0.21	4.71	4.63	0.08	1.83	2.83	6.46	Dilate	36583
RAM11 V1	3.83	4.02	44.99	0.19	4.88	3.81	-0.02	-0.45	5.36	5.41	Constrict	30365
RAM12 V1	4.48	4.87	35.51	0.39	8.61	4.40	-0.08	-1.85	10.66	10.56	Constrict	45575

RAM13 V1	4.09	4.51	49.62	0.42	10.23	4.12	0.03	0.72	9.44	10.99	Dilate	36736
RAM14 V1	3.81	4.08	28.05	0.27	7.10	3.81	0.00	-0.10	7.21	7.19	Constrict	28433
RAM15 V1	4.65	4.93	29.96	0.28	5.93	4.68	0.02	0.53	5.37	6.55	Dilate	10567
RAM16 V1	3.81	4.39	70.66	0.57	15.06	3.92	0.11	2.87	11.85	17.83	Dilate	43616
RAM17 V1	4.25	4.53	60.57	0.28	6.61	4.33	0.08	1.90	4.62	8.49	Dilate	42759
RAM18 V1	4.78	4.96	62.25	0.17	3.63	4.75	-0.03	-0.66	4.32	4.22	Constrict	28529
RAM19 V1	4.35	4.64	57.97	0.3	6.80	4.36	0.01	0.19	6.59	7.09	Dilate	35560
RAM20 V1	4.21	4.56	78.44	0.34	8.16	4.27	0.06	1.38	6.69	9.45	Dilate	53811
RAM21 V1	2.47	2.76	39.77	0.29	11.76	2.42	-0.06	-2.26	14.35	14.00	Constrict	46156
RAM22 V1	2.82	3.13	99.21	0.32	11.19	2.77	-0.04	-1.52	12.90	12.69	Constrict	41918
RAM23 V1	2.74	2.94	25.18	0.2	7.35	2.74	0.00	-0.08	7.49	7.38	Constrict	44567
RAM24 V1	3.55	3.63	45.39	0.08	2.16	3.54	-0.01	-0.36	2.58	2.61	Constrict	39764
RAM25 V1	3.05	3.22	41.04	0.17	5.64	3.03	-0.02	-0.59	6.27	6.17	Constrict	21873
RAM26 V1	2.83	3.20	34.77	0.37	13.00	2.91	0.08	2.75	9.97	15.83	Dilate	34650
RAM31 V1	3.30	3.41	145.69	0.1	3.15	3.31	0.01	0.35	2.78	3.38	Dilate	21379
RAM32 V1	3.07	3.28	76.00	0.21	6.78	3.05	-0.02	-0.69	7.53	7.53	Constrict	62147
RAM34 V1	2.72	2.98	47.97	0.26	9.54	2.74	0.02	0.81	8.66	10.37	Dilate	41281
RAM35 V1	3.47	3.66	58.98	0.18	5.25	3.50	0.03	0.76	4.45	5.95	Dilate	21835
RAM36 V1	3.35	3.47	41.90	0.13	3.77	3.30	-0.05	-1.40	5.24	5.28	Constrict	24498
RAM38 V1	3.18	3.31	41.86	0.13	4.07	3.17	-0.01	-0.40	4.50	4.49	Constrict	28373
V1RAM41	3.34	3.65	25.38	0.31	9.27	3.49	0.15	4.44	4.62	13.75	Dilate	18514
V1RAM43	3.12	3.24	31.98	0.12	3.91	3.11	-0.01	-0.28	4.20	4.23	Constrict	16445
V1RAM44	3.00	3.22		0.22	7.25	3.13	0.13	4.46	2.68	11.59	Dilate	
V1RAM46	2.99	3.24	31.37	0.26	8.57	3.00	0.01	0.39	8.15	8.91	Dilate	20867
V1RAM47	3.27	3.64	47.53	0.37	11.33	3.36	0.09	2.62	8.49	14.08	Dilate	17773
V1RAM48	3.41	3.87	48.58	0.46	13.44	3.40	-0.01	-0.27	13.74	13.73	Constrict	25023

V1RAM49	3.22	3.48	59.80	0.26	8.04	3.19	-0.03	-0.94	9.06	8.97	Constrict	30561
V1RAM50	3.25	3.48	45.03	0.23	7.21	3.21	-0.03	-1.06	8.36	8.13	Constrict	60765
V1RAM51	3.57	3.73	37.43	0.15	4.33	3.52	-0.05	-1.39	5.80	5.73	Constrict	20599
V1RAM52	3.70	3.88	32.18	0.18	4.82	3.71	0.01	0.20	4.61	5.09	Dilate	20826
V1RAM53	3.75	4.06	20.70	0.30	8.12	3.85	0.10	2.57	5.40	10.67	Dilate	8253
V1RAM54	2.96	3.17	63.09	0.21	7.24	2.94	-0.01	-0.43	7.70	7.43	Constrict	47522
V1RAM55	3.29	3.59	35.00	0.31	9.31	3.24	-0.04	-1.36	10.82	10.67	Constrict	22386
V1RAM56	3.08	3.35	30.15	0.27	8.86	2.98	-0.09	-3.05	12.29	11.79	Constrict	33363
V1RAM58	3.15	3.42	34.00	0.26	8.39	3.14	-0.01	-0.24	8.65	8.70	Constrict	65945
V1RAM59	3.49	3.68	44.01	0.19	5.51	3.43	-0.06	-1.67	7.30	7.23	Constrict	16276
V1RAM60	3.57	3.79	35.76	0.22	6.04	3.53	-0.04	-1.20	7.32	7.15	Constrict	18043
V1RAM61	3.39	3.70	29.98	0.31	9.13	3.41	0.03	0.81	8.25	10.01	Dilate	33883
ASPEN 1	5.04	5.29		0.25	4.98	5.08	0.04	0.80	4.14	5.76	Dilate	
ASPEN 2	4.05	4.29		0.24	5.81	4.13	0.07	1.77	3.97	7.70	Dilate	
ASPEN 3	5.29	5.42		0.14	2.55	5.27	-0.02	-0.39	2.96	2.95	Constrict	
ASPEN 4	4.34	4.66		0.32	7.39	4.45	0.11	2.47	4.80	9.84	Dilate	
ASPEN 5	4.47	4.66		0.19	4.43	4.53	0.06	1.43	2.96	5.68	Dilate	
ASPEN 6	4.55	4.71		0.16	3.41	4.43	-0.13	-2.79	6.38	6.31	Constrict	
ASPEN 7	4.09	4.39		0.3	7.23	4.23	0.13	3.26	3.85	10.59	Dilate	
ASPEN 8	3.4	3.63		0.23	6.72	3.46	0.07	1.96	4.67	8.73	Dilate	
ASPEN 9	4.88	5.14		0.26	5.25	4.99	0.11	2.22	2.97	7.54	Dilate	
ASPEN 10	4.17	4.57		0.4	9.65	4.22	0.05	1.16	8.40	10.75	Dilate	
NESTLE S6	4.68	4.85	53.63	0.17	3.63	4.66	-0.01	-0.30	3.95	3.94	Constrict	16002
NESTLE S8	4.93	5.06	44.84	0.13	2.71	4.92	-0.01	-0.11	2.83	2.82	Constrict	13141
NESTLE S10	4.54	4.79	67.12	0.25	5.45	4.51	-0.03	-0.73	6.22	6.18	Constrict	12626

NESTLE S11	4.47	4.83	77.28	0.36	7.95	4.32	-0.15	-3.44	11.80	11.39	Constrict	27373
NESTLE S12	4.45	4.53	50.90	0.07	1.68	4.36	-0.09	-2.01	3.76	3.69	Constrict	17166
NESTLE S13	3.28	3.51	49.58	0.23	7.01	3.21	-0.07	-2.12	9.32	9.13	Constrict	26080
NESTLE S14	4.58	4.85	51.57	0.27	5.93	4.51	-0.06	-1.34	7.37	7.27	Constrict	19751
NESTLE S15	4.94	5.07	88.76	0.13	2.53	4.90	-0.05	-0.96	3.53	3.50	Constrict	19092
NESTLE S16	4.73	4.90	62.19	0.16	3.44	4.67	-0.07	-1.39	4.90	4.83	Constrict	14150
NESTLE S17	4.18	4.48	44.24	0.30	7.11	4.15	-0.03	-0.77	7.94	7.88	Constrict	12278
NESTLE S18	3.49	3.80	48.89	0.31	8.82	3.43	-0.06	-1.77	10.78	10.59	Constrict	15251
NESTLE S19	4.76	5.14	36.18	0.39	8.16	4.72	-0.04	-0.82	9.06	8.98	Constrict	11553
NESTLE S21	5.71	5.74	39.85	0.03	0.55	5.52	-0.18	-3.16	3.84	3.72	Constrict	3036
NESTLE S23	4.74	4.83	63.14	0.09	1.94	4.48	-0.26	-5.50	7.88	7.44	Constrict	22715
NESTLE S25	4.95	5.05	41.97	0.10	2.07	4.90	-0.04	-0.83	2.92	2.90	Constrict	10453
NESTLE S27	5.91	6.23	41.54	0.32	5.45	5.90	-0.01	-0.17	5.63	5.62	Constrict	7976
NESTLE S28	5.11	5.41	34.96	0.30	5.97	5.36	0.26	5.06	0.86	11.03	Dilate	4980
NESTLE S31	4.19	4.25	41.05	0.05	1.30	4.13	-0.07	-1.59	2.94	2.90	Constrict	10978
ACM1	4.22	4.43	41.00	0.21	5.00	4.38	0.16	3.80	1.18	8.77	Dilate	11732
ACM2	3.1	3.43	50.00	0.33	10.80	3.16	0.07	2.12	8.48	12.77	Dilate	38241
ACM3	4.86	5.25	46.00	0.39	8.00	4.99	0.13	2.63	5.23	10.66	Dilate	9196
ACM4	4.28	4.51	48.00	0.22	5.20	4.30	0.02	0.48	4.72	5.62	Dilate	22593

ACM5	3.42	3.65	35.00	0.23	6.80	3.30	-0.12	-3.62	10.78	10.35	Constrict	11556
ACM6	4.32	4.43	66.00	0.11	2.50	4.26	-0.07	-1.51	4.08	4.05	Constrict	23099
ACM8	3.28	3.78	73.00	0.5	15.20	3.30	0.01	0.42	14.67	15.67	Dilate	32042
ACM10	4.03	4.31	42.00	0.28	7.00	3.96	-0.07	-1.81	8.92	8.75	Constrict	14537
ACF1	3.98	4.19	34.00	0.21	5.30	3.92	-0.06	-1.59	7.05	6.87	Constrict	11153
ACF4	3.26	3.37	23.00	0.11	3.50	3.26	0.00	-0.04	3.53	3.41	Constrict	4215
ACF5	3.26	3.48	58.00	0.22	6.60	3.14	-0.12	-3.62	10.61	10.37	Constrict	22090
ACF6	2.9	3.24	41.00	0.34	11.70	2.99	0.09	3.06	8.42	14.79	Dilate	22742
ACF7	3.42	3.64	42.00	0.22	6.50	3.41	0.00	-0.06	6.59	6.49	Constrict	14775
ACF8	3.77	4.15	41.00	0.38	10.10	3.73	-0.04	-1.08	11.26	11.16	Constrict	12465
ACF9	4.04	4.06	68.70	0.02	0.40	3.75	-0.29	-7.27	8.31	7.77	Constrict	61073
ACF10	3.65	3.79	53.00	0.14	3.80	3.60	-0.04	-1.19	5.10	5.03	Constrict	28778
V1ACUTE ENDO 1	3.97	4.26	37.05	0.29	7.19	4.11	0.13	3.29	3.77	10.47	Dilate	12269.00
V1ACUTE ENDO 2	3.91	4.07	47.87	0.17	4.27	3.88	-0.03	-0.78	5.10	5.06	Constrict	13276.00
V1ACUTE ENDO 3	4.45	4.81	22.13	0.36	8.05	4.47	0.02	0.50	7.51	8.55	Dilate	3915.00
V1ACUTE ENDO 4	3.27	3.38	60.60	0.11	3.25	3.20	-0.07	-2.21	5.71	5.57	Constrict	37694.00
V1ACUTE ENDO 5	4.17	4.21	95.12	0.04	1.02	4.00	-0.17	-3.97	5.19	4.99	Constrict	33103.00
V1ACUTE ENDO 6	4.58	4.76	63.70	0.18	3.97	4.46	-0.11	-2.48	6.61	6.45	Constrict	25771.00
V1ACUTE ENDO 7	3.71	3.88	57.78	0.17	4.52	3.69	-0.02	-0.60	5.15	5.12	Constrict	1036.00
AB-SCI04 NC	4.39	5.08	47.22	0.69	15.70	4.20	-0.20	-4.48	21.12	20.18	Constrict	15806
AB-SCI06 NC	4.33	4.70	51.96	0.37	8.54	4.39	0.06	1.43	7.01	9.96	Dilate	15628
AB-SCI07	4.35	4.55	54.25	0.20	4.58	4.35	0.00	-0.02	4.60	4.60	Constrict	12290

NC												
AB-SCI11 NC	3.85	4.12	59.02	0.27	6.97	3.88	0.03	0.67	6.25	7.64	Dilate	22996
AB-SCI12 NC	3.92	3.97	39.03	0.05	1.30	3.85	-0.08	-1.93	3.29	3.23	Constrict	23830
AB-SCI14 NC	3.53	3.73	40.45	0.21	5.83	3.52	-0.01	-0.23	6.08	6.06	Constrict	9609
AB-SCI19 NC	4.81	5.11	53.88	0.30	6.17	4.95	0.14	2.94	3.14	9.11	Dilate	16499
AB-SCI24 NC	3.21	3.30	42.57	0.09	2.89	3.18	-0.03	-0.88	3.80	3.76	Constrict	10531
SCI01	4.23	4.55	100.83	0.32	7.54	4.04	-0.19	-4.59	12.71	12.13	Constrict	35050
SCI02	3.83	4.11	83.49	0.27	7.09	3.60	-0.24	-6.20	14.16	13.29	Constrict	74550
SCI03	3.83	4.05	76.43	0.22	5.66	3.85	0.02	0.45	5.19	6.12	Dilate	7275
SCI04	4.51	4.74	17.14	0.22	4.91	4.39	-0.12	-2.67	7.80	7.59	Constrict	3329
SCI05	4.04	4.21	49.38	0.17	4.30	3.90	-0.13	-3.33	7.90	7.63	Constrict	8632
SCI06	4.63	4.77	105.38	0.14	3.00	4.48	-0.15	-3.23	6.44	6.23	Constrict	7190
SCI07	4.83	5.27	139.85	0.43	8.99	4.84	0.00	0.06	8.93	9.05	Dilate	76663
SCI08	4.08	4.41	58.47	0.33	8.05	3.80	-0.29	-7.04	16.23	15.08	Constrict	11195
SCI09	4.28	4.56	46.98	0.28	6.54	4.48	0.19	4.55	1.90	11.09	Dilate	13856
SCI10	4.19	4.28	58.21	0.09	2.13	3.71	-0.47	-11.33	15.18	13.46	Constrict	9375
SCI11	5.47	5.69	44.26	0.22	4.03	5.00	-0.47	-8.65	13.88	12.68	Constrict	10018
SCI12	5.37	5.70	12.10	0.33	6.11	5.36	-0.01	-0.26	6.39	6.37	Constrict	933
SCI13	4.24	4.79	70.17	0.55	12.95	4.21	-0.02	-0.53	13.55	13.48	Constrict	30008
SCI14	5.10	5.24	41.73	0.14	2.82	4.98	-0.12	-2.36	5.30	5.18	Constrict	6925
SCI15	4.10	4.32	30.21	0.22	5.38	4.08	-0.02	-0.55	5.96	5.93	Constrict	6253
SCI16	3.88	4.20	71.65	0.32	8.14	3.77	-0.12	-3.00	11.48	11.14	Constrict	8743
SCI17	5.82	6.39	102.67	0.57	9.84	5.86	0.04	0.73	9.05	10.57	Dilate	21736
SCI18	3.71	4.02	44.77	0.31	8.36	3.40	-0.31	-8.41	18.31	16.77	Constrict	10561

SCI19	3.68	4.03	61.20	0.35	9.43	3.58	-0.10	-2.61	12.36	12.04	Constrict	47392
SCI20	4.69	4.90	72.24	0.20	4.36	4.65	-0.04	-0.83	5.23	5.19	Constrict	27349
SCI21	4.33	4.64	53.33	0.30	6.97	4.19	-0.14	-3.23	10.54	10.20	Constrict	11354
SCI22	3.35	3.69	53.11	0.33	9.96	3.29	-0.06	-1.82	12.01	11.79	Constrict	27983
SCI23	3.45	3.84	51.83	0.39	11.23	3.53	0.08	2.31	8.71	13.54	Dilate	10542
SCI24	4.77	5.08	48.90	0.32	6.69	4.72	-0.05	-1.05	7.82	7.73	Constrict	22166
SCI25	3.97	4.18	47.52	0.22	5.42	3.94	-0.02	-0.59	6.05	6.02	Constrict	8898
SCI26	3.45	3.75	48.42	0.29	8.53	3.41	-0.04	-1.13	9.78	9.67	Constrict	9338
SCI27	4.39	4.70	13.52	0.31	6.95	4.39	0.00	0.04	6.91	7.00	Dilate	408.9
SCI28	4.53	4.80	70.42	0.27	6.03	4.56	0.03	0.71	5.29	6.74	Dilate	38099
SCI29	3.52	3.94	25.45	0.41	11.70	3.50	-0.02	-0.69	12.47	12.39	Constrict	3185
SCI30	4.30	4.94	47.52	0.64	14.80	4.43	0.12	2.88	11.59	17.68	Dilate	16664
SCI31	4.26	4.69	50.94	0.43	10.08	4.07	-0.19	-4.41	15.17	14.50	Constrict	19907
SCI32	3.93	4.32	55.81	0.38	9.79	3.88	-0.05	-1.38	11.32	11.17	Constrict	5916
SCI33	5.17	5.39	88.04	0.22	4.32	5.18	0.02	0.31	4.00	4.63	Dilate	29922
SCI34	4.28	4.65	83.97	0.37	8.63	4.27	-0.02	-0.41	9.08	9.04	Constrict	21528
EDS01	2.94	3.20	33.49	0.25	8.62	2.96	0.02	0.62	7.95	9.24	Dilate	22189.00
EDS02	3.45	3.87	58.66	0.42	12.21	3.67	0.22	6.33	5.53	18.53	Dilate	30252.00
EDS03	3.95	4.16	71.32	0.21	5.41	4.00	0.05	1.27	4.09	6.67	Dilate	12384.00
EDS04	4.65	5.05		0.40	8.52	4.67	0.01	0.32	8.18	8.84	Dilate	
TVR1	3.99	4.21		0.23	5.67	3.95	-0.04	-0.88	6.61	6.77	Constrict	
TVR2	4.00	4.09	58.77	0.09	2.28	4.00	0.00	0.10	2.18	2.25	Dilate	
TVR3	5.71	5.78		0.07	1.23	5.67	-0.04	-0.70	1.94	1.93	Constrict	
TVR4	5.69	5.84	61.46	0.15	2.64	5.75	0.06	1.05	1.57	3.68	Dilate	
TVR5	5.45	5.53	40.27	0.08	1.52	5.49	0.04	0.77	0.75	2.29	Dilate	
TVR6	4.73	4.92	132.43	0.19	3.95	4.77	0.04	0.80	3.12	4.75	Dilate	

TVR7	4.69	4.87	80.43	0.18	3.75	4.74	0.05	1.14	2.58	4.90	Dilate	
TVR8	4.39	4.65	59.35	0.26	6.03	4.46	0.07	1.59	4.37	7.52	Dilate	
TVR9	4.45	4.64	55.30	0.19	4.30	4.46	0.01	0.16	4.14	4.49	Dilate	
TVR10	3.35	3.59	29.46	0.25	7.35	3.52	0.18	5.30	1.95	12.84	Dilate	
TVR11	4.78	4.98	64.34	0.21	4.32	4.77	-0.01	-0.22	4.56	4.55	Constrict	
TVR12	3.62	3.81	71.54	0.19	5.30	3.60	-0.02	-0.59	5.93	5.80	Constrict	
TVR13	3.74	3.88	41.30	0.14	3.69	3.72	-0.02	-0.53	4.24	4.28	Constrict	
TVR14	3.36	3.51	48.34	0.15	4.32	3.37	0.01	0.41	3.90	4.76	Dilate	
TVR15	4.00	4.11	74.18	0.11	2.63	4.00	-0.01	-0.17	2.80	3.00	Constrict	
TVR16	3.72	3.96	57.19	0.24	6.55	3.76	0.05	1.23	5.26	7.89	Dilate	
TVR17	5.46	5.72	65.52	0.26	4.81	5.53	0.08	1.39	3.37	6.27	Dilate	
TVR18	3.76	3.89	63.85	0.12	3.29	3.80	0.04	1.04	2.23	4.26	Dilate	
TVR19	3.16	3.23	33.97	0.07	2.09	3.14	-0.02	-0.67	2.78	2.76	Constrict	
TVR20	3.99	4.09	146.58	0.09	2.33	3.97	-0.02	-0.59	2.94	2.76	Constrict	
PFA02	2.74	2.90		0.16	5.7	2.89	0.15	5.5	0.35	11.31	Dilate	
PFA03	2.84	3.00		0.16	5.7	2.97	0.13	4.6	1.01	10.21	Dilate	
PFA10	2.29	2.42		0.12	5.3	2.32	0.03	1.2	4.31	6.55	Dilate	
PFA11	2.7	2.92		0.22	8	2.71	0.01	0.3	7.75	8.52	Dilate	
PFA12	2.62	2.84		0.22	8.3	2.65	0.03	1.3	7.17	9.54	Dilate	
PFA14	2.42	2.66		0.24	9.9	2.39	-0.03	-1	11.30	11.16	Constrict	
PFA17	2.71	2.88		0.17	6.2	2.71	0	-0.1	6.27	6.27	Constrict	
PFA30	2.84	3.16		0.31	11.1	3	0.16	5.7	5.33	16.55	Dilate	
PFA34	2.68	2.83		0.15	5.7	2.66	-0.01	-0.4	6.39	5.97	Constrict	
PFA36	2.78	2.92		0.14	5	2.79	0.01	0.3	4.66	5.40	Dilate	
PFA40	2.56	2.69		0.13	4.9	2.62	0.06	2.2	2.67	7.42	Dilate	
PFA55	2.46	2.68		0.22	8.9	2.52	0.06	2.4	6.35	11.38	Dilate	
PFA56	2.67	2.99		0.32	12	2.68	0.01	0.4	11.57	12.36	Dilate	

PFA59	2.24	2.44	0.21	9.2	2.31	0.08	3.4	5.63	12.95	Dilate	
PFA69	2.29	2.38	0.09	3.9	2.54	0.25	10.9	-6.30	14.85	Dilate	
PFB03	2.71	2.86	0.15	5.5	2.85	0.14	5	0.35	10.70	Dilate	
PFB04	2.58	2.69	0.1	3.9	2.62	0.04	1.4	2.67	5.43	Dilate	
PFB14	2.56	2.69	0.13	5.1	2.59	0.03	1.1	3.86	6.25	Dilate	
PFB19	2.31	2.39	0.08	3.5	2.41	0.1	4.3	-0.83	7.79	Dilate	
PFB24	2.78	2.87	0.09	3.1	2.81	0.03	1.2	2.14	4.32	Dilate	
PMA10	3.05	3.21	0.16	5.2	3.16	0.11	3.6	1.58	8.85	Dilate	
PMA15	2.37	2.53	0.16	6.6	2.42	0.05	2	4.55	8.86	Dilate	
PMA16	2.43	2.58	0.15	6.4	2.49	0.06	2.5	3.61	8.64	Dilate	
PMB05	3.1856	3.28	0.10	3.01	3.21	0.03	0.83	2.17	3.84	Dilate	
PMA22	2.35	2.65	0.29	12.5	2.53	0.18	7.5	4.74	20.00	Dilate	
PMA24	2.56	2.69	0.13	4.9	2.43	-0.14	-5.3	10.70	10.55	Constrict	
PMB04	2.49	2.65	0.15	6.17	2.56	0.07	2.76	3.32	8.92	Dilate	
PMA27	2.44	2.77	0.33	13.6	2.55	0.11	4.6	8.63	18.03	Dilate	
PMA28	2.59	2.77	0.18	7.1	2.61	0.03	1	6.13	8.11	Dilate	
PMA32	2.56	2.73	0.17	6.6	2.48	-0.08	-3.3	10.08	9.77	Constrict	
PMA33	2.47	2.67	0.2	8	2.53	0.05	2.1	5.53	10.12	Dilate	
PMA38	2.67	2.94	0.27	10.2	2.69	0.02	0.6	9.29	10.86	Dilate	
PMA42	2.07	2.14	0.07	3.5	2.08	0.01	0.4	2.88	3.86	Dilate	
PMA67	2.67	2.79	0.13	4.8	2.67	0.01	0.2	4.49	5.24	Dilate	
PMA68	2.44	2.53	0.09	3.7	2.44	0	-0.2	3.69	3.69	Constrict	
PMA73	2.84	2.90	0.06	2.3	2.73	-0.11	-3.8	6.23	5.99	Constrict	
PMA74	2.37	2.41	0.04	1.6	2.34	-0.04	-1.6	2.99	3.38	Constrict	
PMA77	2.9	3.28	0.38	13.1	2.98	0.08	2.8	10.07	15.86	Dilate	
PMB06	2.71	2.89	0.18	6.64	2.74	0.03	1.11	5.47	7.75	Dilate	
PMB01	2.76	2.87	0.11	3.9	2.75	-0.02	-0.6	4.36	4.71	Constrict	

Study ID	BL NTG	PEAK NTG	Abs NTG	%NTG	TTP
SPEC02					
SPEC03					
SPEC04					
SPEC05					
SPEC06					
SPEC07					
SPEC08					
SPEC09					
SPEC10					
COS01					
COS02					
COS03					
SFCP01					
SFCP02					
SFCP03					
SFCP04					
SFCP05					
SFCP06					
SFCP07					
SFCP08					
SFCP09					
SFCP10					
SFCP11					
SFCP12					
SFCP13					
SFCP14					
SFCP15					
SFCP16					
SFCP17					
SFCP18					
SFCP19					
SFCP21					
SFCP22					

Nitroglycerin Challenge Test Data

SFCP23			
SFCP24			
SFCP26			
SFCP28			
SFCP29			
SFCP30			
SFCP31			
SFCP32			
SFCP33			
SFCP34			
SFCP35			
SFCP36			
SFCP42			
SFCP43			
SFCP45			
SFCP46			
SFCP47			
SFCP48			
AMCP1			
AMCP2			
AMCP3			
AMCP4			
AMCP5			
AMCP6			
AMCP7			
AMCP8			
AMCP9			
AMCP11			
AMCON1			
AMCON2			
AMCON3			
AMCON4			
AMCON5			
AMCON6			
AMCON7			
AMCON8			

AMCON10					
AMCON11					
TR02	3.97	4.56	0.59	14.86	5.00
TR03	4.95	5.71	0.76	15.35	5.00
TR04	4.1	4.98	0.88	21.46	10.00
TR05	3.58	4.42	0.84	23.46	8.00
TR06	4.49	5.58	1.09	24.28	7.00
TR07	4.19	4.95	0.76	18.14	5.00
TR08	3.82	4.70	0.88	23.04	6.00
TR09	4.42	5.45	1.03	23.30	9.00
TR10	3.25	3.92	0.67	20.62	6.00
TR11	3.98	4.32	0.34	8.54	6.00
TR12	4.13	4.56	0.43	10.41	5.00
TR13	3.55	4.09	0.54	15.21	5.00
TR14	3.82	4.64	0.82	21.47	6.00
TR15	4.16	5.12	0.96	23.08	10.00
TR17	4.5	5.25	0.76	16.86	9.00
TR18	4.31	4.94	0.63	14.62	10.00
TR19	3.24	3.80	0.56	17.28	8.00
TR20	3.75	4.88	1.13	30.13	9.00
TR21					
TR22	4.02	4.68	0.66	16.42	7.00
TR23	4.05	4.74	0.69	17.04	10.00
TR24	4.27	5.39	1.12	26.23	9.00
TR25	4.04	4.52	0.48	11.88	10.00
TR26	3.28	4.34	1.06	32.32	6.00
TR27	3.97	4.92	0.95	23.93	8.00
CAMO01	5.76	6.27	0.51	8.80	8.00
CAMO02	4.16	4.89	0.73	17.43	9.00
CAMO03					
CAMO04	4.53	5.15	0.62	13.79	7.00
CAMO05	2.97	3.76	0.79	26.57	10.00
CAMO06	3.47	3.88	0.41	11.92	7.00
CAMO07	3.90	4.23	0.33	8.45	9.00
CAMO08	4.90	5.88	0.98	20.02	7.00
CAMO09	3.84	4.45	0.61	15.81	9.00

CAMO10	3.08	3.59	0.51	16.59	2.00
CAMO11	4.04	4.48	0.44	10.92	8.00
CAMO12	3.38	3.70	0.32	9.35	2.00
CAMO13	3.17	4.06	0.89	28.02	7.00
CAMO14	2.51	3.06	0.55	21.88	9.00
CAMO15	3.20	4.01	0.81	25.18	9.00
CAMO16					
CAMO17	3.48	4.28	0.80	22.90	7.00
CAMO18	2.85	3.23	0.38	13.21	9.00
CAMO19	3.56	4.29	0.73	20.54	7.00
CAMO20	4.79	5.56	0.77	15.97	6.00
CAMO21	4.03	4.90	0.87	21.49	9.00
CAMO22	3.24	3.80	0.55	17.03	8.00
CAMO23	3.34	3.71	0.36	10.79	5.00
CAMO24	3.65	4.32	0.67	18.33	8.00
CAMO25	5.37	5.64	0.27	5.08	5.00
CAMO26	3.25	3.65	0.40	12.20	10.00
CAMO27	1.91	2.40	0.48	25.27	8.00
CAMO28					
CAMO28 CAMO29	3.81	4.15	0.33	8.69	5.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30	3.81	4.15	0.33	8.69	5.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31	3.81 3.79	4.15	0.33	8.69 25.31	5.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32	3.81 3.79 4.39	4.15 4.75 4.94	0.33 0.96 0.55	8.69 25.31 12.42	5.00 10.00 10.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01 CAMS02	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90 2.82	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98 3.18	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08 0.36	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12 12.71	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00 9.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01 CAMS02 CAMS05	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90 2.82	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98 3.18	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08 0.36	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12 12.71	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00 9.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01 CAMS02 CAMS05 CAMS05 CAMS06	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90 2.82 4.29	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98 3.18 4.71	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08 0.36 0.43	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12 12.71 9.93	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00 9.00 9.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01 CAMS02 CAMS05 CAMS06 CAMS08	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90 2.82 4.29 4.22	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98 3.18 4.71 4.80	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08 0.36 0.43 0.58	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12 12.71 9.93 13.75	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00 9.00 9.00 10.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01 CAMS02 CAMS05 CAMS05 CAMS06 CAMS08 CAMS09	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90 2.82 4.29 4.22	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98 3.18 4.71 4.80	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08 0.36 0.43 0.58	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12 12.71 9.93 13.75	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00 9.00 9.00 10.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01 CAMS05 CAMS06 CAMS08 CAMS09 CAMS10	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90 2.82 4.29 4.22 5.65	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98 3.18 4.71 4.80 6.11	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08 0.36 0.43 0.58 0.46	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12 12.71 9.93 13.75 8.17	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00 9.00 9.00 10.00 7.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01 CAMS05 CAMS06 CAMS08 CAMS09 CAMS11	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90 2.82 4.29 4.22 5.65 2.16	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98 3.18 4.71 4.80 6.11 2.83	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08 0.36 0.43 0.58 0.46 0.68	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12 12.71 9.93 13.75 8.17 31.33	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00 9.00 9.00 10.00 7.00 7.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01 CAMS05 CAMS06 CAMS08 CAMS09 CAMS11 CAMS12	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90 2.82 4.29 4.22 5.65 2.16 3.93	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98 3.18 4.71 4.80 6.11 2.83 4.33	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08 0.36 0.43 0.58 0.46 0.68 0.40	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12 12.71 9.93 13.75 8.17 31.33 10.28	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00 9.00 9.00 10.00 7.00 7.00 10.00
CAMO28 CAMO29 CAMO30 CAMO31 CAMO32 CAMO33 CAMO34 CAMS01 CAMS02 CAMS05 CAMS06 CAMS08 CAMS09 CAMS11 CAMS12 CAMS13	3.81 3.79 4.39 3.61 4.90 2.82 4.29 4.22 5.65 2.16 3.93 3.49	4.15 4.75 4.94 4.34 5.98 3.18 4.71 4.80 6.11 2.83 4.33 4.10	0.33 0.96 0.55 0.73 1.08 0.36 0.43 0.58 0.46 0.68 0.40 0.60	8.69 25.31 12.42 20.19 22.12 12.71 9.93 13.75 8.17 31.33 10.28 17.21	5.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.00 9.00 9.00 10.00 7.00 7.00 10.00 10.00

CAMS15	2.50	3.11	0.61	24.60	8.00
CAD01	4.80	5.92	1.12	23.30	4.00
CAD02	4.14	4.95	0.81	19.57	9.00
CAD03	3.84	4.96	1.12	29.29	5.00
CAD04	5.12	5.75	0.62	12.14	6.00
CAD05	4.68	5.77	1.09	23.30	5.00
CAD06	3.44	4.27	0.83	24.16	8.00
CAD07	4.88	5.53	0.65	13.31	8.00
CAD08	3.88	4.92	1.04	26.76	7.00
CAD09	4.81	6.24	1.43	29.68	8.00
CAD10	4.52	5.47	0.95	21.07	9.00
CAD13	3.60	4.28	0.68	18.86	10.00
CAD14	3.14	3.99	0.85	27.13	5.00
CAD16	4.35	5.37	1.01	23.28	8.00
CAD18	5.43	6.26	0.83	15.36	8.00
CAD19	4.50	5.60	1.09	24.25	10.00
CAD20	5.74	6.86	1.13	19.62	4.00
CAD21	4.65	6.00	1.35	29.15	6.00
CAD22	4.68	5.86	1.18	25.21	8.00
CAD23	4.26	5.50	1.24	29.06	8.00
CAD24	4.83	5.42	0.60	12.36	7.00
CAD25	3.94	4.83	0.89	22.71	8.00
CAD26	4.23	5.21	0.98	23.12	6.00
CAD27	5.22	5.99	0.77	14.81	8.00
CAD28	4.98	5.93	0.96	19.19	10.00
CAD29					
CAD30	4.05	4.93	0.88	21.70	7.00
RAM01 V1	4.20	4.80	0.60	14.34	8.00
RAM02 V1	4.69	5.48	0.79	16.91	10.00
RAM03 V1	4.29	4.92	0.63	14.65	7.00
RAM04 V1	4.01	4.91	0.90	22.43	7.00
RAM05 V1	3.67	4.47	0.80	21.78	9.00
RAM06 V1	3.93	4.72	0.79	20.24	10.00
RAM07 V1	4.17	5.17	1.00	23.88	7.00
RAM08 V1	4.00	4.99	0.99	24.74	8.00
RAM09 V1	3.80	4.65	0.85	22.44	9.00

RAM10 V1	4.22	4.96	0.74	17.61	8.00
RAM11 V1	3.78	4.45	0.67	17.59	9.00
RAM12 V1	4.41	5.50	1.09	24.69	8.00
RAM13 V1	4.23	4.66	0.43	10.19	6.00
RAM14 V1	3.87	4.37	0.50	13.05	6.00
RAM15 V1	4.96	5.63	0.67	13.59	8.00
RAM16 V1	4.06	4.78	0.72	17.74	5.00
RAM17 V1	4.21	5.16	0.95	22.53	7.00
RAM18 V1	4.58	5.39	0.81	17.58	7.00
RAM19 V1	4.42	5.37	0.95	21.57	5.00
RAM20 V1	3.92	5.13	1.21	30.83	10.00
RAM21 V1	2.57	3.34	0.77	29.88	6.00
RAM22 V1	2.79	3.38	0.59	21.36	10.00
RAM23 V1	2.63	3.38	0.75	28.63	10.00
RAM24 V1	3.53	4.53	1.00	28.33	10.00
RAM25 V1	3.06	3.48	0.42	13.87	10.00
RAM26 V1	2.74	3.44	0.70	25.46	5.00
RAM31 V1	3.10	3.92	0.82	26.47	6.00
RAM32 V1	3.04	3.54	0.50	16.62	4.00
RAM34 V1	2.89	3.62	0.73	25.21	10.00
RAM35 V1	3.55	4.35	0.80	22.39	4.00
RAM36 V1	3.31	4.17	0.86	26.15	4.00
RAM38 V1	3.09	3.78	0.69	22.42	8.00
V1RAM41	3.58	4.45	0.88	24.50	6.00
V1RAM43	3.29	3.97	0.68	20.50	6.00
V1RAM44	3.02	3.94	0.91	30.30	5.00
V1RAM46	3.02	3.87	0.84	27.90	5.00
V1RAM47	3.68	4.57	0.89	24.30	6.00
V1RAM48	3.63	4.39	0.76	21.00	4.00
V1RAM49	3.18	4.06	0.88	27.50	
V1RAM50	3.26	4.20	0.93	28.60	8.00
V1RAM51	3.59	4.51	0.91	25.50	8.00
V1RAM52	3.80	4.69	0.90	23.70	5.00
V1RAM53	3.72	4.73	1.02	27.30	4.00
V1RAM54	3.04	3.68	0.64	21.00	4.00
V1RAM55	3.42	4.42	1.01	29.50	

V1RAM56	3.25	4.45	1.20	36.70	4.00
V1RAM58	3.36	4.23	0.87	25.80	
V1RAM59	3.46	4.28	0.82	23.70	
V1RAM60	3.67	4.53	0.86	23.40	4.00
V1RAM61	3.56	4.51	0.95	26.50	4.00
ASPEN 1					
ASPEN 2					
ASPEN 3					
ASPEN 4					
ASPEN 5					
ASPEN 6					
ASPEN 7					
ASPEN 8					
ASPEN 9					
ASPEN 10					
NESTLE S6					
NESTLE S8					
NESTLE S10					
NESTLE S11					
NESTLE S12					
NESTLE S13					
NESTLE S14					
NESTLE S15					
NESTLE S16					
NESTLE S17					
NESTLE S18					
NESTLE S19					
NESTLE S21					
NESTLE S23					
NESTLE S25					
NESTLE S27					
NESTLE S28					
NESTLE S31					
ACM1					
ACM2					
ACM3					

ACM4					
ACM5					
ACM6					
ACM8					
ACM10					
ACF1					
ACF4					
ACF5					
ACF6					
ACF7					
ACF8					
ACF9					
ACF10					
V1 ACUTEENDO 1	4.16	4.92	0.76	18.31	6.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 2	3.98	4.99	1.01	25.25	10.00
V1 ACUTEENDO 3	4.21	4.96	0.75	17.71	9.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 4	3.35	4.13	0.79	23.58	8.00
V1 ACUTEENDO 5	4.34	4.84	0.50	11.44	8.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 6	4.89	5.45	0.56	11.48	5.00
V2 ACUTEENDO 7	3.88	4.69	0.81	20.77	6.00
AB-SCI04 NC					
AB-SCI06 NC					
AB-SCI07 NC					
AB-SCI11 NC					
AB-SCI12 NC					
AB-SCI14 NC					
AB-SCI19 NC					
AB-SCI24 NC					
SCI01	4.29	5.17	0.88	20.55	5.00
SCI02	3.67	4.25	0.58	15.71	8.00
SCI03	3.98	4.14	0.16	3.93	8.00
SCI04	4.55	5.37	0.82	17.93	8.00
SCI05	4.00	4.55	0.55	13.69	11.00
SCI06	5.29	6.20	0.91	17.12	10.00
SCI07	4.82	5.17	0.35	7.33	10.00
SCI08	4.05	4.69	0.64	15.94	4.00

SCI09	4.35	5.21	0.86	19.75	8.00	
SCI10	4.00	4.70	0.69	17.31	8.00	
SCI11	5.18	5.60	0.41	7.99	4.00	
SCI12	5.39	6.23	0.85	15.73	8.00	
SCI13	4.24	4.78	0.55	12.88	6.00	
SCI14	5.22	6.17	0.95	18.10	10.00	
SCI15	4.13	4.68	0.55	13.20	8.00	
SCI16	3.79	4.60	0.80	21.15	6.00	
SCI17	5.71	6.60	0.89	15.56	8.00	
SCI18	3.37	4.27	0.90	26.82	4.00	
SCI19	3.83	4.73	0.90	23.44	8.00	
SCI20	4.59	5.58	0.99	21.62	8.00	
SCI21	4.21	4.92	0.72	17.01	6.00	
SCI22	3.29	4.07	0.78	23.77	4.00	
SCI23	3.64	4.36	0.72	19.86	6.00	
SCI24	4.73	5.80	1.07	22.72	6.00	
SCI25	3.94	4.76	0.82	20.89	4.00	
SCI26	3.60	4.44	0.85	23.49	8.00	
SCI27	4.82	5.88	1.06	22.06	4.00	
SCI28	4.56	5.31	0.76	16.61	4.00	
SCI29	4.01	4.84	0.83	20.72	6.00	
SCI30	4.41	5.38	0.96	21.86	10.00	
SCI31	4.23	5.46	1.23	29.11	8.00	
SCI32	3.73	4.65	0.92	24.53	4.00	
SCI33	4.93	5.70	0.76	15.50	6.00	
SCI34	4.08	5.21	1.12	27.43	6.00	
EDS01	3.14	3.89	0.75	23.89	8.00	
EDS02	3.48	4.40	0.92	26.44	9.00	
EDS03	4.01	4.74	0.73	18.20	9.00	
EDS04	4.73	5.58	0.85	17.97	5.00	
TVR1	3.84	4.67	0.83	21.72	9.00	
TVR2	3.56	4.86	1.30	36.63	7.00	
TVR3						
TVR4						
TVR5	5.50	6.43	0.93	16.91	9.00	
TVR6						

TVR7					
TVR8					
TVR9					
TVR10					
TVR11	4.59	5.80	1.22	26.50	7.00
TVR12	4.62	5.22	0.60	12.91	9.00
TVR13	3.56	4.29	0.73	20.37	5.00
TVR14	3.19	3.90	0.71	22.26	5.00
TVR15	3.80	4.46	0.66	17.45	5.00
TVR16	3.82	4.72	0.90	23.51	6.00
TVR17	5.44	6.35	0.91	16.67	6.00
TVR18					
TVR19	3.24	3.81	0.57	17.70	6.00
TVR20	3.87	4.75	0.88	22.74	8.00
PFA02					
PFA03					
PFA10					
PFA11					
PFA12					
PFA14					
PFA17					
PFA30					
PFA34					
PFA36					
PFA40					
PFA55					
PFA56					
PFA59					
PFA69					
PFB03					
PFB04					
PFB14					
PFB19					
PFB24					
PMA10					
PMA15					
PMA16					
PMB05					

PMA22			
PMA24			
PMB04			
PMA27			
PMA28			
PMA32			
PMA33			
PMA38			
PMA42			
PMA67			
PMA68			
PMA73			
PMA74			
PMA77			
PMB06			
PMB01			

Blood flow and Shear Rate

Study ID	Mean BL Blood Flow	Peak RH Blood Flow	Peak RH Shear Rate
SPEC02	43.03	431.26	1686.41
SPEC03	44.38	327.52	753.05
SPEC04	78.25	456.99	890.56
SPEC05	21.00	361.83	1862.33
SPEC06	30.95	324.55	1072.32
SPEC07			
SPEC08			
SPEC09			
SPEC10	37.35	621.20	1500.51
COS01	26.14	121.39	400.39
COS02	95.01	432.67	600.30
COS03	19.44	213.72	824.11
SFCP01	19.66	440.10	1319.91
SFCP02	18.93	369.85	1197.77
SFCP03	12.39	256.27	2427.67
SFCP04	22.11	738.05	5499.38
SFCP05	56.73	351.54	500.04

SFCP06			
SFCP07	19.74	253.31	1637.46
SFCP08	10.74	127.11	1408.99
SFCP09	62.83	474.71	3097.47
SFCP10	20.44	295.27	1694.12
SFCP11	16.63	84.89	345.31
SFCP12	36.38	344.17	1134.81
SFCP13	67.07	137.76	534.68
SFCP14	13.71	142.05	742.03
SFCP15	25.05	40.81	122.89
SFCP16	31.16	258.56	875.57
SFCP17	57.15	568.57	926.59
SFCP18	14.68	157.21	735.13
SFCP19	22.10	142.32	429.94
SFCP21	16.52	146.71	1062.48
SFCP22	49.08	453.23	1766.26
SFCP23	29.63		782.63
SFCP24	9.28		
SFCP26	64.52		
SFCP28	36.91	284.81	1267.39
SFCP29	26.97	422.72	1786.44
SFCP30	63.40	130.57	741.74
SFCP31	50.99	270.17	783.70
SFCP32	51.62	461.58	1074.07
SFCP33	19.85	315.58	1304.61
SFCP34	50.01	175.50	754.34
SFCP35	39.34	52.35	173.86
SFCP36	45.38	239.68	851.65
SFCP42	77.86	342.89	1036.09
SFCP43	122.73	424.67	1614.21
SFCP45	22.60	84.25	303.73
SFCP46	48.13	167.28	1836.71
SFCP47	17.07	283.21	2329.73
SFCP48	60.29	446.78	1212.40
AMCP1			
AMCP2			

AMCP3			
AMCP4			
AMCP5			
AMCP6			
AMCP7			
AMCP8			
AMCP9			
AMCP11			
AMCON1			
AMCON2			
AMCON3			
AMCON4			
AMCON5			
AMCON6			
AMCON7			
AMCON8			
AMCON10			
AMCON11			
TR02	35.06	493.31	1312.27
TR03	61.74	421.00	584.22
TR04	63.14	380.14	1271.57
TR05	38.16	276.81	886.00
TR06	108.27	559.30	1019.79
TR07	84.33	627.02	1320.88
TR08	27.29	280.18	873.90
TR09	53.66	453.06	1013.62
TR10	50.44	392.95	1479.25
TR11	16.91	289.02	920.96
TR12	77.40	526.70	1580.87
TR13	31.80	149.58	656.32
TR14	30.81	226.82	638.77
TR15	43.87	346.84	869.00
TR17	73.82	441.92	702.24
TR18	44.06	337.98	703.16
TR19	18.81	216.72	1042.73
TR20	42.02	288.32	834.90

TR21	33.20	294.66	645.32
TR22	46.10	376.81	376.81
TR23	44.39	409.35	1050.78
TR24	42.14	353.00	620.56
TR25	195.43	533.62	1328.79
TR26	40.90	261.26	1320.11
TR27	103.83	700.59	1790.38
CAMO01			
CAMO02			
CAMO03			
CAMO04			
CAMO05			
CAMO06			
CAMO07			
CAMO08			
CAMO09			
CAMO10			
CAMO11			
CAMO12			
CAMO13			
CAMO14			
CAMO15			
CAMO16			
CAMO17			
CAMO18			
CAMO19			
CAMO20			
CAMO21			
CAMO22			
CAMO23			
CAMO24			
CAMO25			
CAMO26			
CAMO27			
CAMO28			
CAMO29			

CAMO30			
CAMO31			
CAMO32			
CAMO33			
CAMO34			
CAMS01			
CAMS02			
CAMS05			
CAMS06			
CAMS08			
CAMS09			
CAMS10			
CAMS11			
CAMS12			
CAMS13			
CAMS14			
CAMS15			
CAD01	38.12	518.54	734.22
CAD02	37.29	264.98	587.66
CAD03	7.18	52.54	317.46
CAD04	55.35	565.73	757.55
CAD05	48.24	440.16	773.43
CAD06	24.33	122.72	573.05
CAD07	69.33	268.52	472.02
CAD08	27.48	202.61	680.63
CAD09	70.62	477.00	687.71
CAD10	62.53	303.40	546.37
CAD13	40.69	223.78	613.44
CAD14	35.63	117.50	610.46
CAD16	69.95	282.40	584.05
CAD18	75.09	959.41	1014.39
CAD19	22.47	210.27	355.72
CAD20	177.23	554.13	485.30
CAD21	23.48	271.86	508.15
CAD22	49.73	496.38	522.30
CAD23	24.03	262.04	538.64

CAD24	40.49	313.16	428.75
CAD25	35.72	199.58	772.74
CAD26	36.58	205.12	519.32
CAD27	54.77	349.80	409.35
CAD28	61.02	399.66	513.71
CAD29	46.09	379.18	409.66
CAD30	17.78	189.23	548.46
RAM01 V1	140.85	548.22	1033.65
RAM02 V1	122.50	823.68	1104.81
RAM03 V1	42.24	415.92	974.11
RAM04 V1	110.87	476.94	1108.30
RAM05 V1	88.41	347.20	1210.34
RAM06 V1	36.34	323.33	
RAM07 V1	36.41	468.31	1042.26
RAM08 V1	134.65	639.96	1582.98
RAM09 V1	35.55	383.05	988.10
RAM10 V1	65.59	560.75	1030.59
RAM11 V1	14.72	460.64	1405.08
RAM12 V1	127.71	663.90	1206.06
RAM13 V1	81.92	451.15	1000.33
RAM14 V1	46.28	346.76	1062.79
RAM15 V1	26.02	427.71	641.84
RAM16 V1	55.99	498.53	1285.41
RAM17 V1	46.62	474.56	1170.30
RAM18 V1	116.60	640.41	1097.93
RAM19 V1	77.49	466.32	878.66
RAM20 V1	85.94	470.82	1334.50
RAM21 V1	10.49	198.20	1908.81
RAM22 V1	13.17	198.85	1534.21
RAM23 V1	39.31	264.84	2253.86
RAM24 V1	49.20	424.38	1806.46
RAM25 V1		183.05	1061.55
RAM26 V1	15.71	323.11	2187.82
RAM31 V1	14.21	158.57	867.92
RAM32 V1	19.89	289.80	
RAM34 V1	20.88	170.77	1298.72

RAM35 V1	10.24	251.55	989.28
RAM36 V1	18.60	244.87	1139.95
RAM38 V1	10.86	181.35	991.84
V1RAM41			
V1RAM43			
V1RAM44			
V1RAM46			
V1RAM47			
V1RAM48			
V1RAM49			
V1RAM50			
V1RAM51			
V1RAM52			
V1RAM53			
V1RAM54			
V1RAM55			
V1RAM56			
V1RAM58			
V1RAM59			
V1RAM60			
V1RAM61			
ASPEN 1			
ASPEN 2			
ASPEN 3			
ASPEN 4			
ASPEN 5			
ASPEN 6			
ASPEN 7			
ASPEN 8			
ASPEN 9			
ASPEN 10			
NESTLE S6	35.59	280.60	486.69
NESTLE S8	60.19	581.51	823.89
NESTLE S10	99.81	315.87	571.24
NESTLE S11	39.47	450.82	800.00
NESTLE S12	72.15	713.21	1420.17

NESTLE S13	56.09	374.23	1717.39
NESTLE S14	45.39	574.96	961.22
NESTLE S15	35.69	337.99	496.79
NESTLE S16	59.24	478.61	776.64
NESTLE S17	29.88	332.20	691.90
NESTLE S18	27.86	301.20	1040.89
NESTLE S19	82.90	665.07	1014.53
NESTLE S21	40.97	324.31	314.38
NESTLE S23	50.05	503.31	910.45
NESTLE S25	54.53	439.23	664.40
NESTLE S27	69.69	569.68	454.02
NESTLE S28	50.41	603.37	672.62
NESTLE S31	23.76	228.36	602.23
ACM1	40.20	346.00	743.50
ACM2	49.40	371.10	2182.00
ACM3	117.10	573.40	717.30
ACM4	134.70	534.20	1162.10
ACM5	107.90	277.80	1219.50
ACM6	14.70	349.74	748.34
ACM8	55.50	254.60	1350.80
ACM10	82.10	346.30	891.80
ACF1	33.70	407.90	1164.30
ACF4	22.10	154.60	752.70
ACF5	25.90	144.30	747.10
ACF6	37.90	240.90	1630.30
ACF7	30.60	216.90	1003.10
ACF8	79.60	383.70	1169.30
ACF9	191.85	333.60	1040.72
ACF10	63.90	451.50	1787.40
V1 ACUTEENDO 1			
V2 ACUTEENDO 2			
V1 ACUTEENDO 3			
V2 ACUTEENDO 4			
V1 ACUTEENDO 5			
V2 ACUTEENDO 6			
V2 ACUTEENDO 7			

AB-SCI04 NC			1161.18
AB-SCI06 NC			1111.36
AB-SCI07 NC			583.87
AB-SCI11 NC			929.55
AB-SCI12 NC			1708.35
AB-SCI14 NC			938.17
AB-SCI19 NC			668.52
AB-SCI24 NC			668.12
SCI01	23.30	257.68	690.85
SCI02	52.17	404.18	1426.95
SCI03	72.43	212.68	757.23
SCI04	59.44	440.55	838.27
SCI05	60.52	203.40	550.04
SC106	40.94	490.11	965.77
SCI07	128.06	575.57	862.25
SCI08	108.36	409.30	938.95
SC109	52.97	366.91	751.85
SCI10	48.10	169.64	501.90
SCI11	62.52	467.73	500.51
SCI12	55.85	848.44	802.58
SCI13	59.83	494.41	1149.19
SCI14	32.45	415.22	563.05
SCI15	57.94	298.46	748.83
SCI16	47.92	227.72	646.76
SCI17	168.02	588.81	451.82
SCI18	59.92	226.39	885.97
SCI19	38.89	437.03	1518.72
SCI20	46.25	26.78	335.14
SCI21	85.59	22.13	379.50
SCI22	25.02	8.29	233.65
SCI23	12.59		140.67
SCI24	62.60	570.24	823.15
SCI25	50.88	297.96	840.13
SCI26	22.66	167.82	588.02
SCI27	40.93	271.28	539.53
SCI28	30.24	481.46	857.84

SCI29	22.15	291.71	995.40
SCI30	144.36	673.14	1356.10
SCI31	38.31	413.56	795.11
SCI32	45.11	144.15	415.81
SCI33	108.52	728.22	935.81
SCI34	67.47	445.06	930.43
EDS01	28.70	104.97	657.26
EDS02	33.85	207.88	778.12
EDS03	24.01	166.91	421.06
EDS04			
TVR1			
TVR2	20.39	223.28	592.44
TVR3			
TVR4	67.85	618.52	635.97
TVR5	17.32	561.22	582.96
TVR6	41.20	472.45	710.49
TVR7	68.77	456.48	727.98
TVR8		356.67	717.31
TVR9	42.50	376.38	740.46
TVR10	9.79	210.59	785.61
TVR11	41.05	426.62	631.52
TVR12	37.46	241.75	834.91
TVR13	37.80	322.92	1055.19
TVR14	32.47	276.92	1205.96
TVR15		521.37	1424.51
TVR16	21.70	329.06	990.23
TVR17		487.57	469.61
TVR18	54.32	330.30	1065.22
TVR19	8.90	128.06	727.62
TVR20	41.59	446.76	1185.95
PFA02			
PFA03			
PFA10			
PFA11			
PFA12			
PFA14			
PFA17			

PFA30		
PFA34		
PFA36		
PFA40		
PFA55		
PFA56		
PFA59		
PFA69		
PFB03		
PFB04		
PFB14		
PFB19		
PFB24		
PMA10		
PMA15		
PMA16		
PMB05		
PMA22		
PMA24		
PMB04		
PMA27		
PMA28		
PMA32		
PMA33		
PMA38		
PMA42		
PMA67		
PMA68		
PMA73		
PMA74		
PMA77		
PMB06		
PMB01		

APPENDIX 2: STATISTICS

Hemodynamics - Repeatability Heart Rate (HR)

Hypothesis Test Summary

	Null Hypothesis	Test	Sig.	Decision
1	The median of differences between HR_V1 and HR_V2 equals 0.	Related – Samples Sign Test	.826	Retain the null hypothesis.

Asymptotic significances are displayed. The significance level is .05.

Median

HR_V1	HR_V2	diiference_HR
62.00	62.00	.0000

Systolic Blood Pressure (SBP)

Hypothesis Test Summary

	Null Hypothesis	Test	Sig.	Decision
1	The median of differences between SBP_V1 and SBP_V2 equals 0.	Related – Samples Sign Test	.000	Reject the null hypothesis .

Asymptotic significances are displayed. The significance level is .05.

Median

SBP_V1	SBP_V2	diiference_SBP
116.00	113.00	-2.0000

Diastolic Blood Pressure (DBP)

	Hypothesis Test Summary			
	Null Hypothesis	Test	Sig.	Decision
1	The median of differences between DBP_V1 and DBP_V2 equals 0.	Related- Samples Sign Test	.010	Reject the null hypothesis.

Asymptotic significances are displayed. The significance level is .05.

Median

DBP_V1	DBP_V2	diiference_DBP
69.00	67.00	-1.0000

Mean Arterial Pressure (MAP)

Hypothesis Test Summary

Null Hypothesis	Test	Sig.	Decision
The median of differences between MAP_V1 and MAP_V2 equals 0.	Related – Samples Sign Test	.002	Reject the null hypothesis .

Asymptotic significances are displayed. The significance level is .05.

Median

MAP_V1	MAP_V2	diiference_MAP
87.00	85.00	-1.0000
FMD Repeatability

		95% Confide	ence Interval	F Test with True Value 0			
	Intraclass	Lower	Upper				
	Correlation ^b	Bound	Bound	Value	df1	df2	Sig
Single Measures	.681 ^a	.559	.774	5.274	97	97	.000
Average	.810 ^c	.717	.873	5.274	97	97	.000
Measures							

Two-way mixed effects model where people effects are random and measures effects are fixed.

a. The estimator is the same, whether the interaction effect is present or not.

b. Type A intraclass correlation coefficients using an absolute agreement definition.

c. This estimate is computed assuming the interaction effect is absent, because it is not estimable otherwise.

L-FMC Repeatability

		95% Confidence Interval		F Test with True Value 0			
	Intraclass	Lower	Upper				
	Correlation ^b	Bound	Bound	Value	df1	df2	Sig
Single Measures	.013 ^a	182	.207	1.026	97	97	.450
Average	.025 ^c	444	.343	1.026	97	97	.450
Measures							

TVR Repeatability

		95% Confidence Interval		F Test with True Value 0			
	Intraclass Correlation ^b	Lower Bound	Upper Bound	Value	df1	df2	Sig
	Contention	Dound	Dound	varae	GII	G12	015
Single Measures	.498 ^a	.334	.633	2.986	97	97	.000
Average Measures	.665 ^c	.501	.775	2.986	97	97	.000

Baseline Diameter Repeatability

	95% Confid	ence Interval	FΊ	e 0		
Intraclass	Lower	Unner				
Correlation ^b	Bound	Bound	Value	df1	df2	Sig

Single Measures	.966ª	.949	.977	56.938	97	97	.000
Average Measures	.983°	.974	.988	56.938	97	97	.000

Peak diameter Repeatability

		95% Confidence Interval		F Test with True Value 0			
	Intraclass	Lower	Upper				
	Correlation ^b	Bound	Bound	Value	df1	df2	Sig
Single Measures	.967 ^a	.952	.978	60.626	97	97	.000
Average	0.920	075	090	(0) (2)	07	07	000
Measures	.983	.975	.989	60.626	97	97	.000

Four-minute Diameter Repeatability

		95% Confid	ence Interval	F Test with True Value 0			
	Intraclass	Lower	Upper				
	Correlation ^b	Bound	Bound	Value	df1	df2	Sig
Single Measures	.961 ^a	.943	.974	51.454	97	97	.000
Average	.980 ^c	.971	.987	51.454	97	97	.000
Measures							

Absolute FMD Repeatability

		95% Confidence Interval		F Test with True Value 0			
	Intraclass Correlation ^b	Lower Bound	Upper Bound	Value	df1	df2	Sig
Single Measures	.628 ^a	.493	.735	4.393	97	97	.000
Average Measures	.772°	.660	.847	4.393	97	97	.000

Absolute L-FMC Repeatability

Intraclass 95% Confidence Interval F Test with True Value 0

	Correlation ^b	Lower Bound	Upper Bound	Value	df1	df2	Sig
Single Measures	$.007^{a}$	187	.202	1.015	97	97	.472
Average Measures	.014 ^c	461	.336	1.015	97	97	.472

TVR (absolute value of FMD+L-FMC) Repeatability

		95% Confidence Interval		F Test with True Value 0			
	Intraclass Correlation ^b	Lower Bound	Upper Bound	Value	df1	df2	Sig
Single Measures	.522ª	.363	.652	3.210	97	97	.000
Average Measures	.686 ^c	.533	.789	3.210	97	97	.000

Cohen's Kappa for L-FMC

		V2LOWFLOWRESPONSEKAPPA					
		Constrict	Dilate	No change	Total		
V1LOWFLOWRESPONSEKA	Constrict	19	21	0	40		
PPA	Dilate	20	37	1	58		
Total		39	58	1	98		

Symmetric Measures

	Asymptotic		
	Standard	Approximate	Approximate
Value	Error ^a	T ^b	Significance

M.Sc. Thesis - V.I. Rizzuto; McMaster University - Kinesiology

Measure of Agreement	Kappa	.121	.100	1.212	.225
N of Valid Cases		98			

a. Not assuming the null hypothesis.

b. Using the asymptotic standard error assuming the null hypothesis.

Frequency of Low Flow Response

					Cumulative
		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Percent
Valid	Constrict	40	40.8	40.8	40.8
	Dilate	58	59.2	59.2	100.0
	Total	98	100.0	100.0	

V1_LOWFLOW_RESPONSE

V2_LOWFLOW_RESPONSE

		Frequency	Dercent	Valid Percent	Cumulative
		ricquency	1 creent	vanu i cicciit	rereent
Valid	Constrict	39	39.8	39.8	39.8
	Dilate	58	59.2	59.2	99.0
	Nochange	1	1.0	1.0	100.0
	Total	98	100.0	100.0	

Nitroglycerin Challenge Test (NTG)

Relative NTG

Paired Samples Statistics								
		Mean	Ν	Std. Deviation	Std. Error Mean			
Pair 1	V1REL_NTG	21.9219	77	6.26037	.71343			
	V2REL_NTG	21.4629	77	6.44187	.73412			

Paired Samples Correlations							
		Ν	Correlation	Sig.			
Pair 1	V1REL_NTG & V2REL_NTG	77	.766	.000			

			Paired Samp	oles Test			
Paired Differences							
					95% Confidence		
					Interva	l of the	
			Std.	Std. Error	Diffe	rence	
		Mean	Deviation	Mean	Lower	Upper	t
Pair	V1REL_NTG -	.45909	4.34886	.49560	52798	1.44616	.926
1	V2REL_NTG						

Paired Samples Test

		df	Sig. (2-tailed)
Pair 1	V1REL_NTG - V2REL_NTG	76	.357

Absolute NTG

Paired Samples Statistics							
		Mean	Ν	Std. Deviation	Std. Error Mean		
Pair 1	V1ABS_NTG	.7886	77	.19159	.02183		
	V2ABS_NTG	.7731	77	.20243	.02307		

Paired Samples Correlations

		Ν	Correlation	Sig.
Pair 1	V1ABS_NTG & V2ABS_NTG	77	.739	.000

Paired Samples Test

		Paired Differences					
					95% Co	nfidence	
					Interva	l of the	
			Std.	Std. Error	Diffe	rence	
		Mean	Deviation	Mean	Lower	Upper	t
Pair	V1ABS_NTG -	.01545	.14261	.01625	01691	.04782	.951
1	V2ABS NTG						

Paired Samples Test

		df	Sig. (2-tailed)
Pair 1	V1ABS_NTG - V2ABS_NTG	76	.345

Baseline NTG Diameter

Paired Samples Statistics							
		Mean	N	Std. Deviation	Std. Error Mean		
Pair 1	V1BL_NTG	3.7123	77	.71199	.08114		
	V2BL_NTG	3.7074	77	.69836	.07959		

Paired Samples Correlations

		Ν	Correlation	Sig.
Pair 1	V1BL_NTG & V2BL_NTG	77	.972	.000

Paired Samples Test

Paired Differences					
			95% Confidence		
	Std.	Std. Error	Interval of the		
Mean	Deviation	Mean	Difference	t	

						Lower	Upper			
Pair	V1BL_NTG -	.00494	.16870	.01	923	03336	.04323	.257		
1	V2BL_NTG									
			Paired Sam	ples Tes	st					
					Ċ	lf	Sig. (2-tail	ed)		
Pair 1	V1BL_NTG	- V2BL_N	NTG			76		.798		
Peak 1	Peak NTG Diameter Paired Samples Statistics									
		Me	an	Ν	Ste	d. Deviation	Std. Erro	r Mean		

Pair 1	V1PEAK_NTG	4.5004	77	.74627	.08505
	V2PEAK_NTG	4.4808	77	.74650	.08507

Paired Samples Correlations

		Ν	Correlation	Sig.
Pair 1	V1PEAK_NTG & V2PEAK_NTG	77	.968	.000

			Paired Sam	ples Test			
			I	Paired Differe	ences		
					95% Co	nfidence	
					Interva	l of the	
			Std.	Std. Error	Diffe	rence	
		Mean	Deviation	Mean	Lower	Upper	t
Pair	V1PEAK_NTG -	.01961	.18903	.02154	02329	.06252	.910
1	V2PEAK NTG						

Paired Samples Test

		df	Sig. (2-tailed)
Pair 1	V1PEAK_NTG - V2PEAK_NTG	76	.366

Time to peak (TTP)

M.Sc. Thesis - V.I. Rizzuto; McMaster University - Kinesiology

Paired Samples Statistics								
		Mean	Ν	Std. Deviation	Std. Error Mean			
Pair 1	V1TTP	6.8947	76	2.13903	.24536			
	V2TTP	7.0526	76	2.18415	.25054			

Paired Samples CorrelationsNCorrelationSig.Pair 1V1TTP & V2TTP76.609.000

Paired Samples Test									
			Р	aired Differe	ences				
	95% Confidence								
	Interval of the								
			Std.	Std. Error	Diffe	rence			
		Mean	Deviation	Mean	Lower	Upper	t	df	
Pair	V1TTP -	15789	1.91174	.21929	59475	.27896	720	75	
1	V2TTP								

Paired Samples Test

		Sig. (2-tailed)	
Pair 1	V1TTP - V2TTP		.474

OBSERVATIONAL ANALYSIS

Frequency of Low Flow Response

LOWFLOWRESPONSE

		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Cumulative Percent
Valid	Constrict	190	50.7	50.7	50.7
	Dilate	185	49.3	49.3	100.0
	Total	375	100.0	100.0	

Correlations Age x FMD

			AGE	RELFMD
Spearman's rho	AGE	Correlation Coefficient	1.000	238**
		Sig. (2-tailed)		.000
		Ν	375	375
	RELFMD	Correlation Coefficient	238**	1.000
		Sig. (2-tailed)	.000	
		Ν	375	375

**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).

Age x L-FMC

Correlations

			AGE	RELLFMC
Spearman's rho	AGE	Correlation Coefficient	1.000	064
		Sig. (2-tailed)		.220
		N	375	375
	RELLFMC	Correlation Coefficient	064	1.000
		Sig. (2-tailed)	.220	
		N	375	375

Age x TVR

Correlations

А	GE	TVR

AGE	Correlation Coefficient	1.000	191**
	Sig. (2-tailed)		.000
	Ν	375	375
TVR	Correlation Coefficient	191**	1.000
	Sig (2-tailed)	000	
	N	275	275
	AGE TVR	AGE <u>Correlation Coefficient</u> Sig. (2-tailed) N TVR <u>Correlation Coefficient</u> Sig. (2-tailed) N	AGE Correlation Coefficient 1.000 Sig. (2-tailed) . N 375 TVR Correlation Coefficient191** Sig. (2-tailed) .000 N 375

. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed). **Moderator Analysis

Age x FMD, Sex as a moderator variable

Variables Entered/Removed^a

		Variables	
Model	Variables Entered	Removed	Method
1	Males. Age ^b		Enter
2	agexmale ^b		Enter

- a. Dependent Variable: RelFMD
- b. All requested variables entered.

Model Summary^c

				Std. Error	Change Statistics			
Mode		R	Adjusted R	of the	R Square	F		
1	R	Square	Square	Estimate	Change	Change	df1	df2
1	.279 ^a	.078	.073	3.76836	.078	15.757	2	372
2	.280 ^b	.078	.071	3.77296	.000	.093	1	371

Model Summary^c

	Change Statistics
Model	Sig. F Change
1	.000
2	.760

a. Predictors: (Constant), Males, Age

b. Predictors: (Constant), Males, Age, agexmale

c. Dependent Variable: RelFMD

ANOVA ^a								
Model		Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.		
1	Regression	447.512	2	223.756	15.757	.000 ^b		
	Residual	5282.604	372	14.201				
	Total	5730.115	374					
2	Regression	448.839	3	149.613	10.510	.000 ^c		
	Residual	5281.276	371	14.235				
	Total	5730.115	374					

- a. Dependent Variable: RelFMD
- b. Predictors: (Constant), Males, Age
- c. Predictors: (Constant), Males, Age, agexmale

	Coefficients ^a							
		Unstand Coeffi	lardized cients	Standardiz ed Coefficient s			95.0% Co Interva	onfidence Il for B
							Lower	Upper
Mode	el	В	Std. Error	Beta	t	Sig.	Bound	Bound
1	(Consta nt)	8.689	.455		19.107	.000	7.795	9.583
	Age	046	.009	261	-5.231	.000	063	028
	Males	694	.416	083	-1.667	.096	-1.513	.125
2	(Consta nt)	8.818	.620		14.218	.000	7.598	10.037
	Age	049	.015	282	-3.287	.001	079	020
	Males	895	.778	107	-1.150	.251	-2.425	.636
	agexmal e	.006	.018	.037	.305	.760	031	.042

Coefficients^a

		Collinearity Statistics				
Model		Tolerance	VIF			
1	(Constant)					
	Age	.995	1.005			
	Males	.995	1.005			
2	(Constant)					
	Age	.337	2.971			
	Males	.286	3.502			
	agexmale	.173	5.773			

a. Dependent Variable: RelFMD

Excluded	Variables ^a	

					Collinearity Statistics		
				Partial	Toleranc		Minimum
Model	Beta In	t	Sig.	Correlation	e	VIF	Tolerance
1 agexmale	.037 ^b	.305	.760	.016	.173	5.773	.173

- a. Dependent Variable: RelFMD
- b. Predictors in the Model: (Constant), Males, Age

Age x L-FMC, Sex as a moderator variable

Variables Entered/Removed^a

Model	Variables Entered	Variables Removed	Method
1	Male, Age ^b		Enter
2	agexmale ^b		Enter

- a. Dependent Variable: RelLFMC
- b. All requested variables entered.

Model Summary^c

				~	(Change Sta	tistics	
				Std. Error				
Mode		R	Adjusted R	of the	R Square	F		
1	R	Square	Square	Estimate	Change	Change	df1	df2
1	.030 ^a	.001	004	3.31665	.001	.164	2	372
2	.063 ^b	.004	004	3.31608	.003	1.128	1	371

Model Summary^c

	Change Statistics
Model	Sig. F Change
1	.849
2	.289

a. Predictors: (Constant), Male, Age

b. Predictors: (Constant), Male, Age, agexmale

c. Dependent Variable: RelLFMC

			ANOVA ^a			
Model		Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
1	Regression	3.599	2	1.800	.164	.849 ^b
	Residual	4092.061	372	11.000		
	Total	4095.661	374			
2	Regression	16.002	3	5.334	.485	.693 ^c
	Residual	4079.659	371	10.996		
	Total	4095.661	374			

a. Dependent Variable: RelLFMC

- b. Predictors: (Constant), Male, Age
- c. Predictors: (Constant), Male, Age, agexmale

				Coefficient	s ^a			
		Unstand Coeffi	lardized cients	Standardiz ed Coefficient s			95.0% Co Interva	onfidence l for B
							Lower	Upper
Mode	el	В	Std. Error	Beta	t	Sig.	Bound	Bound
1	(Consta	.214	.400		.535	.593	573	1.001
	Age	004	.008	026	505	.614	019	.011
	Male	085	.366	012	233	.816	806	.635
2	(Consta	.607	.545		1.114	.266	465	1.679
	Age	015	.013	103	-1.158	.248	041	.011
	Male	699	.684	099	-1.021	.308	-2.044	.646
	agexmal	.017	.016	.132	1.062	.289	015	.049

Coefficients^a

		Collinearity Statistics				
Model		Tolerance	VIF			
1	(Constant)					
	Age	.995	1.005			
	Male	.995	1.005			
2	(Constant)					
	Age	.337	2.971			
	Male	.286	3.502			

agexmale	.173	5.773

a. Dependent Variable: RelLFMC

			Excluded	Variables ^a			
					Coll	inearity S	tatistics
				Partial	Toleranc		Minimum
Model	Beta In	t	Sig.	Correlation	e	VIF	Tolerance
	h						
1 agexmale	.132	1.062	.289	.055	.173	5.773	.173

- a. Dependent Variable: RelLFMC
- b. Predictors in the Model: (Constant), Male, Age

Age x TVR with Sex as a moderator variable

Variables Entered/Removed^a

Model	Variables Entered	Variables Removed	Method
1	Male, Age ^b		Enter
2	agexmale ^b		Enter

a. Dependent Variable: TVR

b. All requested variables entered.

			N	lodel Summa	iry			
				Std. Error	(Change Sta	atistics	
Mode		R	Adjusted R	of the	R Square	F		
1	R	Square	Square	Estimate	Change	Change	df1	df2
1	.222 ^a	.049	.044	4.44631	.049	9.620	2	372
2	.223 ^b	.050	.042	4.45116	.000	.190	1	371

Model Summany^c

Model Summary^c

Change Statistics

Model	Sig. F Change
1	.000
2	.663

a. Predictors: (Constant), Male, Age

b. Predictors: (Constant), Male, Age, agexmale

c. Dependent Variable: TVR

Model		Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
1	Regression	380.370	2	190.185	9.620	$.000^{\mathrm{b}}$
	Residual	7354 315	372	19 770		
		750 1.515	512	19.170		
	Total	7734.685	374			
2	Regression	384.142	3	128.047	6.463	.000 ^c
	Residual	7350.543	371	19.813		

ANOVA^a

M.Sc. Thesis - V.I. Rizzuto; McMaster University - Kinesiology

Total	7734.685	374	

a. Dependent Variable: TVR

b. Predictors: (Constant), Male, Age

c. Predictors: (Constant), Male, Age, agexmale

	Coefficients ^a							
		Unstand	lardized	Standardiz ed Coefficient			95.0% C	onfidence
		Coeff	icients	S			Interva	al for B
Model B Std. Error		Beta	t	Sig.	Lower Bound	Upper Bound		
1	(Consta	8.596	.537	-	16.020	.000	7.541	9.651
	Age	042	.010	206	-4.073	.000	062	022
	Male	658	.491	068	-1.339	.181	-1.624	.308
2	(Consta	8.379	.732		11.453	.000	6.941	9.818
	Age	036	.018	175	-2.011	.045	070	001
	Male	320	.918	033	348	.728	-2.125	1.486
	agexmal	009	.022	053	436	.663	052	.033

Coefficients^a

	Collinearity Statistics			
Model	Tolerance	VIF		

1	(Constant)		
	Age	.995	1.005
	Male	.995	1.005
2	(Constant)		
	Age	.337	2.971
	Male	.286	3.502
	agexmale	.173	5.773

a. Dependent Variable: TVR

Excluded Variables^a

					Collinearity Statistics		tatistics
Madal	Data In	4	Sia	Partial	Toleranc	VIE	Minimum
Model	Beta In	ι	51g.	Conclation	e	VIF	Toterance
1	052b	120	(()	022	172	5 772	172
1 agexmale	053	436	.663	023	.1/3	5.773	.1/3

- a. Dependent Variable: TVR
- b. Predictors in the Model: (Constant), Male, Age

Correlation FMD and L-FMC

		Correlations		
			RELFMD	RELLFMC
Spearman's rho	RELFMD	Correlation Coefficient	1.000	.267**
		Sig. (2-tailed)		.000
		Ν	375	375
	RELLFMC	Correlation Coefficient	.267**	1.000
		Sig. (2-tailed)	.000	

|--|

**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).

Correlation between age and vascular measures – CVD and CVD Cohort only Correlations

			AGE	RELFMD
Spearman's rho	AGE	Correlation Coefficient	1.000	408**
		Sig. (2-tailed)		.000
		Ν	124	124
	RELFMD	Correlation Coefficient	408**	1.000
		Sig. (2-tailed)	.000	
		Ν	124	124

Correlations

			AGE	RELLFMC
Spearman's rho	AGE	Correlation Coefficient	1.000	.163
		Sig. (2-tailed)		.071
		Ν	124	124
	RELLFMC	Correlation Coefficient	.163	1.000
		Sig. (2-tailed)	.071	
		Ν	124	124

Correlations

			AGE	TVR
Spearman's rho	AGE	Correlation Coefficient	1.000	427**
		Sig. (2-tailed)		.000
		Ν	124	124
	TVR	Correlation Coefficient	427**	1.000
		Sig. (2-tailed)	.000	
		Ν	124	124